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Cautionary Statement

Except for the historical financial information damed herein, the matters discussed in this repaorForm 10-K (as well as documents
incorporated herein by reference) may be considéfenvard-looking” statements within the meaningsefction 27A of the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the SecufiXieisange Act of 1934, as amended. Such forwarkidgastatements include declarations
regarding the intent, belief or current expectasaf Silicon Laboratories Inc. and its managemert mmay be signified by the words "belie
"estimate,” "expect," "intend,"” "anticipate," "pldn'project,” "will" or similar language. You areautioned that any such forward-looking
statements are not guarantees of future performanckinvolve a number of risks and uncertaintiesuAl results could differ materially from
those indicated by such forward-looking statemdrastors that could cause or contribute to sucliedénces include those discussed under
"Risk Factors" and elsewhere in this report. Silidcaboratories disclaims any intention or obligatito update or revise any forward-looking
statements, whether as a result of new informafigmre events or otherwise.
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Part |
Iltem 1. Business
General

Silicon Laboratories Inc. designs and depselproprietary, analog-intensive, mixed-signatgnated circuits (ICs) for a broad range of
applications. Mixed-signal ICs are electronic comgaats that convert real-world analog signals, sachound and radio waves, into digital
signals that electronic products can process. Thieremixed-signal ICs are critical components lread range of applications in a variety of
markets, including communications, consumer, ingalsautomotive, medical and power management.

Our world-class, mixed-signal ICs use staddcomplementary metal oxide semiconductor (CM@&)nology to dramatically reduce the
cost, size and system power requirements of deth@our customers sell to their end-user custen@ur expertise in analog-intensive,
mixed-signal IC design in CMOS allows us to devete and innovative products that are highly irdéepl, simplifying our customers'
designs and improving their time-to-market.

Industry Background

Communications, computing and consumetrti@eics continue to drive semiconductor consumpt®rowth in these markets has been
driven primarily by the increasing pervasivenestntérnet usage, development of new communicatiecisnologies and the availability of
improved communication services at lower costs dngin-speed, highly reliable networks. This demhbasd fueled tremendous growth in the
number of electronic devices. Demand for functigpah mobile, handheld devices such as mobile gispportable media players and personal
navigation devices, has increased as manufactatterspt to further differentiate their productsn€omer and enterprise demand for Internet
connectivity, the availability of alternative telggny services and the transition to digital vide® @so key trends driving demand for
innovative, mixed-signal ICs.

All of these applications are characteribgdn intersection between the analog world we ilivand the digital world of computing, and
therefore require analog-intensive, mixed-signaduits. Traditional mixed-signal designs relied nmmlutions built with numerous, complex
discrete analog and digital components. While thesditional designs provide the required functidagpathey are often inefficient and
inadequate for use in markets where size, costepoansumption and performance are increasinglpitapt product differentiators. In order
to improve their competitive position, electronimanufacturers need to reduce the cost and complefiheir systems and enable new feat
or functionality to differentiate themselves frohetr competitors.

Simultaneously, these manufacturers facelamting time-to-market demands and must betabigpidly adapt to evolving industry
standards and new technologies. Because analatsimée mixedsignal IC design expertise is difficult to findefe manufacturers increasin
are turning to third parties, like us, to providivanced mixed-signal solutions. Mixed-signal desgpuires specific expertise and relies on
creative, experienced engineers to deliver solsttbat optimize speed, power and performance detgtnoisy digital environment and wit|
the constraints of standard manufacturing proce3sesdevelopment of this design expertise typjcadtuires years of practical analog design
experience under the guidance of a senior engiaedrengineers with the required level of skill @axgertise are in short supply.

Many IC providers lack sufficient analogoextise to develop compelling mixaignal ICs. As a result, manufacturers of electagvice
value IC providers that can supply them with mixsdghal ICs with greater functionality, smaller saad lower power requirements at a
reduced cost and shorter time-to-market.
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Products

We provide analog-intensive, mixsignal ICs for use in a variety of electronic protun a broad range of applications including ol
devices, satellite set top boxes, AM/FM radios athger consumer electronics, networking equipmest, and measurement equipment,
industrial monitoring and control, central offieddphone equipment and customer premises equip@anproducts integrate complex mixed-
signal functions that are frequently performed bynerous discrete components in competing prodatissingle chips or chipsets. By doing

S0, we are able to create products that when cadgarmany competing products:

. Require less board spa¢

. Reduce the use of external components loweringyhgem cost and simplifying design;
. Offer superior performance improving our customensl products;

. Provide increased reliability and manufacturabjlitgproving customer yields; and/

. Reduce system power requirements enabling smalier factors and/or longer battery i

We group our products into the followindegories:

. Broad-based products, which include our microcdlere, timing products (clocks and oscillators)reléss receivers, isolation

devices and human interface sensors;

. Broadcast products, which include our broadcastoaatad video product:
. Access products, which include our embedded mod¥wise over IP (VolP) products and our Power ovirenet devices; ar
. Mature products, which include certain devices #ratat the end of their respective life cycles #edefore receive minimal «

no continued research and development investmeitiding our DSL analog front end ICs and IRDA de4.

The following table summarizes the divgrseduct areas and applications for the variousth@swe have introduced to customers:

Product Areas and Description

Applications

Broad-based Products

Microcontrollers

Our C8051F family of 8-bit mixed-signal microcortens integrates intelligent data
capture in the form of high-resolution data coneesta traditional MCU computing
function, flash memory and a highly programmableo$§&€ommunication interfaces in a
single system on a chip. The combination of comfigle highperformance analog, up ¢
100 Million Instructions Per Second (MIPS), 805tecand in-system field
programmability provides the user with design fidlitly, improved time-to-market, .
superior system performance and greater end praliffietentiation. These products are
designed for use in a large variety of end-marketduding the automotive, .
communications, consumer, industrial, medical amaigr management marke

3

Industrial automation and control

Automotive sensors and controls

Medical instrumentation

Electronic test and measurement
equipment

Consumer electronics

Computer peripherals

White goods




Table of Contents

Product Areas and Description

Applications

Precision Clocks and Oscillato
Leveraging our DSPL® technology to offer frequency agile, extremely ljitter clock
and oscillator products, these devices replacétivadl solutions implemented using
expensive, bulky modules, numerous crystal sounmaplicated discrete circuitry
requiring numerous components, or hybrid IC/disceatlutions that offer limited
functionality.

EZRadi® Shor-Range Wireless Transceive
Our EZRadio family of fully integrated, low powdow data rate and low cost sh .
range wireless ICs are designed to meet the ndexstomers developing applications
requiring a secure, point to point transmissiorhsag industrial monitoring and controle
These products are still in the early stages dfocner adoptiot .

Digital Isolators and Related Produc
Our digital isolators and related products levenaggented isolation techniques to ene e
for example, multiple channels of isolation onragéé device, simplifying design and
reducing system cost. These products are stiiéretarly stages of customer adoption.

Human Interface Sensa
Our QuickSense™ family of human interface prodittudes touch sensors, proximity
sensors and ambient light sensors. These devieesatge our mixed-signal capability te
provide high accuracy, quicker response time an@tg@ower consumption than .
competing parts. These products are in the eabestof customer adoptic .

Broadcast Products

Broadcast Radio Receivers and Transmit
Our FM and AM receivers deliver the entire tunenfrantenna input to audio output i ¢

single chip. Ideal for portable audio applicatioti® broadcast audio products are based

on an innovative digital architecture that enalsigsificant improvements in .
performance, which translates to a better cons@xgerience, while reducing system e
cost and board space for our customers. The AM/gdéivers enable AM and/or FM
radio in virtually any device and the transmittalew customers to cost effectively add
wireless AM/FM audio playback capability to any fadnle media device. .

Networking equipmer
Telecommunications
Wireless base stations

Test and measurement equipment

HDTV video

High-speed data acquisition
SONET/SDH line cards
Storage area networ|

Remote keyless ent

Home security monitors
Automated Meter Readers
Remote control

Switch mode power suppli¢
Isolated analog data acquisition
Industrial networking

Motor control

Isolated DC-DC supplies
Electronic ballasts for lightin

Smartphones and handhelds
Industrial controls

Toys and consumer electronics
Monitors and lavatory contro

Mobile phones

Stand-alone AM/FM radios
Portable audio devices
MP3/digital media players
Navigation/GPS devices
Satellite radios

Home stereos

Automotive infotainment systen
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Product Areas and Description

Applications

Video tuners and demodulatc
Our complete, global-compliant hybrid TV tuner with analog TV demodulaito a .
single CMOS IC leverages our proven digital lowalehitecture and exceeds the .
performance of traditional discrete TV tuners, déimapbTV makers to deliver improved
picture quality and better reception for both agadod digital broadcasts. Our small, | «
power and high performance digital video demodutasupport DVB-T, DVB-C and
fixed reception DVB-H in a single chip and are idlea equipment receiving digital
terrestrial and/or cable servict

Access Products

ISOmode® Embedded Moden

The ISOmodem embedded modems leverage innovalieersdirect access .
arrangement (DAA) technology and a digital signalgessor to deliver a globally .
compliant, very small analog modem for embeddediegions like set-top boxes, .
Personal Video Recorders (PVRs) and fax capaliiitpulti-function printers. .
ProSLIC® Subscriber Line Interface Circui

Our ProSLIC provides the analog subscriber linerfiatce on the source end of - .
telephone which generates dial tone, busy tonkerd&@l and ring signal. Our ProSLIC

product family has offerings for short-haul applioas suitable for the customer .
premises as well as long-haul applications suitbdyl¢he traditional telephone company
central office. .

Power over Etherne
Our Power over Ethernet (PoE) Power Source Equipamah Powered Device ICs offef
highly differentiated solutions with a reduced tdi#l of materials (BOM) cost and .
improved performance and reliability. Our soluti@iso offer an integration level that
enables functionality not available with competsggutions.

Integrated digital televisions (iDT\
Free-to-Air (FtA) or pay-TV set-top
box receivers
PC-TV applications
DVD/HDD personal video recorders

Set-top and digital cable boxes

Industrial monitoring

Postage meters

Security systems

Remote medical monitoring

Gaming consoles

PVRs

Point of sale (POS) terminals

Fax machines and multi-function
printers

Wireless local loop remote acce
systems

Voice over broadband modems and
terminal adapters

VoIP residential gateways

PBXs

Wired long loop and central office
systems

Wireless access points (WAP)
VolIP phones

Radio frequency identification (RFIL
tag readers

POS terminals

Networking routers and switches
Security camera

During fiscal 2010, 2009 and 2008, saleswfmixed-signal products accounted for substhytiél of our revenue.
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Customers, Sales and Marketing

We market our products through our dired¢s force and through a network of independeltssalpresentatives and distributors. Direct
and distributor customers buy on an individual pase order basis, rather than pursuant to long-agneements.

We consider our customer to be the encboust purchasing either directly from a distributcontract manufacturer or us. An end
customer purchasing through a contract manufactypésally instructs such contract manufactureoliéain our products and incorporate such
products with other components for sale by suctirachmanufacturer to the end customer. Althoughaeteally sell the products to, and are
paid by, the distributors and contract manufacgjnee refer to such end customer as our customer.

Two of our distributors, Edom Technologylakvnet, represented 28% and 14% of our revenugsglfiscal 2010. No other distributor
accounted for 10% or more of revenues for fiscdl®20

During fiscal 2010, our ten largest endteosers accounted for 36% of our revenues. We haingle end customer that accounted for
more than 10% of our revenues during this periag. i@ajor customers include Apple, Cisco, Huawei, Eléctronics, Nokia, Pace (formerly
Philips), Panasonic, Samsung, Technicolor (form&Hgmson) and Varian Medical Systems.

We maintain numerous sales offices in Néutherica, Europe and Asia. Revenue is attributea geographic area based on the end
customer's shipped-to location. The percentageiofevenues to customers located outside of theedi8tates was 86% in fiscal 2010. For
further information regarding our revenues and {mgd assets by geographic area, see Not&égment Informationto the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Our direct sales force includes regionlsaanagers in the field and area business maagérrther support customer communicati
We also utilize independent sales representatindgiestributors to generate sales of our prodWfs have relationships with many
independent sales representatives and distributorigiwide whom we have selected based on their nstaleding of the mixed-signal IC
marketplace and their ability to provide effectfiedd sales applications support for our products.

Our marketing efforts are targeted at bdémtified industry leaders and emerging marketigipants. Direct marketing activities are
supplemented by a focused marketing communicagéfost that seeks to raise awareness of our compadyproducts. Our public relations
efforts are focused on leading trade and busingskgations. Our external website is used to delogeporate information and product
information. We also pursue targeted advertisinkeiy trade publications and we have a cooperatiakeating program that allows our
distributors and representatives to promote oudyets to their local markets in conjunction witlkeithown advertising activities. Finally we
maintain a presence at strategic trade shows alugtiry events. These activities, in combinatiorhwiitrect sales activities, help drive demand
for our products.

Due to the complex and innovative naturewfICs, we employ experienced applications eregmeho work closely with customers to
support the design-win process, and can signifigaticelerate the customer's time required to baipgoduct to market. A design-win occurs
when a customer has designed our ICs into its mtoghehitecture. A considerable amount of effora$sist the customer in incorporating our
ICs into its products is typically required priordny sale. In many cases, our innovative ICs reggignificantly different implementations tr
existing approaches and, therefore, successfukim@htations may require extensive communicatioh pdtential customers. The amount of
time required to achieve a design-win can vary sutiglly depending on a customer's developmenegyehich can be relatively short (such
as three months) or very long (such as two yearsgd on a wide variety of customer factors. Notl@dlign wins ultimately result in revenue.
However, once a completed design architecture das mplemented and produced in high volumes,
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our customers are reluctant to significantly afltexir designs due to this extensive designprocess. We believe this process, coupled wuitl
intellectual property protection, promotes relaMenger product life cycles for our ICs and highrriers to entry for competitive products,
even if such competing products are offered at tqwiges. Our close collaboration with our custosnenmovides us with knowledge of
derivative product ideas or completely new prodinet offerings that may not otherwise arise in othew product discussions.

Research and Development

Through our research and development sffareé apply our experienced analog and misigthal engineering talent and expertise to ci
new ICs that integrate functions typically perfodieefficiently by multiple discrete components.id mtegration generally results in lower
costs, smaller die sizes, lower power demands ahdreed price/performance characteristics. We attémreuse successful techniques for
integration in new applications where similar béisefan be realized. We believe that reliable amtipe analog and mixed-signal ICs can only
be developed by teams of engineers that coordihateefforts under the direction of senior engiisegho have significant analog experience
and are familiar with the intricacies of designthgse ICs for commercial volume production. Theeliggment of test methodologies is a
critical activity in releasing a new product fomemercial success. We believe that we have attractete of the best engineers in our industry.

Research and development expenses were8i@ion, $104.4 million and $101.2 million insital 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
Technology

Our product development process facilitétesdesign of highly-innovative, analog-intensinexed-signal ICs. Our engineers' deep
knowledge of existing and emerging standards anfimeance requirements help us to assess the tatHaasibility of a particular IC. We
target areas where we can provide compelling proidyzrovements. Once we have solved the primarjleriges, our field application
engineers continue to work closely with our custsheesign teams to maintain and develop an uradetstg of our customers' needs, allov
us to formulate derivative products and refinedufess.

In providing mixed-signal ICs for our custers, we believe our key competitive advantages are

. Analog design expertise in CMOS;

. Digital signal processing design expertise;
. Microcontroller and system on a chip design expertanc
. Our broad understanding of systems technology ramdis.

To fully capitalize on these advantageshaee assembled a world-class development teamexdbptional analog and mixed-signal
design expertise led by accomplished senior enggnee

Analog Design Expertise in CMOS

We believe that our most significant cooenpetency is world-class analog design capab#itiditionally, we strive to design
substantially all of our ICs in standard CMOS pisees. While it is significantly more difficult teedign analog ICs in CMOS, CMOS provides
multiple benefits versus existing alternativesjudag significantly reduced cost, reduced techggldsk and greater worldwide foundry
capacity. CMOS is the most commonly used procedstdogy for manufacturing digital ICs and as aileis most likely to be used for the
manufacturing of ICs with finer line geometries.€8k finer line geometries can enable smaller astéiféCs. By designing our ICs in CMOS,
we enable our
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products to benefit from this trend towards firiselgeometries, which allows us to integrate magéal functionality into our mixed-signal
ICs.

Designing analog and mixed-signal ICs gm#icantly more complicated than designing stalwha digital ICs. While advanced software
tools exist to help automate digital IC designy¢hare far fewer tools for advanced analog and dasignal IC design. In many cases, our
analog circuit design efforts begin at the fundatalenansistor level. We believe that we have aaestrated ability to design the most diffic
analog and RF circuits using standard CMOS teclyiedo

Digital Signal Processing Design Expertise

We consider the partitioning of a circaitite a proprietary and creative design technique.dijital signal processing design expertise
maximizes the price/performance characteristidsotii the analog and digital functions and allows|@s to work in an optimized manner to
accomplish particular tasks. Generally, we surrocoreg analog circuitry with digital CMOS transisgtpwhich allow our ICs to perform the
required analog functions with increased digitgatzlities. For example, our broadcast audio prtgluse a proven digital low-IF receiver and
transmitter architecture to deliver superior RF@anance and interference rejection compared tittoaal, analog-only approaches. Digital
signal processing is utilized to optimize soundliggiander varying signal conditions, enabling dtbeconsumer experience.

Microcontroller and System on a Chip Design Experse

We have the talent and circuit integratioethodologies required to combine precision andiagh-speed digital, flash memory and in-
system programmability into a single, monolithic O integrated circuit. Our microcontroller produate designed to capture an external
analog signal, convert it to a digital signal, cangodigital functions on the stream of data and tt@mmunicate the results through a standard
digital interface. The ability to develop standardducts with the broadest possible customer agpdic base while being cost efficient with
silicon area of the monolithic CMOS integrated gitcequires a keen sense of customer value andesring capabilities. Additionally, to
manage the wide variety of signals on a monoligiiéce of silicon including electrical noise, harrtenand other electronic distortions requires
a fundamental knowledge of device physics and aatated design expertise.

Understanding of Systems Technology and Trends

Our focused expertise in mixed-signal I€the result of the breadth of engineering talemtave assembled with experience working in
analog-intensive CMOS design for a wide varietgpplications. This expertise, which we consideomgetitive advantage, is the foundation
of our in-depth understanding of the technology tedds that impact electronic systems and mark®ris expertise includes:

. Isolation, which is critical for existing and emarg telecom networks

. Frequency synthesis, which is core technology fioeless and clocking applicatior

. Integration, which enables the elimination of dé&dercomponents in a system; and

. Sigr|1_al p_rocessing and precision analog, which fahmesheart of consumer, industrial, medical andmotive electronics
applications.

Our understanding of the role of analogtdignterfaces within electronic systems, standardolution, and end market drivers enables us
to identify product development opportunities aagitalize on market trends.
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Manufacturing

As a fabless IC manufacturer, we condualiéSign and development in our facilities and etegtally transfer our proprietary IC designs
to third-party semiconductor fabricators who pracsiticon wafers to produce the ICs that we ded@yur. IC designs typically use industry-
standard CMOS manufacturing process technologgha@se a level of performance normally associatéd more expensive special-purpose
IC fabrication technology. We believe the use of @Mtechnology facilitates the rapid production of tCs within a lower cost framework.
Our IC production employs submicron process gedegetrhich are readily available from leading founduppliers worldwide, thus increas
the likelihood that manufacturing capacity will &eailable throughout our products' life cycles. Berently partner principally with Taiwan
Semiconductor Manufacturing Co. (TSMC) or its &dfiés to manufacture our semiconductor wafers. @ieve that our fabless manufactur
model significantly reduces our capital requirersearid allows us to focus our resources on deseyueldpment and marketing of our ICs.

Once the silicon wafers have been produiteyy, are shipped directly to our third-party aslslgnsubcontractors. The assembled ICs are
then moved to the final testing stage. This openatian be performed by the same contractor thatrdsded the IC, other third-party test
subcontractors or within our internal facilitiesgerto shipping to our customers. During fiscal @0fnost of our units shipped were tested by
offshore third-party test subcontractors. We expieat our utilization of offshore third-party testbcontractors will remain substantial during
fiscal 2011.

Backlog

As of January 1, 2011, our backlog was exiprately $87.5 million, compared to approximat$®4.2 million as of January 2, 2010. We
include in backlog accepted product purchase offdens customers and worldwide distributor stockarders. We only include orders with an
expected shipping date from us within six monttiedBct orders in our backlog are subject to chaimgdglivery schedules or cancellation at
the option of the purchaser typically without péypaDur backlog may fluctuate significantly deperglupon customer order patterns which
may, in turn, vary considerably based on rapidigrging business circumstances. Shipments to disri$ are not recognized as revenue until
the products are sold by the distributors. Addgibn our arrangements with distributors typicalipvide for price protection and stock rota
activities. Accordingly, we do not believe that daaicklog at any time is necessarily representatiactual sales for any succeeding period.

Competition

The markets for semiconductors generatig, far analog and mixed-signal ICs in particulae mtensely competitive. We anticipate that
the market for our products will continually evolaed will be subject to rapid technological chanyfe. believe the principal competitive
factors in our industry are:

. Product size . Power requiremen

. Level of integration . Customer suppor

. Product capabilities . Reputation

. Reliability; . Ability to rapidly introduce new products
. Price; market; an

. Performance . Intellectual property

We believe that we are competitive withpesgt to these factors, particularly because ourty@isally are smaller in size, are highly
integrated, achieve high performance specificatarewer price points than competitive productd are manufactured in standard CMOS
which generally enables us to supply them on divels rapid basis to customers to meet their pobdhtroduction schedules. However,
disadvantages we face include our relatively sbpetrating history in certain of our markets andribed for customers to redesign their
products and modify their software to implement s in their products.
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As we target and supply products to numeroarkets and applications, we face competitiomfeorelatively large number of competit
We compete with Analog Devices, Atmel, Broadcomn&ant, Cypress, Epson, Freescale, IDT, Lantig, Makkim Integrated Products,
Microchip, NXP Semiconductors, Renesas, Sony Semdigctor, ST-Ericsson, STMicroelectronics, Texasrimaents, Vectron International,
Zarlink Semiconductor and others. We expect to tawapetition in the future from our current compe, other manufacturers and designers
of semiconductors and start-up semiconductor desigmpanies. Our competitors may also offer bundtddtions offering a more complete
product, which may negatively impact our compegitposition despite the technical merits or advasgayf our products. In addition, our
customers could develop products or technologiesnally that would replace their need for our protd and would become a source of
competition. As the markets for electronic produgtswv, we also may face competition from traditioglactronic device companies. These
companies may enter the mixeigmnal semiconductor market by introducing theingwoducts, including components within their produtha
would eliminate the need for our ICs, or by entgiiimo strategic relationships with or acquiringet existing IC providers.

Many of our competitors and potential cotitpes have longer operating histories, greater@mamcognition, access to larger customer
bases, complementary product offerings, and siganitly greater financial, sales and marketing, nfecturing, distribution, technical and ott
resources than us. Current and potential compefitave established or may establish financial &natiegjic relationships between themselves
or with our existing or potential customers, remmllor other third parties. Accordingly, it is pdds that new competitors or alliances among
competitors could emerge and rapidly acquire sicgnift market share.

Intellectual Property

Our future success depends in part upompraprietary technology. We seek to protect ountetogy through a combination of patents,
copyrights, trade secrets, trademarks and confaléntprocedures. As of January 1, 2011, we hgut@xdmately 1,040 issued or pending
United States patents in the IC field. We alsodryly file for patent protection in a variety otérnational jurisdictions with respect to the
proprietary technology covered by our U.S. patant patent applications. There can be no assuthatpatents will ever be issued with
respect to these applications. Furthermore, ib&sible that any patents held by us may be invi@ijacircumvented, challenged or licensed to
others. In addition, there can be no assurancestltdt patents will provide us with competitive ashe@es or adequately safeguard our
proprietary rights. While we continue to file neatent applications with respect to our recent dgwekents, existing patents are granted for
prescribed time periods and will expire at varitioges in the future.

We claim copyright protection for proprigtalocumentation for our products. We have filedrEgistration, or are in the process of filing
for registration, the visual images of certain i@t the U.S. Copyright Office. We have registetiee "Silicon Labs" logo and a variety of
other product and product family names as tradesniarthe United States and selected foreign juigitis. All other trademarks, service
marks or trade names appearing in this reportrer@roperty of their respective owners. We alsenaptt to protect our trade secrets and other
proprietary information through agreements with customers, suppliers, employees and consultamisthaough other customary security
measures. We intend to protect our rights vigosgusit there can be no assurance that our effaltbevsuccessful. In addition, the laws of
other countries in which our products are sold matyprotect our products and intellectual propeigits to the same extent as the laws of the
United States.

While our ability to effectively competepbnds in large part on our ability to protect auellectual property, we believe that our
technical expertise and ability to introduce newdurcts in a timely manner will be an important feéh maintaining our competitive position.

10




Table of Contents

Many participants in the semiconductor aefettronics industries have a significant numbevaiénts and have frequently demonstrated a
readiness to commence litigation based on allegaid patent and other intellectual property irggment. From time to time, third parties r
assert infringement claims against us. We may retgil in any such litigation or may not be ablditense any valid and infringed patents
from third parties on commercially reasonable terifrat all. Litigation, regardless of the outconmelikely to result in substantial cost and
diversion of our resources, including our managefed¢ime. Any such litigation could materially adsely affect us.

Our licenses include industry standardngss with our vendors, such as wafer fabricatiohltoraries, third party core libraries,
computer-aided design applications and busineswad applications.

Employees

As of January 1, 2011, we employed 845 [@edpur success depends on the continued servigerdfey technical and senior manager
personnel and on our ability to continue to attrestiain and motivate highly skilled analog and edibsignal engineers. The competition for
such personnel is intense. We have never had astoppage and none of our U.S. employees are mpezsby a labor organization. We
consider our employee relations to be good.

Environmental Regulation

Federal, state and local regulations imp@s®us environmental controls on the storage, diseharge and disposal of certain chemicals
and gases used in the semiconductor industry. @upkance with these laws and regulations has adtehmaterial impact on our financial
position or results of operations.

Available Information

Our website address is www.silabs.com. &unual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports omi&0-Q, current reports on Formkdanc
amendments to those reports filed or furnishedyamsto Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SecuritiesHaxge Act of 1934 are available through
the investor relations page of our internet welfsée of charge as soon as reasonably practicéielevee electronically file such material with,
or furnish it to, the Securities and Exchange Cossion (SEC). Our website and the information comtaitherein or connected thereto are not
intended to be incorporated into this Annual Reporform 10-K.

ltem 1A. Risk Factors
Risks Related to our Business

We may not be able to maintain our historical growth and may experience significant period-to-period fluctuationsin our revenues and
operating results, which may result in volatility in our stock price

Although we have generally experienced mereegrowth in our history, we may not be able tstain this growth. We may also experience
significant period-to-period fluctuations in ourvezues and operating results in the future duentonaber of factors, and any such variations
may cause our stock price to fluctuate. In someréuperiod our revenues or operating results mayeklmwv the expectations of public market
analysts or investors. If this occurs, our stodkgopmay drop, perhaps significantly.

A number of factors, in addition to thosted in other risk factors applicable to our busgiemay contribute to fluctuations in our rever
and operating results, including:

. The timing and volume of orders received from austomers
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. The timeliness of our new product introductions #rerate at which our new products may cannibaizeolder products;

. The rate of acceptance of our products by our austs, including the acceptance of new products g develop fol
integration in the products manufactured by sudtamers, which we refer to as "design wins";

. The time lag and realization rate between "desigrstand production orders;

. The demand for, and life cycles of, the product®iporating our I1Cs

. The rate of adoption of mix-signal ICs in the markets we targ

. Deferrals or reductions of customer orders in guaitton of new products or product enhancements fus or our competitors
other providers of ICs;

. Changes in product mi;

. The average selling prices for our products coutppuddenly due to competitive offerings or coritpet predatory pricing,
especially with respect to our mobile handset pet&iu

. The average selling prices for our products gehedsicline over time

. Changes in market standards;

. Impairment charges related to inventory, equipneemther long-lived assets;

. The software used in our products, including sofengrovided by thir-parties, may not meet the needs of our custor

. Significant legal costs to defend our intellectoidperty rights or respond to claims against ud;

. The rate at which new markets emerge for produetsn currently developing or for which our destgpertise can be utilized

to develop products for these new markets.

The markets for mobile handsets, consuteetrenics, satellite sebp boxes and VolP applications are characterizacpid fluctuation:
in demand and seasonality that result in correspgritlctuations in the demand for our productd #ra incorporated in such devices.
Additionally, the rate of technology acceptanceolly customers results in fluctuating demand forroducts as customers are reluctant to
incorporate a new IC into their products until tiev IC has achieved market acceptance. Once a@@gHhieves market acceptance, demand
for the new IC can quickly accelerate to a poird gren level off such that rapid historical growttsales of a product should not be viewed as
indicative of continued future growth. In additialemand can quickly decline for a product whenw & product is introduced and receives
market acceptance. Due to the various factors meedi above, the results of any prior quarterlyrorual periods should not be relied upon as
an indication of our future operating performance.

If we are unable to develop or acquire new and enhanced products that achieve market acceptancein a timely manner, our operating results
and competitive position could be harmed

Our future success will depend on our ghib reduce our dependence on a few products bgldging or acquiring new ICs and product
enhancements that achieve market acceptancernmeyytand cost-effective manner. The developmemiged-signal ICs is highly complex,
and we have at times experienced delays in comglétie development and introduction of new prodaats product enhancements. Succe
product development and market acceptance of mgugts depend on a number of factors, including:

. Requirements of custome
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. Accurate prediction of market and technical requeets;

. Timely completion and introduction of new desig

. Timely qualification and certification of our ICerfuse in our customers' products;

. Commercial acceptance and volume production optbducts into which our ICs will be incorporated;
. Availability of foundry, assembly and test capar

. Achievement of high manufacturing yielc

. Quality, price, performance, power use and sizeuofproducts;

. Availability, quality, price and performance of cpating products and technologies;

. Our customer service, application support capasliand responsivene:

. Successful development of our relationships witisteng and potential customel

. Technology, industry standards or end-user preéesrand

. Cooperation of thir-party software providers and our semiconductor vestb support our chips within a syste

We cannot provide any assurance that ptedugich we recently have developed or may devildpe future will achieve market
acceptance. We have introduced to market or adevelopment of many ICs. If our ICs fail to achiewarket acceptance, or if we fail to
develop new products on a timely basis that achieaeket acceptance, our growth prospects, operegsigts and competitive position could
be adversely affected.

Our research and development efforts are focused on a limited number of new technologies and products, and any delay in the development,
or abandonment, of these technologies or products by industry participants, or their failure to achieve market acceptance, could compromise
our competitive position

Our ICs are used as components in electidenices in various markets. As a result, we ttexeted and expect to continue to devote a
large amount of resources to develop products basedw and emerging technologies and standartsvtthéve commercially introduced in
the future. Research and development expensecid 2010 was $123.8 million, or 25.1% of revendesumber of large companies are
actively involved in the development of these neehhologies and standards. Should any of theseaiegdelay or abandon their efforts to
develop commercially available products based anteehnologies and standards, our research andogewent efforts with respect to these
technologies and standards likely would have noegpable value. In addition, if we do n@rrectly anticipate new technologies and stand.
or if the products that we develop based on thegetachnologies and standards fail to achieve niadeeptance, our competitors may be
better able to address market demand than we wBulthermore, if markets for these new technologies$ standards develop later than we
anticipate, or do not develop at all, demand farmroducts that are currently in development waultfer, resulting in lower sales of these
products than we currently anticipate.

We depend on a limited number of customersfor a substantial portion of our revenues, and theloss of, or a significant reduction in orders
from, any key customer could significantly reduce our revenues

The loss of any of our key customers, sigaificant reduction in sales to any one of theruld significantly reduce our revenues and
adversely affect our business. During fiscal 2@10,ten largest customers accounted for 36% of@tenues. Some of the markets for our
products are dominated by a small number of pakatistomers. Therefore, our operating resulthénforeseeable future will
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continue to depend on our ability to sell to thédsminant customers, as well as the ability of trestomers to sell products that incorporate
our IC products. In the future, these customers deyde not to purchase our ICs at all, purchaserféCs than they did in the past or alter
their purchasing patterns, particularly because:

. We do not have material lo-term purchase contracts with our custom

. Substantially all of our sales to date have beedenmm a purchase order basis, which permits odomess to cancel, change
delay product purchase commitments with little ommtice to us and without penalty;

. Some of our customers may have efforts underwagtively diversify their vendor base which couldwee purchases of our
ICs; and

. Some of our customers have developed or acquiketlpts that compete directly with products thestaraers purchase from

us, which could affect our customers' purchasirgsiens in the future.

While we have been a significant supplielGs used in many of our customers' products,coigstomers regularly evaluate alternative
sources of supply in order to diversify their sugpbase, which increases their negotiating leveraigh us and protects their ability to secure
these components. We believe that any expansionratustomers' supplier bases could have an ade#fesz on the prices we are able to
charge and volume of product that we are ableltdeseur customers, which would negatively affear revenues and operating results.

Significant litigation over intellectual property in our industry may cause us to become involved in costly and lengthy litigation which could
seriously harm our business

In recent years, there has been signifiliigation in the United States involving pateatsd other intellectual property rights. From time
to time, we receive letters from various industaytigipants alleging infringement of patents, tradeks or misappropriation of trade secrets or
from customers or suppliers requesting indemnificetor claims brought against them by third parti€he exploratory nature of these
inquiries has become relatively common in the sendaictor industry. We respond when we deem apmtpand as advised by legal counsel.
We have been involved in litigation to protect mtellectual property rights in the past and magdmee involved in such litigation again in the
future. In the future, we may become involved iditidnal litigation to defend allegations of infgament asserted by others, both directly and
indirectly as a result of certain industry-standiaidemnities we may offer to our customers or sigppl Legal proceedings could subject us to
significant liability for damages or invalidate copnoprietary rights. Legal proceedings initiatedusyto protect our intellectual property rights
could also result in counterclaims or countersagfginst us. Any litigation, regardless of its oumep would likely be time-consuming and
expensive to resolve and would divert our managém#gme and attention. Most intellectual propditigation also could force us to take
specific actions, including:

. Cease selling or manufacturing products that useliallenged intellectual proper

. Obtain from the owner of the infringed intellectpabperty a right to a license to sell or use #levant technology, which
license may not be available on reasonable terrres, all;

. Redesign those products that use infringing int&li@l property; o

. Pursue legal remedies with third parties to enfatweindemnification rights, which may not adeqlafgotect our interests.
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We may be unable to protect our intellectual property, which would negatively affect our ability to compete

Our products rely on our proprietary tedbgg, and we expect that future technological adearmade by us will be critical to sustain
market acceptance of our products. Therefore, Weugethat the protection of our intellectual prageights is and will continue to be
important to the success of our business. We melg combination of patent, copyright, trademark tade secret laws and restrictions on
disclosure to protect our intellectual propertyhtgy We also enter into confidentiality or licermggeements with our employees, consultants,
intellectual property providers and business pastrend control access to and distribution of mgauinentation and other proprietary
information. Despite these efforts, unauthorizedigs may attempt to copy or otherwise obtain aselaur proprietary technology. Monitoring
unauthorized use of our technology is difficultdame cannot be certain that the steps we have takleprevent unauthorized use of our
technology, particularly in foreign countries whéne laws may not protect our proprietary right$udly as in the United States. We cannot be
certain that patents will be issued as a resutuofpending applications nor can we be certaindhgtissued patents would protect or benefit us
or give us adequate protection from competing petsldFor example, issued patents may be circumglentehallenged and declared invalic
unenforceable. We also cannot be certain that thi#irnot develop effective competing technologiestheir own.

Failure to manage our distribution channel relationships could impede our future growth

The future growth of our business will degén large part on our ability to manage our fetaghips with current and future distributors
and sales representatives, develop additional @tafor the distribution and sale of our producetd enanage these relationships. As we
execute our indirect sales strategy, we must mattegpotential conflicts that may arise with ouredt sales efforts. For example, conflicts
with a distributor may arise when a customer beginghasing directly from us rather than throughdrstributor. The inability to successfully
execute or manage a multi-channel sales stratagyg aopede our future growth. In addition, relasbips with our distributors often involve
the use of price protection and inventory retughts. This often requires a significant amountadés management's time and system resource
to manage properly.

We are subject to increased inventory risks and costs because we build our products based on forecasts provided by customers before
receiving purchase ordersfor the products

In order to ensure availability of our puats for some of our largest customers, we startrianufacturing of our products in advance of
receiving purchase orders based on forecasts iy these customers. However, these forecaststdepresent binding purchase
commitments and we do not recognize sales for thesgucts until they are shipped to the customsraAesult, we incur inventory and
manufacturing costs in advance of anticipated s&8esause demand for our products may not mategiainanufacturing based on forecasts
subjects us to increased risks of high inventoryyirag costs, increased obsolescence and incregsedting costs. These inventory risks are
exacerbated when our customers purchase indirgctiygh contract manufacturers or hold componersritory levels greater than their
consumption rate because this causes us to hasveiddisility regarding the accumulated levels oféntory for such customers. A resulting
write-off of unusable or excess inventories wouddexsely affect our operating results.

Our products are complex and may contain errors which could lead to product liability, an increase in our costs and/or a reduction in our
revenues

Our products are complex and may contaiorgy particularly when first introduced or as nesvsions are released. Our new products are
increasingly being designed in more complex preeesgich further increases the risk of errors. Al primarily on our in-house testing
personnel to design test operations and procedaigstect any errors prior to delivery of our protuto our customers.
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Because our products are manufactured by thirdegsathould problems occur in the operation orgrerance of our ICs, we may experience
delays in meeting key introduction dates or schedidelivery dates to our customers. These errscsculd cause us to incur significant re-
engineering costs, divert the attention of our Bagiing personnel from our product developmenttffand cause significant customer
relations and business reputation problems. Angalsfcould require product replacement or recali®rcould be obligated to accept product
returns. Any of the foregoing could impose subs#éhibsts and harm our business.

Product liability claims may be assertethwespect to our products. Our products are tylgisald at prices that are significantly lower
than the cost of the end-products into which threyiacorporated. A defect or failure in our prodoculd cause failure in our customer's end-
product, so we could face claims for damages tleatlisproportionately higher than the revenuespnéits we receive from the products
involved. Furthermore, product liability risks grarticularly significant with respect to medicabaautomotive applications because of the risk
of serious harm to users of these products. Theemeébe no assurance that any insurance we mainthsufficiently protect us from any such
claims.

Any acquisitions we make could disrupt our business and harm our financial condition

As part of our growth and product diversition strategy, we continue to evaluate opporigsib acquire other businesses, intellectual
property or technologies that would complementaurent offerings, expand the breadth of our marketenhance our technical capabilities.
The acquisitions that we have made and may malteeifuture entail a number of risks that could mally and adversely affect our business
and operating results, including:

. Problems integrating the acquired operations, teldyies or products with our existing business aratiucts;
. Diversion of management's time and attention framamre business;

. Need for financial resources above our plannedsiment levels;

. Difficulties in retaining business relationshipghwsuppliers and customers of the acquired comg
. Risks associated with entering markets in whicHae& prior experience;

. Risks associated with the transfer of licensesi@liectual property;

. Increased operating costs due to acquired over!

. Tax issues associated with acquisitic

. Acquisition-related disputes, including disputegiogarn-outs and escrows;

. Potential loss of key employees of the acquiredpanmg; and

. Potential impairment of related goodwill and intdolg assets

Future acquisitions also could cause usdor debt or contingent liabilities or cause ugsgue equity securities that could negatively
impact the ownership percentages of existing slwéddehs.

Our customersrequire our productsto undergo a lengthy and expensive qualification process without any assurance of product sales

Prior to purchasing our products, our comrs require that our products undergo an extemgiadéfication process, which involves test
of the products in the customer's system as welbasous reliability testing. This qualificatiomgress may continue for six months or longer.
However,
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qualification of a product by a customer does mstuee any sales of the product to that customeenEfter successful qualification and sale

a product to a customer, a subsequent revisidmetdéQ or software, changes in the IC's manufacgupiocess or the selection of a new supplier
by us may require a new qualification process, Wiy result in delays and in us holding excessbgplete inventory. After our products are
qualified, it can take an additional six monthsrare before the customer commences volume produofioomponents or devices that
incorporate our products. Despite these unceréaintie devote substantial resources, includinggdesingineering, sales, marketing and
management efforts, toward qualifying our produwegth customers in anticipation of sales. If we ansuccessful or delayed in qualifying any
of our products with a customer, such failure daglevould preclude or delay sales of such prodathé customer, which may impede our
growth and cause our business to suffer.

We have increased our international activities significantly and plan to continue such efforts, which subjects us to additional business risks
including increased logistical and financial complexity, political instability and currency fluctuations

We have established additional internatisnasidiaries and have opened additional offiodatiernational markets to expand our
international activities in Europe and Asia. Thashincluded the establishment of a headquarte3migapore for non-U.S. operations. The
percentage of our revenues derived from custoroeeged outside of the United States was 86% ddisicgl 2010. We may not be able to
maintain or increase international market demama@m products. Our international operations atgext to a number of risks, including:

. Increased complexity and costs of managing intenat operations and related tax obligations, idicig our headquarters f
non-U.S. operations in Singapore;

. Protectionist laws and business practices thatrfienaal competition in some countries;
. Difficulties related to the protection of our intsdtual property rights in some countri
. Multiple, conflicting and changing tax and othewaand regulations that may impact both our intéonal and domestic tax a

other liabilities and result in increased complg®ihd costs;

. Longer sales cycles;

. Greater difficulty in accounts receivable colleatiand longer collection perioc

. High levels of distributor inventory subject togeiprotection and rights of return to us;

. Political and economic instability;

. Greater difficulty in hiring and retaining qualifigechnical sales and applications engineers amihéstrative personnel; ar
. The need to have business and operations systamsatih meet the needs of our international busiaed©perating structur

To date, all of our sales to internatioti@tomers and purchases of components from intenahsuppliers have been denominated in
dollars. As a result, an increase in the valugnefl.S. dollar relative to foreign currencies comake our products more expensive for our
international customers to purchase, thus rendenimgroducts less competitive.
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We rely on third parties to manufacture, assemble and test our products and the failure to successfully manage our relationships with our
manufacturers and subcontractors would negatively impact our ability to sell our products

We do not have our own wafer fab manufacatufacilities. Therefore, we rely on third-partgndors to manufacture the ICs we design.
We also currently rely on Asian third-party assegndalbcontractors to assemble and package thersiticips provided by the wafers for use in
final products. Additionally, we rely on these dffse subcontractors for a substantial portion eftésting requirements of our products pric
shipping. We expect utilization of third-party sebtractors to continue in the future.

The cyclical nature of the semiconductaluistry drives wide fluctuations in available capaeit third-party vendors. On occasion, we
have been unable to adequately respond to unexpecteases in customer demand due to capacityragms and, therefore, were unable to
benefit from this incremental demand. We may bélento obtain adequate foundry, assembly or tgsdaity from our third-party
subcontractors to meet our customers' deliveryirements even if we adequately forecast customerade.

There are significant risks associated wéliiing on these third-party foundries and subi@otors, including:

. Failure by us, our customers or their end custonteguialify a selected supplier;
. Potential insolvency of the third-party subcontoast

. Reduced control over delivery schedules and qu:

. Limited warranties on wafers or products suppledg;

. Potential increases in prices or payments in advéorccapacity;

. Increased need for internatio-based supply, logistics and financial managern
. Their inability to supply or support new or chargimackaging technologies; a

. Low test yields.

We typically do not have long-term suppbntracts with our third-party vendors which oblig#te vendor to perform services and supply
products to us for a specific period, in specifiaqtities, and at specific prices. Our third-pdolyndry, assembly and test subcontractors
typically do not guarantee that adequate capaditye available to us within the time requiredni@et demand for our products. In the event
that these vendors fail to meet our demand for eweatreason, we expect that it would take up tmmdRths to transition performance of these
services to new providers. Such a transition mag equire qualification of the new providers by oustomers or their end customers.

Since our inception, most of the silicorfeva for the products that we have shipped wereufisatured either by TSMC or its affiliates.
Our customers typically complete their own quadifion process. If we fail to properly balance costo demand across the existing
semiconductor fabrication facilities that we uiar are required by our foundry partners to ineeear otherwise change the number of fab
lines that we utilize for our production, we migtut be able to fulfill demand for our products andy need to divert our engineering resources
away from new product development initiatives tpmart the fab line transition, which would adveysaffect our operating results.

Our products incorporate technology licensed from third parties

We incorporate technology (including softe)dicensed from third parties in our products. ¥éeld be subjected to claims of
infringement regardless of our lack of involvementhe development of the licensed technology. édtlh a third party licensor is typically
obligated to indemnify us if the
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licensed technology infringes on another partytslliectual property rights, such indemnificatiortyipically limited in amount and may be
worthless if the licensor becomes insolvent. Segmificant litigation over intellectual property our industry may cause us to become involved
in costly and lengthy litigation which could serstyitharm our businesgurthermore, any failure of third party technoldgyperform properly
would adversely affect sales of our products inocaiing such technology.

Our inability to manage growth could materially and adversely affect our business

Our past growth has placed, and any fujuogth of our operations will continue to placesignificant strain on our management
personnel, systems and resources. We anticipatevéhaill need to implement a variety of new andtguled sales, operational and financial
enterprise-wide systems, information technologyastiructure, procedures and controls, includingrtigrovement of our accounting and other
internal management systems to manage this gravdimaintain compliance with regulatory guidelinesjuding Sarbanes-Oxley Act
requirements. To the extent our business growsind@&imal management systems and processes wiltodeprove to ensure that we remain
in compliance. We also expect that we will needdntinue to expand, train, manage and motivatevamukforce. All of these endeavors will
require substantial management effort, and we ipatie that we will require additional managemenspenel and internal processes to manage
these efforts and to plan for the succession fiam to time of certain persons who have been keyagament and technical personnel. If we
are unable to effectively manage our expandingajloperations, including our international headtgrarin Singapore, our business could be
materially and adversely affected.

We are subject to risks relating to product concentration

We derive a substantial portion of our rexes from a limited number of products, and we ekffese products to continue to account for
a large percentage of our revenues in the near teomtinued market acceptance of these produdiseisfore, critical to our future success. In
addition, substantially all of our products that nseve sold include technology related to one oramdrour issued U.S. patents. If these patents
are found to be invalid or unenforceable, our catitqrs could introduce competitive products thatildareduce both the volume and price per
unit of our products. Our business, operating testihancial condition and cash flows could therefbe adversely affected by:

. A decline in demand for any of our more significandducts, including our modem products, FM tureerBroSLIC;
. Failure of our products to achieve continued maaoeeptance

. Competitive products

. New technological standards or changes to existiagdards that we are unable to address with @gupts;

. A failure to release new products or enhanced @essof our existing products on a timely basis; and

. The failure of our new products to achieve markeeatance

We are subject to credit risks related to our accounts receivable

We do not generally obtain letters of ctediother security for payment from customerstritigtors or contract manufacturers.
Accordingly, we are not protected against accotatsivable default or bankruptcy by these entifiéds current economic situation could
increase the likelihood of such defaults and bapiicies. Our ten largest customers or distributepgasent a substantial majority of our
accounts receivable. If any such customer or distoir, or a material portion of our
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smaller customers or distributors, were to becamelivent or otherwise not satisfy their obligatidasis, we could be materially harmed.

We depend on our key personnel to manage our business effectively in a rapidly changing market, and if we are unable to retain our current
personnel and hire additional personnel, our ability to develop and successfully market our products could be harmed

We believe our future success will depankhige part upon our ability to attract and retsighly skilled managerial, engineering, sales
and marketing personnel. We believe that our fusueeess will be dependent on retaining the ses\o€eur key personnel, developing their
successors and certain internal processes to reduceliance on specific individuals, and on prypenanaging the transition of key roles
when they occur. There is currently a shortageualified personnel with significant experiencelie tlesign, development, manufacturing,
marketing and sales of analog and mixed-signal llfCparticular, there is a shortage of engineers ate familiar with the intricacies of the
design and manufacturability of analog elementd,@mpetition for such personnel is intense. Oyrtkehnical personnel represent a
significant asset and serve as the primary sowrceur technological and product innovations. Weymat be successful in attracting and
retaining sufficient numbers of technical personinedupport our anticipated growth. The loss of ahgur key employees or the inability to
attract or retain qualified personnel both in thételd States and internationally, including engisesales, applications and marketing
personnel, could delay the development and intrboluof, and negatively impact our ability to selyr products.

Any dispositions could harm our financial condition

Any disposition of a product line would aihta number of risks that could materially and exdely affect our business and operating
results, including:

. Diversion of management's time and attention framamre busines:

. Difficulties separating the divested busine

. Risks to relations with customers who previouslychased products from our disposed product line;

. Reduced leverage with suppliers due to reducedeggtg volume;

. Risks related to employee relatio

. Risks associated with the transfer and licensinigteflectual property

. Security risks and other liabilities related to thensition services provided in connection with thisposition;
. Tax issues associated with dispositions; and

. Dispositior-related disputes, including disputes over -outs and escrow

Our stock price may be volatile

The market price of our common stock hanblatile in the past and may be volatile infitere. The market price of our common
stock may be significantly affected by the follogifactors:

. Actual or anticipated fluctuations in our operatiegults;

. Changes in financial estimates by securities atatysour failure to perform in line with such estites;
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. Changes in market valuations of other technologyganies, particularly semiconductor companies;

. Announcements by us or our competitors of significachnical innovations, acquisitions, strategidiperships, joint venture
or capital commitments;

. Introduction of technologies or product enhancesémit reduce the need for our products;
. The loss of, or decrease in sales to, one or meyelstomers

. A large sale of stock by a significant sharehol

. Dilution from the issuance of our stock in conneetwith acquisitions;

. The addition or removal of our stock to or fromtack index fund;

. Departures of key personnel; a

. The required expensing of stock awards.

The stock market has experienced extrertaility that often has been unrelated to the prenimnce of particular companies. These mg
fluctuations may cause our stock price to fall rdgss of our performance.

Most of our current manufacturers, assemblers, test service providers, distributors and customers are concentrated in the same geographic
region, which increases therisk that a natural disaster, epidemic, labor strike, war or political unrest could disrupt our operations or sales

Most of TSMC's foundries and several of assembly and test subcontractors' sites are bbaafEaiwan and most of our other foundry,
assembly and test subcontractors are located iRahiic Rim region. In addition, many of our cus&rs are located in the Pacific Rim region.
The risk of earthquakes in Taiwan and the Pacifio FRegion is significant due to the proximity of jpaearthquake fault lines in the area.
Earthquakes, fire, flooding, lack of water or othatural disasters, an epidemic, political unrest;, labor strikes or work stoppages in
countries where our semiconductor manufacturesgrablers and test subcontractors are locatedy likelld result in the disruption of our
foundry, assembly or test capacity. There can bassarance that alternate capacity could be olst@indavorable terms, if at all.

A natural disaster, epidemic, labor strikar or political unrest where our customers' fie# are located would likely reduce our sales to
such customers. North Korea's geopolitical manengsrhave created unrest. Such unrest could ceeatgomic uncertainty or instability,
could escalate to war or otherwise adversely aBecith Korea and our South Korean customers antteegur sales to such customers, which
would materially and adversely affect our operatiegults. In addition, a significant portion of thesembly and testing of our products occurs
in South Korea. Any disruption resulting from thesents could also cause significant delays inrshigts of our products until we are able to
shift our manufacturing, assembling or testing fritva affected subcontractor to another third-peaetydor.

The semiconductor manufacturing process is highly complex and, from time to time, manufacturing yields may fall below our expectations,
which could result in our inability to satisfy demand for our productsin atimely manner and may decrease our gross margins due to higher
unit costs

The manufacturing of our products is a higlomplex and technologically demanding procesthdugh we work closely with our
foundries and assemblers to minimize the likelihobdeduced manufacturing yields, we have from ttméme experienced lower than
anticipated manufacturing yields. Changes in mastufang processes or the inadvertent use of defecti contaminated materials could result
in lower than anticipated manufacturing yields nacceptable performance
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deficiencies, which could lower our gross marglhsur foundries fail to deliver fabricated silicavafers of satisfactory quality in a timely
manner, we will be unable to meet our customersatel for our products in a timely manner, which ldaadversely affect our operating
results and damage our customer relationships.

We depend on our customersto support our products, and some of our customers offer competing products

Our products are currently used by ouraustrs to produce modems, telephony equipment, mbhihdsets, networking equipment and a
broad range of other devices. We rely on our custsrto provide hardware, software, intellectuaperty indemnification and other technical
support for the products supplied by our customémur customers do not provide the required fiomality or if our customers do not provide
satisfactory support for their products, the demfandhese devices that incorporate our productg di@inish or we may otherwise be
materially adversely affected. Any reduction in theemand for these devices would significantly redoar revenues.

In certain products, some of our custonodfier their own competitive products. These custameay find it advantageous to support their
own offerings in the marketplace in lieu of promgtiour products.

We could seek to raise additional capital in the future through the issuance of equity or debt securities, but additional capital may not be
available on terms acceptable to us, or at all

We believe that our existing cash, cashvadents and investments will be sufficient to meet working capital needs, capital
expenditures, investment requirements and commirfenat least the next 12 months. However, jitdssible that we may need to raise
additional funds to finance our activities or teiftate acquisitions of other businesses, produntsllectual property or technologies. We
believe we could raise these funds, if neededgbing equity or debt securities to the public @istlected investors. In addition, even though
we may not need additional funds, we may still elecsell additional equity or debt securities btain credit facilities for other reasons.
However, we may not be able to obtain additionatiion favorable terms, or at all. If we decidestige additional funds by issuing equity or
convertible debt securities, the ownership peragrgaf existing shareholders would be reduced.

We are arelatively small company with limited resources compared to some of our current and potential competitors and we may not be able
to compete effectively and increase market share

Some of our current and potential compedit@ave longer operating histories, significantigajer resources and name recognition and a
larger base of customers than we have. As a reélsaie competitors may have greater credibilitywitir existing and potential customers.
They also may be able to adopt more aggressivangrpolicies and devote greater resources to tkieldpment, promotion and sale of their
products than we can to ours. In addition, someuofcurrent and potential competitors have alresstgblished supplier or joint development
relationships with the decision makers at our airoe potential customers. These competitors maghihe to leverage their existing
relationships to discourage their customers fromehpasing products from us or persuade them to cear products with their products. Our
competitors may also offer bundled solutions offgra more complete product despite the technicaltsma advantages of our products. Th
competitors may elect not to support our produdiglvcould complicate our sales efforts. Theseahdr competitive pressures may prevent
us from competing successfully against currentiture competitors, and may materially harm our iess. Competition could decrease our
prices, reduce our sales, lower our gross margidfoadecrease our market share.
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Provisionsin our charter documents and Delaware law could prevent, delay or impede a change in control of usand may reduce the market
price of our common stock

Provisions of our certificate of incorpaoat and bylaws could have the effect of discourggdelaying or preventing a merger or
acquisition that a stockholder may consider favierabor example, our certificate of incorporatiordaylaws provide for:

. The division of our Board of Directors into thrdasses to be elected on a staggered basis, orsecdels year;

. The ability of our Board of Directors to issue sgof our preferred stock in one or more seriebowit further authorization of
our stockholders;

. A prohibition on stockholder action by written cens,
. Elimination of the right of stockholders to calspecial meeting of stockholders;
. A requirement that stockholders provide advanceeaatf any stockholder nominations of director&ny proposal of ne

business to be considered at any meeting of stéa&is and

. A requirement that a supermajority vote be obtaiioe@imend or repeal certain provisions of our fiestie of incorporation.

We also are subject to the aatieover laws of Delaware which may discourageaydel prevent someone from acquiring or mergindp
us, which may adversely affect the market pricewafcommon stock.

Risks related to our industry
We are subject to the cyclical nature of the semiconductor industry, which has been subject to significant fluctuations

The semiconductor industry is highly cyaliand is characterized by constant and rapid t@olical change, rapid product obsolescence
and price erosion, evolving standards, short prolifeccycles and wide fluctuations in product slyppnd demand. The industry has
experienced significant fluctuations, often conedawith, or in anticipation of, maturing producictss and new product introductions of both
semiconductor companies' and their customers' ptedund fluctuations in general economic conditi@eteriorating general worldwide
economic conditions, including reduced economiovéigt concerns about credit and inflation, incred€nergy costs, decreased consumer
confidence, reduced corporate profits, decreaseddipg and similar adverse business conditions)dvmake it very difficult for our
customers, our vendors, and us to accurately fetecal plan future business activities and coulsed).S. and foreign businesses to slow
spending on our products. We cannot predict thengirstrength, or duration of any economic slowdawmconomic recovery. If the economy
or markets in which we operate deteriorate, ouirass, financial condition, and results of operaiavould likely be materially and adversely
affected.

Downturns have been characterized by dshed product demand, production overcapacity, imgéntory levels and accelerated erosion
of average selling prices. In the recent past, @lebe the semiconductor industry suffered a downtlue in large part to adverse conditions in
the global credit and financial markets, includdigninished liquidity and credit availability, deeés in consumer confidence, declines in
economic growth, increased unemployment rates andrgl uncertainty regarding the economy. Such tlaws may have a material adverse
effect on our business and operating results.

Upturns have been characterized by inccepseduct demand and production capacity constairgated by increased competition for
access to third-party foundry, assembly and tgsicigy. We are dependent on the availability ofscagpacity to manufacture, assemble and
test our ICs. None of our
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third-party foundry, assembly or test subcontractave provided assurances that adequate capatibevavailable to us.
The average selling prices of our products could decrease rapidly which may negatively impact our revenues and gross margins

We may experience substantial period-tégpeftuctuations in future operating results dughe erosion of our average selling prices. We
have reduced the average unit price of our prodod@sticipation of or in response to competitiveeing pressures, new product introductions
by us or our competitors and other factors. If weewnable to offset any such reductions in ourayeselling prices by increasing our sales
volumes, increasing our sales content per appticair reducing production costs, our gross margisrevenues will suffer. To maintain our
gross margin percentage, we will need to develapimtnoduce new products and product enhancemendstionely basis and continually
reduce our costs. Our failure to do so could causegevenues and gross margin percentage to decline

Competition within the numerous markets we target may reduce sales of our products and reduce our market share

The markets for semiconductors in genarad, for mixed-signal ICs in particular, are intdpsmmpetitive. We expect that the market for
our products will continually evolve and will belject to rapid technological change. In additichwe target and supply products to nume
markets and applications, we face competition feoralatively large number of competitors. We corapeith Analog Devices, Atmel,
Broadcom, Conexant, Cypress, Epson, Freescale,laxdtiq, LS|, Maxim Integrated Products, MicrochipXP Semiconductors, Renesas,
Sony Semiconductor, SEricsson, STMicroelectronics, Texas Instrumentsstkéam International, Zarlink Semiconductor and osh&Ve expec
to face competition in the future from our curreampetitors, other manufacturers and designersrafconductors, and start-up semiconductor
design companies. As the markets for communicagooducts grow, we also may face competition freaditional communications device
companies. These companies may enter the mixedisgmiconductor market by introducing their ow:s I8 by entering into strategic
relationships with or acquiring other existing pa®rs of semiconductor products. In addition, lacgempanies may restructure their operations
to create separate companies or may acquire neiwdssgs that are focused on providing the typ@sarfucts we produce or acquire our
customers.

Our products must conform to industry standards and technology in order to be accepted by end usersin our markets

Generally, our products comprise only & péa device. All components of such devices nungformly comply with industry standards
order to operate efficiently together. We depend¢@mpanies that provide other components of thécdswo support prevailing industry
standards. Many of these companies are significéantjer and more influential in affecting indusstandards than we are. Some industry
standards may not be widely adopted or implementdfdrmly, and competing standards may emergertteat be preferred by our customers
or end users. If larger companies do not suppersime industry standards that we do, or if comgetiandards emerge, market acceptance of
our products could be adversely affected which @dwrm our business.

Products for certain applications are basethdustry standards that are continually evgvi@ur ability to compete in the future will
depend on our ability to identify and ensure coamudie with these evolving industry standards. Thergence of new industry standards could
render our products incompatible with products tlgyed by other suppliers. As a result, we coulddugiired to invest significant time and
effort and to incur significant expense to redegign products to ensure
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compliance with relevant standards. If our prodaeesnot in compliance with prevailing industryrstards for a significant period of time, we
could miss opportunities to achieve crucial desigms.

Our pursuit of necessary technological adea may require substantial time and expense. #Wenot be successful in developing or
using new technologies or in developing new pragloctproduct enhancements that achieve market taowsp If our ICs fail to achieve mar
acceptance, our growth prospects, operating reasnttscompetitive position could be adversely aéfdct

Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

The staff of the SEC reviewed our Annuap&e on Form 10-K for the year ended January 20240d issued a letter dated June 30, 2010
We believe that all matters addressed in thatrlbtige been resolved, except that we are stillsoussions regarding whether we may exclude
disclosure of the historical performance targetdusr named executive officer compensation orbtss that such disclosure could result in
competitive harm.

Item 2. Properties

Our primary facilities, housing engineerisgles and marketing, administration and testadjwers, are located in Austin, Texas. Our
Austin, Texas operations currently occupy approxaiyal 90,000 square feet of leased floor space lwéke terms expiring in 2013. In addit
to these properties, we lease smaller facilitiegirous locations in the United States, ChinanEea Germany, Hungary, Ireland, Japan,
Portugal, South Korea, Singapore, Taiwan and theediKingdom for engineering, sales and marketaaministrative and manufacturing
support activities. We believe that these facBitee suitable and adequate to meet our currenatiqg needs.

Iltem 3. Legal Proceedings
Securities Litigation

On December 6, 2001, a class action comipiar violations of U.S. federal securities lawasifiled in the United States District Court
the Southern District of New York against us, foliour officers individually and the three investméanking firms who served as
representatives of the underwriters in connecti@h wur initial public offering of common stock. &Consolidated Amended Complaint
alleges that the registration statement and pragpdar our initial public offering did not discleghat (1) the underwriters solicited and
received additional, excessive and undisclosed dseioms from certain investors, and (2) the undieng had agreed to allocate shares of the
offering in exchange for a commitment from the oustrs to purchase additional shares in the aftéehat pre-determined higher prices. The
Complaint alleges violations of the Securities A£1933 and the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 dttion seeks damages in an unspecified
amount and is being coordinated with approximaB@®§ other nearly identical actions filed againsteotcompanies. A court order dated
October 9, 2002 dismissed without prejudice our fufticers who had been named individually. On Deber 5, 2006, the Second Circuit
vacated a decision by the District Court grantilegs certification in six of the coordinated casesich are intended to serve as test, or "focus"
cases. The plaintiffs selected these six casegwdo not include us. On April 6, 2007, the Sec@nduit denied a petition for rehearing filed
by the plaintiffs, but noted that the plaintiffsuid ask the District Court to certify more narrolagses than those that were rejected.

The parties in the approximately 300 comated cases, including the parties in the casesigas, reached a settlement. The insurers for
the issuer defendants in the coordinated casesnalie the settlement payment on behalf of the issircluding us. On October 5, 2009, the
Court granted final approval of the settlement.ginent was entered on January 10, 2010. Six naticaspeal and one petition seeking
permission to appeal were filed before the Unitees Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit. Tappeals are proceeding on behalf of
objectors to the settlement. Plaintiffs have
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moved to dismiss both appeals. The motions arg bulefed. The remaining objectors withdrew theipaals with prejudice.

As the litigation process is inherently ertain, we are unable to predict the outcome obthmve described matter if the settlement does
not survive appeal. While we do maintain liabilisgurance, we could incur losses that are not eavby our liability insurance or that exceed
the limits of our liability insurance. Such lossesild have a material impact on our business andesullts of operations or financial position.

Other

We are involved in various other legal gedings that have arisen in the normal course sihbas. While the ultimate results of these
matters cannot be predicted with certainty, we aloexpect them to have a material adverse effecuortonsolidated financial position or
results of operations.

Part Il
ltem 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases &quity Securities
Market Information and Holders

Our registration statement (Registration 888-94853) under the Securities Act of 1933,rasraded, relating to our initial public offering
of our common stock became effective on March 2802 Our common stock is quoted on the NASDAQ NwtidMarket (NASDAQ) under
the symbol "SLAB". The table below shows the higld éow per-share sales prices of our common stockhi periods indicated, as reported
by NASDAQ. As of January 31, 2011, there were 18ltlérs of record of our common stock.

High Low

Fiscal Year 200!

First Quartel $ 28.1: $ 20.4(

Second Quarte 39.2¢ 26.1¢

Third Quartel 49.0¢ 34.5¢

Fourth Quarte 49.0¢ 40.5¢
Fiscal Year 201!

First Quartel $ 49.1C $ 41.9¢

Second Quarte 53.17 39.8¢

Third Quartel 44.2¢ 34.1(

Fourth Quarte 47.47 35.6¢

Dividend Policy

We have never declared or paid any casietids on our common stock and we do not interhyocash dividends in the foreseeable
future. We currently expect to retain any futuren@ags to fund the operation and expansion of ausiress.
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Stock Performance Graph

The graph depicted below shows a compa$@umulative total stockholder returns for anestment in Silicon Laboratories Inc.
common stock, the NASDAQ Composite Index and thesSBAQ Electronic Components Index.

wWonDEerroog

150

U T T T T 1]
12/31/05 12/30/06 1272907 01/03/09 0170210 010111
—f— Silicon Laboatones Ine.  —e-MASDAD Composite  ---- NASDAQ Elactronic Componeanis
Company / Index 12/31/05 12/30/06 12/29/07 01/03/09 01/02/10 01/01/11
Silicon Laboratories Inc $ 100.0C $ 945 $ 102.7¢ $ 69.72 $ 131.97 $ 125.5:
NASDAQ Composite $ 100.0C $ 112.5. $ 122.0¢ $ 72.1f $ 104.2: $ 122.5:

NASDAQ Electronic
Component: $ 100.0C $ 94.0¢ $ 108.4« $ 55.4C $ 90.2t $ 102.7¢

1) The graph assumes that $100 was invested in oumconstock and in each index at the market closeerember 31,
2005, and that all dividends were reinvested. Nsha@ividends have been declared on our common.stock

(2) Stockholder returns over the indicated period sthowt be considered indicative of future stockhole¢urns.
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Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The following table summarizes repurchasgesur common stock during the three months endedalry 1, 2011

Total Number of Approximate
Shares Purchased Dollar Value of
as Part of Shares that May
Average Price Publicly Yet Be Purchased
Total Number of Paid per Announced Plans Under the Plans
Period Shares Purchased Share or Programs or Programs
October 3, 2010 - — $ — — $ 110,000,01
October 30, 201
October 31, 2010 - — $ — — $ 110,000,01
November 27, 201
November 28, 201- — $ = — $ 110,000,01
January 1, 201
Total — $ — —

In July 2010, our Board of Directors authed a program to repurchase up to $150 millioowfcommon stock through 2011. The

program allows for repurchases to be made in tles oparket or in private transactions, includingictinred or accelerated transactions, subject
to applicable legal requirements and market comati
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

Please read this selected consolidateddinbdata in conjunction with "Management's Disios and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations,” our Consolidated FiiguStatements and the notes to those statemasitgled in this Form 10-K.

Fiscal Year
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
(in thousands, except per share date

Consolidated Statements
Income Date

Revenue! $ 493,34. $ 441,02( $ 415,63( $ 337,46. $ 288,15t
Operating incom: 86,67 66,51: 43,65¢3) 23,097 6,052
Income from continuing

operations 73,24. 73,0942) 32,9343) 39,681 15,34

Income from discontinued

operations, net of income

taxes — — — 165,14¢5) 15,81t
Net income $ 73,24. $ 73,0942)$ 32,93(3)$ 204,83¢(5)$ 31,15¢

Income from continuing
operations per shar

Basic $ 16 $ 16z $ 06 $ 07z $ 0.2¢
Diluted $ 157 $ 157 $ 067 $ 0.7¢C $ 0.27
Consolidated Balance Sheet
Data
Cash, cash equivalents and
investment: $ 383,36/(1)$ 434,89¢ $ 325,36((4)$ 572,9746)$ 386,29:
Working capital 414,07((1) 435,35¢ 289,71¢4) 599,30(6) 402,08!
Total asset 727,65{(1) 742,83 624,24Y4) 840,24(6) 686,99
Long-term obligation: 22,37: 24,40: 48,78¢ 43,30¢ 16,69!
Total stockholders' equi 625,43((1) 629,79¢ 502,46((4) 703,54! 568,68

@ Reflects repurchases of our common stock in fi204D0.
(2 Includes a benefit related to the resolution obipyiear uncertain tax benefits.

3 Includes a charge for in-process research and alewvelnt costs in connection with our acquisitionnségration
Associates.

4) Reflects repurchases of our common stock in fi20aB.
(5) Includes a gain on the sale of our Aero® produtdj net of related income taxes.

(6) Includes proceeds from the sale of our Aero protines, less repurchases of our common stock oaffid007.
Iltem 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis &inancial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis aBficial condition and results of operations shéédead in conjunction with the Consolidated
Financial Statements and related notes theretaded elsewhere in this report. This discussionainatforward-looking statements. Please see
the "Cautionary Statement" and "Risk Factors" alfoveliscussions of the uncertainties, risks arsiagptions associated with these
statements. Our fiscal year-end financial reporfirgods are a 52- or 53- week year ending on #ter8ay closest to December 31st. Fiscal
2010 and 2009 were 52-week years and ended onryahyu2011 and January 2, 2010, respectively. Figgar 2008 was a 53-week year with
the extra week occurring in the first quarter andesl on January 3, 2009.
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Overview

We design and develop proprietary, anatdgrisive, mixed-signal integrated circuits (ICg)ddoroad range of applications. Mixed-signal
ICs are electronic components that convert realedhamalog signals, such as sound and radio wamsdigital signals that electronic products
can process. Therefore, mixed-signal ICs are atiftomponents in a broad range of applicationsvargty of markets, including
communications, consumer, industrial, automotivedital and power management. Our major customehsde Apple, Cisco, Huawei,
LG Electronics, Nokia, Pace (formerly Philips), Baonic, Samsung, Technicolor (formerly Thomson)adan Medical Systems.

As a "fabless" semiconductor company, Vi @a third-party semiconductor fabricators in Asiad to a lesser extent the United States
and Europe, to manufacture the silicon wafersrdfict our IC designs. Each wafer contains numebe, which are cut from the wafer to
create a chip for an IC. We rely on third-partief\sia to assemble, package, and, in most casgthese devices and ship these units to our
customers. Testing performed by such third paftietitates faster delivery of products to our ausers (particularly those located in Asia),
shorter production cycle times, lower inventoryuiegments, lower costs and increased flexibilityest capacity.

Our expertise in analog-intensive, highfpenance, mixed-signal ICs enables us to develghlhidifferentiated solutions that address
multiple markets. We group our products into thiéofeing categories:

. Broad-based products, which include our microcdletrs, timing products (clocks and oscillators)reléss receivers, isolation
devices and human interface sensors;

. Broadcast products, which include our broadcastoaaid video products;
. Access products, which include our embedded mod¥uoise over IP (VolP) products and our Power ovitelnet devices; ar
. Mature products, which include certain devices #ratat the end of their respective life cycles tuailefore receive minimal or

no continued research and development investnm@sitiding our DSL analog front end ICs and IRDA des.

Through acquisitions and internal developnedforts, we have continued to diversify our protportfolio and introduce next generation
ICs with added functionality and further integratidn April 2010, we acquired Silicon Clocks, Ina.privately held company that designed
developed microelectromechanical system (MEMS)rteldgy to enable the manufacture of silicon resmrsaand sensors directly on standard
CMOS wafers. The acquired technology is alignedhwitr efforts to leverage our CMOS-based timingdpiats into high-volume applications
such as consumer electronics. In October 2010,cqeired ChipSensors Ltd, a privately held compduay treated innovative single-chip
CMOS sensors designed to detect temperature, htyraidd gases.

In fiscal 2010, we introduced a bridge claigily that simplifies the addition of USB and tbusense connectivity in embedded designs,
the expansion of our automotive portfolio with anfly of highly integrated AM/FM tuners for car séas, frequency flexible in-circuit
programmable CMOS clock generators, isolated gaterd designed for high-power Class D audio systgower management ICs that
improve efficiency in Power over Ethernet (PoE)ipqent, a Class D amplifier ideal for many portataldios and docking stations, a wireless
IC solution designed to be a remote control onip, dbw power capacitive touch-sense microcontrs|léigital isolators and isolated gate
drivers designed to replace traditional optocouplardigital TV demodulator that combines sateltiéerestrial and cable digital video broad:
(DVB) functions in one highly integrated devicer@quency-flexible timing IC solution for networlgrand telecommunications applications, a
family of ultra-low-power wireless microcontrolleideal for batterypowered systems and a highly integrated AM/FM regrefior analog tune
radios. We plan to continue to introduce productg increase the
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content we provide for existing applications, tisrenabling us to serve markets we do not curreagtiress and expanding our total available
market opportunity.

We had no customers that accounted for rinane 10% of our revenues during fiscal 2010 or&@uring fiscal 2009, we had one
customer, Samsung, whose purchases across a \a@r@tyduct areas represented 16% of our totalmeee. In addition to direct sales to
customers, some of our end customers purchasegisohdirectly from us through distributors and want manufacturers. An end customer
purchasing through a contract manufacturer typidaitructs such contract manufacturer to obtainpsaducts and incorporate such products
with other components for sale by such contractufearturer to the end customer. Although we actusdly the products to, and are paid by
distributors and contract manufacturers, we refesuich end customer as our customer. Two of otnitalisors, Edom Technology and Avnet,
represented 28% and 14% of our revenues duringl 810, and 27% and 10% of our revenues durirglfiz009, respectively. Edom
represented 31% of our revenues during fiscal 2008re were no other distributors or contract maciufrers that accounted for more than
10% of our revenues in fiscal 2010, 2009 or 2008.

The percentage of our revenues derived frostomers located outside of the United States86&sin fiscal 2010 and 88% in fiscal 2009
and 2008. All of our revenues to date have beeomérated in U.S. dollars. We believe that a majasitour revenues will continue to be
derived from customers outside of the United States

The sales cycle for our ICs can be as 32 months or more. An additional three to sixithe or more are usually required before a
customer ships a significant volume of devices ithedrporate our ICs. Due to this lengthy saledesywe typically experience a significant
delay between incurring research and developmehsalting, general and administrative expensesttamdorresponding sales. Consequently,
if sales in any quarter do not occur when expeaggenses and inventory levels could be disprapuately high, and our operating results for
that quarter and, potentially, future quarters wideg adversely affected. Moreover, the amountnoé tbetween initial research and
development and commercialization of a produaty#r, can be substantially longer than the saleke ¢gr the product. Accordingly, if we
incur substantial research and development costeuti developing a commercially successful prodoat,operating results, as well as our
growth prospects, could be adversely affected.

Because many of our ICs are designed feiusonsumer products such as televisions, persalen recorders, set-top boxes, portable
navigation devices and mobile handsets, we expatthe demand for our products will be typicallypject to some degree of seasonal
demand. However, rapid changes in our markets arudsour product areas make it difficult for uataurately estimate the impact of
seasonal factors on our business.

Results of Operations
The following describes the line itemsfeeth in our Consolidated Statements of Income:

Revenues. Revenues are generated almost exclusivelylbg s&our ICs. We recognize revenue on sales valierf the following
criteria are met: 1) there is persuasive evidehaean arrangement exists, 2) delivery of goodsokasrred, 3) the sales price is fixed or
determinable, and 4) collectibility is reasonaldgured. Generally, we recognize revenue from proshles to direct customers and contract
manufacturers upon shipment. Certain of our salesnade to distributors under agreements allowartam rights of return and price
protection on products unsold by distributors. Adbagly, we defer the revenue and cost of revenmusuzh sales until the distributors sell the
product to the end customer. Our products typioadiyy a one-year replacement warranty. Replacesttente been insignificant to date. Our
revenues are subject to variation from period tiopedue to the volume of shipments made withireaqal, the mix of products we sell and the
prices we charge for our products. The vast mgjarfitour revenues were negotiated at prices tHigtatea discount from the list prices
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for our products. These discounts are made foriatyeof reasons, including: 1) to establish atieteship with a new customer, 2) as an
incentive for customers to purchase products igelavolumes, 3) to provide profit margin to ourtdizutors who resell our products or 4) in
response to competition. In addition, as a prodcwatiures, we expect that the average selling poiceuch product will decline due to the
greater availability of competing products. Ouripio increase revenues in the future is depehdarincreased demand for our established
products and our ability to ship larger volumeshafse products in response to such demand, assvellr ability to develop or acquire new
products and subsequently achieve customer acasptdmewly introduced products.

Cost of Revenues. Cost of revenues includes the cost of purclgafiiished silicon wafers processed by indepenftamdries; costs
associated with assembly, test and shipping ofetiposducts; costs of personnel and equipment agedaivith manufacturing support, logist
and quality assurance; costs of software royadtiesamortization of purchased software, otherlgt&lal property license costs and certain
acquired intangible assets; an allocated portioouofoccupancy costs; and allocable depreciatidesting equipment and leasehold
improvements.

Research and Development. Research and development expense consistsryimiapersonnel-related expenses, including stock
compensation, new product mask, wafer, packagidgest costs, external consulting and servicesgcegtiipment tooling, equipment
depreciation, amortization of acquired intangildeeds, as well as an allocated portion of our c@eay costs for such operations. Research anc
development activities include the design of neadpicts, refinement of existing products and desigiest methodologies to ensure
compliance with required specifications.

Selling, General and Administrative. Selling, general and administrative expenseists primarily of personnel-related expenses,
including stock compensation, related allocabldiporof our occupancy costs, sales commissionsdegendent sales representatives,
applications engineering support, professional, flsgml fees and promotional and marketing expenses

In-Process Research and Development.In-process research and development (IPR&Demmts acquired technology resulting from
business combinations that had not achieved teobiwall feasibility as of the acquisition closingeland had no alternative future use. For
acquisitions occurring prior to fiscal 2009, thessts were expensed on the date of acquisitionnBigy in fiscal 2009, IPR&D is capitalized
until the related projects are completed, at whiicte they begin to be amortized. IPR&D is writteffiibthe related projects are abandoned.

Interest Income. Interest income reflects interest earned oncash, cash equivalents and investment balances.
Interest Expense. Interest expense consists of interest on oait simd long-term obligations.

Other Income (Expense), Net. Other income (expense), net consists primafifipreign currency remeasurement adjustments #sa@
other non-operating income and expenses.

Provision (Benefit) for Income Taxes. Provision (benefit) for income taxes includeshbdomestic and foreign income taxes at the
applicable statutory rates adjusted for non-debletxpenses, research and development tax cegditsther permanent differences.
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The following table sets forth our Consatied Statements of Income data as a percentageeriues for the periods indicated:

Year Ended
January 1, January 2, January 3,
2011 2010 2009
Revenue: 100.(% 100.(% 100.(%
Cost of revenue 34.5 36.€ 38.t
Gross margit 65.7 63.4 61.5
Operating expense
Research and
developmen 25.1 23.7 24.¢
Selling, general an
administrative 23.C 24.7 24.2
In-process research and
developmen — — 2.3
Operating expenst 48.1 48.4 51.C
Operating incom 17.€ 15.C 10.£
Other income (expense
Interest incomt 0.4 0.7 2.8
Interest expens 0.C 0.C (0.7
Other income (expense
net 0.3 0.C (0.2)
Income before income tax 17.7 15.7 12.¢
Provision (benefit) fo
income taxe! 2.8 (0.9 4.¢
Net income 14.€% 16.€% 7.%
Comparison of Fiscal 2010 to Fiscal 2009
Revenues
Year Ended
January 1, January 2, %
(in millions) 2011 2010 Change Change
Revenue: $ 493: $ 441.C $ 52: 11.%%

The growth in revenues in fiscal 2010 was grimarily to improvements in the health of omwqucts' end markets and increases in m
share. Unit volumes of our products increased coatpto fiscal 2009 by 2.8%. Average selling priceseased during the same period by
9.3%. In general, as our products become more mateg expect to experience decreases in averdgeggmices. We anticipate that newly
announced, higher priced, next generation produadsproduct derivatives will offset some of theserdases.

Gross Margin

Year Ended
January 1, January 2, %
(in millions) 2011 2010 Change Change
Gross margir $ 3247 $ 279.6 $ 444 15.9%
Percent of revenu 65.7% 63.2%

The increase in the dollar amount of grassgin in fiscal 2010 was primarily due to our ieased sales. The increase in gross margin as
percent of revenue in fiscal 2010 was primarily ttuehanges in product mix, improvements in oueimery management and manufacturing
cost
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reductions. We may experience declines in the geesalling prices of certain of our products. Tdrisates downward pressure on gross ms
as a percentage of revenues and may be offset textent we are able to: 1) introduce higher mamgiw products and gain market share with
our ICs; 2) achieve lower production costs from wafer suppliers and third-party assembly andgebtontractors; 3) achieve lower
production costs per unit as a result of improvietdg throughout the manufacturing process; oedlice logistics costs.

Research and Development

Year Ended
January 1, January 2, %
(in millions) 2011 2010 Change Change
Research and developm $ 123¢8 $ 1044 $ 194 18.€%
Percent of revenu 25.1% 23. 1%

The increase in research and developmearese in fiscal 2010 was principally due to anéase of $15.0 million for personnel-related
expenses. We expect that research and developxmarse will continue to increase in absolute dsliarthe first quarter of 2011.

Recent development projects include a lerictgjp family that simplifies the addition of USBdatouch sense connectivity in embedded
designs, the expansion of our automotive portfalith a family of highly integrated AM/FM tuners foar stereos, frequency flexible in-circuit
programmable CMOS clock generators, isolated gaterd designed for high-power Class D audio systggower management ICs that
improve efficiency in PoE equipment, a Class D afieplideal for many portable radios and dockingtisins, a wireless IC solution designei
be a remote control on a chip, low power capacitiveh-sense microcontrollers, digital isolatord &wolated gate drivers designed to replace
traditional optocouplers, a digital TV demodulatioat combines satellite, terrestrial and cable DWiBctions in one highly integrated device, a
frequency-flexible timing IC solution for networlgrand telecommunications applications, a familylefa-low-power wireless
microcontrollers ideal for battery-powered systend a highly integrated AM/FM receiver for analaged radios.

In-Process Research and Development

In connection with the purchase of Siliciocks, we acquired certain in-process researctdamdlopment (IPR&D) assets. These costs
were capitalized until the related projects are pleted, at which time they begin to be amortiz&R&D is written-off if the related projects
are abandoned. The fair value of each project wé&srghined using the income approach. The discatetapplicable to the cash flows was
19.0%. This rate reflects the weighted-average @sapital and the risks inherent in the develophpeocess. The IPR&D recorded in
connection with the acquisition consisted of thiéofeing (in thousands):

Fair
Project Value
Resonato $ 5,20(
Clocks 4,27(
$ 9,47(

We are developing the IPR&D projects usigMS technology. The remaining research and devetoy efforts include additional
design, integration and testing. As of the acquisitiate, we projected the costs to complete thgepts to be $8.1 million. Such costs have
been consistent with our assumptions at the tinteeoacquisition. The significant risks associatgtth the successful completion of these
projects include our potential inability to finigie product designs, produce
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working models and gain customer acceptance. [atitucomplete these projects in a timely manneldcasult in lost revenues.

Selling, General and Administrative

Year Ended
January 1, January 2, %
(in millions) 2011 2010 Change Change
Selling, general and administrati $ 113¢ $ 108 $ 5. 4.5%
Percent of revenu 23.(% 24.1%

The increase in selling, general and adstrimive expense in fiscal 2010 was principally ttuan increase of $2.1 million for legal fees,
primarily related to acquisition-related costs éitigation. The decrease in selling, general anthiadstrative expense as a percent of revenues
in fiscal 2010 is due to our increased sales. Weeixthat selling, general and administrative egpenill increase in absolute dollars in the
quarter of 2011.

Interest Income

Year Ended
January 1, January 2,
(in millions) 2011 2010 Change
Interest incom $ 232 $ 27 $ (0.9

The decrease in interest income in fis@dl®Pwas largely due to lower interest rates orutigerlying instruments, partially offset by a
higher average investment balance.

Interest Expense
Interest expense in fiscal 2010 was $0llianicompared to $0.2 million in fiscal 2009.
Other Income (Expense), Net

Other income (expense), net in fiscal 2@&8 $(1.3) million compared to $(0.1) million is¢al 2009. The change was primarily due to
foreign currency remeasurement adjustments.

Provision (Benefit) for Income Taxes

Year Ended
January 1, January 2,
(in millions) 2011 2010 Change
Provision (benefit) for incorr
taxes $ 144 % 4. $ 18¢t
Effective tax rate 16.2% (6.0)%

The effective tax rate for fiscal 2010 ased from the prior period, primarily due to tegalution of uncertain tax positions as a result of
entering into an Advance Pricing Agreement with th8. Internal Revenue Service during the fourtartgr of fiscal 2009. In addition, the
effective tax rate for fiscal 2010 increased frdma prior period due to the intercompany licenseesfain technology obtained in the acquisi
of Silicon Clocks during the second quarter ofdis2010. The increase in the effective tax rate paatially offset by an increase in the federal
research and development credit in fiscal 2010.

The effective tax rates for each of thequks presented differ from the federal statutote & 35% due to the amount of income earned in
foreign jurisdictions where the tax rate may bedothan
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the federal statutory rate, research and developtarmcredits and other permanent items includimgnges to the liability for unrecognized tax
benefits.

Comparison of Fiscal 2009 to Fiscal 2008

Revenues
Year Ended
January 2, January 3, %
(in millions) 2010 2009 Change Change
Revenue: $ 441.C $ 415¢€¢ $ 254 6.1%

The growth in revenues in fiscal 2009 wasgeth primarily by market share gains. Increased wolumes outpaced declines in average
selling prices. Unit volumes of our products ina@é compared to fiscal 2008 by 19.6%. Averagergpefirices decreased during the same
period by 10.8%.

Gross Margin

Year Ended
January 2, January 3, %
(in millions) 2010 2009 Change Change
Gross margir $ 2796 $ 255.¢& $ 24.( 9.4%
Percent of revenu 63.2% 61.5%

The increase in the dollar amount of gmssgin in fiscal 2009 was primarily due to our isased sales. The increase in gross margin as
percent of revenue in fiscal 2009 was primarily thua charge of $2.2 million to record inventorygjaiced from Integration Associates at fair
value during fiscal 2008, improvements in our ineep management and manufacturing cost reductions.

Research and Development

Year Ended
January 2, January 3, %
(in millions) 2010 2009 Change Change
Research and developm $ 1044 $ 101:Z $ 3.2 3.2%
Percent of revenu 23.1% 24.%

The increase in research and developmemrese in fiscal 2009 was principally due to anéase of $3.7 million for personnel-related
expenses, including personnel costs associatedgthcquisition of Integration Associates. Therdase in research and development exp
as a percent of revenues is due to our increasesl sa

Selling, General and Administrative

Year Ended
January 2, January 3, %
(in millions) 2010 2009 Change Change
Selling, general and administrati $ 108.¢ $ 1007 $ 81 8.1%
Percent of revenu 24.7% 24.2%

The increase in selling, general and adstriaive expense in fiscal 2009 was principally thuan increase of $8.7 million for personnel-
related expenses, including personnel costs asedaidth the acquisition of Integration Associates.
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In-process research and development (IPR&B9rded in connection with the acquisition oklyriation Associates was $10.3 million in
fiscal 2008. The IPR&D projects included optoelentc, power, and radio transmitter and transcei@ehnnologies. The optoelectronic projects
are used for infrared data communications and pritxisensing. The power projects enable AC-DC cosiva in power supply systems. The
radio transmitters and transceivers projects ertablelelivery of data over proprietary, short rangeeless links. The fair value of each project
was determined using the income approach. The digcate applicable to the cash flows was 20%. Wdtis reflects the weighted-average cost
of capital and the risks inherent in the developnpeacess.

There was no acquisition of IPR&D in fis@&I09.

Interest Income

Year Ended
January 2, January 3,
(in millions) 2010 2009 Change
Interest incom $ 27 $ 104 $ (7.7)

The decrease in interest income for themeperiod was due to lower interest rates on titetlying instruments and lower average cash
and investment balances.

Interest Expense
Interest expense in fiscal 2009 was $0/Ranicompared to $0.4 million in fiscal 2008.
Other Income (Expense), Net
Other income (expense), net in fiscal 28@8 $(0.1) million compared to $(0.6) million irs¢al 2008.

Provision (Benefit) for Income Taxes

Year Ended
January 2, January 3,
(in millions) 2010 2009 Change
Provision (benefit) for incorr
taxes $ 4. $ 20z $ (24.9
Effective tax rate (6.0% 38.(%

The effective tax rate for fiscal 2009 d=xged from the prior period, primarily due to ragoh of uncertain tax positions as a result of
entering into an Advance Pricing Agreement withth8. Internal Revenue Service during the fourtartgr of fiscal 2009. In addition, the
effective tax rate for fiscal 2009 decreased fromrior period due to the intercompany licenseearfain technology and the non-deductible
write-off of in-process research and developmestsduring fiscal 2008, both of which were relaiethe acquisition of Integration
Associates.

The effective tax rates for each of thaquky presented differ from the federal statutotg &f 35% due to the amount of income earned in
foreign jurisdictions where the tax rate may bedowhan the federal statutory rate, the limiteduib#ithility of stock compensation expense and
other permanent items including changes to thditiafor unrecognized tax benefits.
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We expect revenues in the first quartdiszial 2011 to be in the range of $116 to $122iaomll Furthermore, we expect our diluted
earnings per share, exclusive of expected chagdated to the January 2011 acquisition of Spedtredr, to be in the range of $0.14 to $0.20.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our principal sources of liquidity as ohdary 1, 2011 consisted of $365.9 million in casish equivalents and short-term investments.
Our cash equivalents and short-term investmentsisioprimarily of corporate bonds, U.S. Treasufisbmoney market funds, variable-rate
demand notes, municipal bonds, U.S. governmentagygaeonds and discount notes, international govemends, certificates of deposit and
commercial paper.

Our long-term investments consist of auctiate securities. Early in fiscal 2008, auctiomsrhany of our auction-rate securities failed
because sell orders exceeded buy orders. As oadatu2011, we held $19.7 million par value autfiate securities, all of which have
experienced failed auctions. The securities hadipusly been valued using quoted prices in actieek®ts. When the auctions began to fail,
guoted prices for the securities were no longeendable. As such, we changed our fair value measemeé methodology for all auction-rate
securities from quoted prices in active marketa tash flow model. The assumptions used in pregdhni@ discounted cash flow model include
estimates for interest rates, amount of cash flewsected holding periods of the securities anideodnt to reflect our inability to liquidate t|
securities.

The underlying assets of our auctiate securities consisted of student loans andeipaiibonds, of which $17.7 million were guarant
by the U.S. government and the remaining $2.0 onilivere privately insured. As of January 1, 2011%,.% million of the auctiomate securitie
had credit ratings of AAA and $2.0 million had citedtings of A. These securities had contractuaturity dates ranging from 2029 to 2046
and were yielding 0.6% to 3.3% per year at JantigB011. We are receiving the underlying cash flowsll of our auctiomate securities. Tt
principal amounts associated with failed auctiomsreot expected to be accessible until a succeasfition occurs, the issuer redeems the
security, a buyer is found outside of the auctiomcpss or the underlying securities mature. Weuaable to predict if these funds will become
available before their maturity dates. We do ngtest to need access to the capital representedybgfaour auctiorrate securities prior to thi
maturities. We do not intend to sell, and we baithat it is not more likely than not that we viié required to sell, our auction-rate securities
before their anticipated recovery in market valuéral settlement at the underlying par value.

Net cash provided by operating activitiesv117.9 million during fiscal 2010, compared ¢b cash provided of $120.9 million during
fiscal 2009. Operating cash flows during fiscal @@&flect our net income of $73.2 million, adjustriteeof $60.0 million for depreciation,
amortization, stock compensation and deferred irectares, and a net cash outflow of $15.3 millioa thuchanges in our operating assets and
liabilities.

Accounts receivable decreased to $45.0anilit January 1, 2011 from $56.1 million at Jagar2010. The decrease in accounts
receivable resulted primarily from a decrease ipralents during the last quarter of fiscal 2010 careg to the last quarter of the prior year.
Our average days sales outstanding (DSO) was 35atajanuary 1, 2011 and 40 days at January 2, 2010

Inventory increased to $39.4 million atuJary 1, 2011 from $31.5 million at January 2, 20Q0r inventory level is primarily impacted |
our need to make purchase commitments to supp@etdsted demand and variations between forecastedciual demand. The increase in
inventory over the prior year resulted primarilgrr actual demand falling short of our forecastemha®d. Our average days of inventory (D
was 87 days at January 1, 2011 and 65 days atrya2u2010.
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Net cash used in investing activities wa5.8 million during fiscal 2010, compared to nesltaised of $104.3 million during fiscal 2009.
The decrease was principally due to a decreasg®7 $nillion in net outflows for purchases of intreents, offset by an increase in net
payments of $23.7 million for the acquisition ofsimesses.

We anticipate capital expenditures of appnately $15 to $20 million for fiscal 2011. Additially, as part of our growth strategy, we
expect to evaluate opportunities to invest in auéie other businesses, intellectual property dntelogies that would complement or expand
our current offerings, expand the breadth of ourketa or enhance our technical capabilities. Omdgn25, 2011, we acquired Spectra Linear,
a privately held company, for approximately $40limnil in cash, subject to certain working capitgluatinents, plus potential additional
consideration of up to $10 million tied to the raue of the acquired products exceeding $16 millioring 2011.

Net cash used in financing activities wa$%9 million during fiscal 2010, compared to naste provided of $6.9 million during fiscal
2009. The decrease in cash flows was principalytdian increase of $120.2 million for repurchasfesur common stock. In July 2010, our
Board of Directors authorized a program to repusehap to $150 million of our common stock priothe end of 2011.

Contractual Obligations
The following table summarizes our contwatobligations as of January 1, 2011 (in thousands

Payments due by perioc

Total 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Thereafter
Operating lease
obligations(1) $ 26,120 $ 7,67¢ $ 754z $ 3,427 $ 152 $ 147t $ 4,48F
Purchase obligation
(2) 38,50¢ 38,47¢ 31 — — — —
Other lon¢-term
obligations(3) 2,46¢ — 2,10( 10C — — 264

(1) Operating lease obligations include amounts fasdddacilities.

(2) Purchase obligations include contractual arrangésriarthe form of purchase orders with supplieremetthere is a fixed
non-cancelable payment schedule or minimum payntrésvith a reduced delivery schedule.

(3)  We are unable to make a reasonably reliable estiamato when or if cash settlement with taxing aewities will occur for
our unrecognized tax benefits. Therefore, our lighdof $10.8 million for unrecognized tax benefissnot included in the
table above. See Note JIIncome Taxesto the Consolidated Financial Statements for aafufii information

Our future capital requirements will depemdmany factors, including the rate of sales ghowtarket acceptance of our products, the
timing and extent of research and development pt®j@otential acquisitions of companies or tecbgigls and the expansion of our sales and
marketing activities. We believe our existing casld investment balances are sufficient to meetapital requirements through at least the
next 12 months, although we could be requiredpaidcelect, to seek additional funding prior totttime. We may enter into acquisitions or
strategic arrangements in the future which alsddcoequire us to seek additional equity or debarficing.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

In March 2006, we entered into an operal#age agreement and a related participation agnetefor a facility at 400 W. Cesar Chavez
("400 WCC") in Austin, Texas for our corporate hgadrters. The lease has a term of seven yeardddeerent for the term of the lease is an
amount equal to the interest accruing on $44.3onilat 110 basis points over the three-month LIBOR

39




Table of Contents

(which would be approximately $1.4 million over tfemaining term assuming LIBOR averages 0.30% dwsiurch term).

In March 2008, we entered into an operal#@ge agreement and a related participation agnetefor a facility at 200 W. Cesar Chavez
("200 WCC") in Austin, Texas for the expansion af eorporate headquarters. The lease has a tefiregfears. The base rent for the term of
the lease is an amount equal to the interest atgn $50.1 million at 155 basis points over thre¢ghmonth LIBOR (which would be
approximately $2.1 million over the remaining teassuming LIBOR averages 0.30% during such term).

We have granted certain rights and remddiéise lessors in the event of certain defauttsiuiding the right to terminate the leases, to
bring suit to collect damages, and to compel yarghase the facilities. The leases contain othstotnary representations, warranties,
obligations, conditions, indemnification provisioaisd termination provisions, including covenantt thie shall maintain unencumbered cash
and highly-rated short-term investments of at 1&&& million. If our unencumbered cash and higlated short-term investments are less than
$150 million, we must also maintain a ratio of fedddebt to earnings before interest expense, in¢axres, depreciation, amortization, lease
expense and other non-cash charges (EBITDAR) dnefaur prior fiscal quarters of no greater thao 2. As of January 1, 2011, we believe
we were in compliance with all covenants of theséesa

During the terms of the leases, we hav@aing options to purchase the buildings for pureh@asces of approximately $44.3 million for
400 WCC and $50.1 million for 200 WCC. Alternatiyelve can cause each such property to be soldrtbghrties provided we are not in
default under that property's lease. We are coetitlg liable on a first dollar loss basis for uph@5.3 million to the extent that the 400 WCC
sale proceeds are less than the $44.3 million pebption and up to $40.0 million to the exteat the 200 WCC sale proceeds are less than
the $50.1 million purchase option.

We determined that the fair value assodiati¢th the guaranteed residual values was $1.Gamifor 400 WCC and $1.2 million for 200
WCC, as of the inception of the leases. These atsouere recorded in "Other assets, net" and "Lengrobligations and other liabilities™ in
the Consolidated Balance Sheets and are being iaetbdver the term of the leases.

We are required to periodically evaluaie ¢lxpected fair value of each facility at the ehthe lease terms. If we determine that it is
estimable and probable that the expected fair galikk be less than $44.3 million for 400 WCC argD$#. million for 200 WCC, we will
ratably accrue the loss up to a maximum of appraséty $35.3 million and $40.0 million, respectivebywer the remaining lease terms as
additional rent expense. As of January 1, 2011davaot believe that a loss contingency accruadsiired for either property. However, a
prolonged economic downturn could increase thdiliked of such a loss accrual.

In connection with our headquarters leagesng fiscal 2008 we entered into interest ratasagreements as a hedge against the variabl
rent under the leases. Under the terms of the ssgegements, we have effectively converted the berigents to fixed rents through March
2011 for 400 WCC and March 2013 for 200 WCC. SeteNgDerivative Financial Instrumentsto the Consolidated Financial Statements for
additional information.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements arcbmpanying notes in conformity with U.S. gengratcepted accounting principles requires
that we make estimates and assumptions that affee@mounts reported. Changes in facts and cireumoss could have a significant impact on
the resulting estimated amounts included in therfoial statements. We believe the following criteecounting
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policies affect our more complex judgments andhestes. We also have other policies that we considee key accounting policies, such as
our policies for revenue recognition, including theferral of revenues and cost of revenues on galdistributors; however, these policies do
not meet the definition of critical accounting esties because they do not generally require uske rastimates or judgments that are difficult
or subjective.

Inventory valuatior—We assess the recoverability of inventories thraihghapplication of a set of methods, assumptiosestimates. |
determining net realizable value, we write downeimory that may be slow moving or have some formbsolescence, including inventory
that has aged more than 12 months. We also atigistaiuation of inventory when its standard coseexls the estimated market value. We
assess the potential for any unusual customemehased on known quality or business issues aitel-off inventory losses for scrap or non-
saleable material. Inventory not otherwise ideatifio be written down is compared to an assessofi@ur 12-month forecasted demand. The
result of this methodology is compared againsipttoeluct life cycle and competitive situations ie tharketplace to determine the
appropriateness of the resulting inventory levlsmand for our products may fluctuate significamer time, and actual demand and market
conditions may be more or less favorable than thiwsewe project. In the event that actual demaridvwer or market conditions are worse t
originally projected, additional inventory writeagdas may be required.

Stock-based compensatietWe recognize the fair-value of stock-based comgiéms transactions in the Consolidated Statement of
Income. The fair value of our stock-based awarasisnated at the date of grant using the Blaclelshoption pricing model. The Black-
Scholes valuation calculation requires us to edgrkay assumptions such as future stock price ilitfaexpected terms, risk-free rates and
dividend yield. Expected stock price volatilitydased on implied volatility from traded optionsaur stock in the marketplace and historical
volatility of our stock. The expected term of opisogranted is derived from an analysis of histbes&rcises and remaining contractual life of
stock options, and represents the period of timedptions granted are expected to be outstantdliimgrisk-free rate is based on the U.S.
Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of graie have never paid cash dividends, and do notitly intend to pay cash dividends, and
thus have assumed a 0% dividend yield. In additiaare required to estimate the expected forfeitate of our stock grants and only
recognize the expense for those shares expectegstolf our actual experience differs significgrfiom the assumptions used to compute our
stock-based compensation cost, or if different mggions had been used, we may have recorded toh orutoo little stock-based
compensation cost. See Note $%ck-Based Compensatipto the Consolidated Financial Statements fortamdil information.

Investments in auction-rate securitiedVe determine the fair value of our investmentaustion-rate securities using a discounted cash
flow model. The assumptions used in preparing theadinted cash flow model include estimates farigst rates, amount of cash flows,
expected holding periods of the securities andseadint to reflect our inability to liquidate thecseties. For available-for-sale auction-rate
securities, if the calculated value is below theydéag amount of the securities, we then deternifitiee decline in value is other-than-
temporary. We consider various factors in detemgnivhether an impairment is other-thi@mporary, including the severity and durationie
impairment, changes in underlying credit ratingsefasted recovery, our intent to sell or the iil@d that we would be required to sell the
investment before its anticipated recovery in meaviedue and the probability that the scheduled gagiments will continue to be made. When
we conclude that an other-than-temporary impairrhastoccurred, we assess whether we intend ttheedlecurity or if it is more likely than
not that we will be required to sell the securigfdre recovery. If either of these two conditiossriet, we recognize a charge in earnings equal
to the entire difference between the security'sréimeal cost basis and its fair value. If we do imt¢nd to sell a security or it is not more likely
than not that we will be required to sell the séguyefore recovery,

41




Table of Contents

the unrealized loss is separated into an amoungsepting the credit loss, which is recognizedamings, and the amount related to all other
factors, which is recorded in accumulated otherp@imensive loss.

Acquired intangible assetsWhen we acquire a business, a portion of the @selprice is typically allocated to identifiablégingible
assets, such as acquired technology and custotagonships. Fair value of these assets is detedhprimarily using the income approach,
which requires us to project future cash flows apgly an appropriate discount rate. We amortizanigible assets with finite lives over their
expected useful lives. Our estimates are based agpsumptions believed to be reasonable but whiinderently uncertain and unpredictable.
Assumptions may be incomplete or inaccurate, amohticipated events and circumstances may occunriect estimates could result in future
impairment charges, and those charges could beialateour results of operations.

Impairment of goodwill and other long-livadsets—We review long-lived assets which are held andlpseluding fixed assets and
purchased intangible assets, for impairment whanevanges in circumstances indicate that the gagrgimount of the assets may not be
recoverable. Such evaluations compare the cargmmgunt of an asset to future undiscounted net ftasis expected to be generated by the
asset over its expected useful life and are sicanifly impacted by estimates of future prices amldmes for our products, capital needs,
economic trends and other factors which are inHbréifficult to forecast. If the asset is considdrto be impaired, we record an impairment
charge equal to the amount by which the carryirigevaf the asset exceeds its fair value determiyeeither a quoted market price, if any, or a
value determined by utilizing a discounted castvftechnique.

We test our goodwill for impairment annyadks of the first day of our fourth fiscal quaréerd in interim periods if certain events occur
indicating that the carrying value of goodwill miag impaired. The goodwill impairment test is a tstep process. The first step of the
impairment analysis compares our fair value tormtrbook value. In determining fair value, the astong guidance allows for the use of
several valuation methodologies, although it stgtested market prices are the best evidence of#ire. If the fair value is less than the net
book value, the second step of the analysis corapiaesimplied fair value of our goodwill to its e@ing amount. If the carrying amount of
goodwill exceeds its implied fair value, we recagnan impairment loss equal to that excess amount.

Income taxes-We are required to estimate income taxes in e&tiegurisdictions in which we operate. This pregévolves estimating
the actual current tax liability together with assiag temporary differences in recognition of ineofloss) for tax and accounting purposes.
These differences result in deferred tax assetdialnitities, which are included in our ConsoliddtBalance Sheet. We then assess the
likelihood that the deferred tax assets will beokered from future taxable income and, to the ebstenbelieve that recovery is not likely, we
establish a valuation allowance against the dedear asset.

We recognize liabilities for uncertain faasitions based on a two-step process. The feptrgtquires us to determine if the weight of
available evidence indicates that the tax positias met the threshold for recognition; therefore must evaluate whether it is more likely tl
not that the position will be sustained on audit]uding resolution of any related appeals orditigh processes. The second step requires us tc
measure the tax benefit of the tax position tabemxpected to be taken, in an income tax retuthetargest amount that is more than 50%
likely of being realized upon ultimate settlemerttiis measurement step is inherently complex andires| subjective estimations of such
amounts to determine the probability of varioussilale outcomes. We re-evaluate the uncertain takipos each quarter based on factors
including, but not limited to, changes in factscocumstances, changes in tax law, expirationgatfites of limitation, effectively settled issues
under audit, and new audit activity. Such a changecognition or measurement would result in #@gnition of a tax benefit or an additio
charge to the tax provision in the period.

42




Table of Contents

Although we believe the measurement ofliailities for uncertain tax positions is reasoleqlmo assurance can be given that the final
outcome of these matters will not be different thdrat is reflected in the historical income tax\pstmns and accruals. If additional taxes are
assessed as a result of an audit or litigatiacgutd have a material effect on our income tax @ion and net income in the period or periods
for which that determination is made. We operatiiwimultiple taxing jurisdictions and are subjeztwudit in these jurisdictions. These audits
can involve complex issues which may require arretd period of time to resolve and could resutdditional assessments of income tax.
We believe adequate provisions for income taxeg l@en made for all periods.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2010, the Financial Accountitgndards Board (FASB) issued FASB Accounting StedglUpdate (ASU) No. 2010-29,
Business Combinations (Topic 8—Disclosure of Supplementary Pro Forma InformafienBusiness Combinationshis ASU addresses
diversity in practice about the interpretationtod fpro forma revenue and earnings disclosure rexpeints for business combinations. The ASU
clarifies that when presenting comparative finahsfatements, an entity should disclose revenuesamings of the combined entity as though
the business combination(s) that occurred duriegctirrent year had occurred as of the beginningetomparable prior annual reporting
period only. The ASU also expands the supplemegmtaforma disclosures under Topic 805 to includkescription of the nature and amoun
material, nonrecurring pro forma adjustments diyeattributable to the business combination inctlidethe reported pro forma revenue and
earnings. ASU 201@9 is effective prospectively for business comhoreat for which the acquisition date is on or after beginning of the fir:
annual reporting period beginning on or after Deloendi5, 2010. The adoption of this ASU is not expeéto have a material impact on our
financial statements.

In January 2010, the FASB issued FASB ASL 2010-06Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (Topic 82@)proving
Disclosures about Fair Value Measureme. This ASU requires new disclosures about signifi¢eansfers in and out of Levels 1 and 2 fair
value measurements and separate disclosures aliohbpes, sales, issuances and settlements rdlatieyel 3 fair value measurements. The
ASU also clarifies existing disclosure requiremeastgarding inputs and valuation techniques, as agethe level of disaggregation for each
class of assets and liabilities for which sepafaitevalue measurements should be disclosed. WptaddASU 2010-06 at the beginning of
fiscal 2010, except for the separate disclosuresitgiurchases, sales, issuances and settlemeatiageb Level 3 measurements, which is
effective for us at the beginning of fiscal 201heTadoption of this ASU did not have a materialactpand the deferred provisions of this £
are not expected to have a material impact, orfioancial statements.

Iltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure about Market Risk
Interest Income¢

Our investment portfolio includes cash hcaquivalents, short-term investments and long-fesastments. Our main investment
objectives are the preservation of investment ahpitd the maximization of aftésx returns on our investment portfolio. Our ingri@come i
sensitive to changes in the general level of Lhfrest rates. Our investment portfolio holdingsfaanuary 1, 2011 and January 2, 2010
yielded less than 100 basis points. A decline @idyio zero basis points on our investment podfbbldings as of January 1, 2011 ¢
January 2, 2010 would decrease our annual interesine by approximately $2.2 million and $2.6 moifij respectively. We believe that our
investment policy is conservative, both in the dioraof our investments and the credit qualityhed tnvestments we hold.
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Headquarters Lease Re

We are exposed to interest rate fluctuatiorthe normal course of our business, includimmgugh our corporate headquarters leases. The
base rents for these leases are calculated usiagadble interest rate based on the three-montfORBWe have entered into interest rate swap
agreements with notional values of $44.3 milliod &50.1 million and, effectively, fixed the rentypaent amounts on these leases through
March 2011 and March 2013, respectively. The falug of the interest rate swap agreements at Jadua011 was a $3.8 million obligation.

Investments in Aucti-rate Securities

Beginning in fiscal 2008, auctions for marfyour auction-rate securities failed becausemelkrs exceeded buy orders. As of January 1,
2011, we held $19.7 million par value auction-isgeurities, all of which have experienced failedtans. The principal amounts associated
with failed auctions are not expected to be acbéssintil a successful auction occurs, the issedeems the securities, a buyer is found outside
of the auction process or the underlying securitiasure. We are unable to predict if these fundshe@come available before their maturity
dates. Additionally, if we determine that an otligan-temporary decline in the fair value of anyof available-for-sale auction-rate securities
has occurred, we may be required to adjust thgiogrrvalue of the investments through an impairnaratrge.

Iltem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary &a

The Financial Statements and supplemelaty required by this item are included in Partlt¥tn 15 of this Form 16 and are present:
beginning on page F-1.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accotants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None.
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

We have performed an evaluation under tipevision and with the participation of our managet, including our Chief Executive
Officer (CEQO) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO), thie effectiveness of our disclosure controls amt@dures, as defined in Rule 13a-15(e)
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the Brgk Act). Based on that evaluation, our managerrertiding our CEO and CFO,
concluded that our disclosure controls and procesiwere effective as of January 1, 2011 to prorédsonable assurance that information
required to be disclosed by us in the reports filedubmitted by us under the Exchange Act is arprocessed, summarized and reported
within the time periods specified in the SEC's sudad forms. Such disclosure controls and procednptude controls and procedures desig
to ensure that information required to be discldseatcumulated and communicated to our managemnehiding our CEO and CFO, to allow
timely decisions regarding required disclosuresrélwas no change in our internal controls duttirgfiscal quarter ended January 1, 2011
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to erélly affect, our internal controls over finarlcieporting.

Management's Report on Internal Control over Finangal Reporting

Our management is responsible for estahlishnd maintaining adequate internal control diremcial reporting. Our internal control
system was designed to provide reasonable assu@ooe management and Board of Directors regartiagreparation and fair presentation
of published financial statements.
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Our management assessed the effectivehess mternal control over financial reporting @sJanuary 1, 2011. In making this
assessment, it used the criteria set forth by thar@ittee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tregd@ammission (COSO) imternal
Control—Integrated FrameworkBased on our assessment we concluded that,Jamoéry 1, 2011, our internal control over finahcia
reporting is effective based on those criteria.

Our independent registered public accogrfitm, Ernst & Young LLP, issued an attestatiopa® on our internal control over financial
reporting. This report appears on page F-1.

Iltem 9B. Other Information

None.

Part Ill

Certain information required by Part Illamitted from this report because we intend todil@efinitive Proxy Statement pursuant to
Regulation 14A (the "Proxy Statement") no latemth20 days after the end of the fiscal year covésethis report, and certain information to
be included therein is incorporated herein by egfee.

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corprmate Governance

Set forth below is information regarding #xecutive officers and directors of Silicon Ladtories as of January 31, 2011.

Name Age Position

Navdeep S. Sooc 48 Chairman of the Boar

Necip Sayine 45 Chief Executive Officer, President and Direc
William G. Bock 60 Chief Financial Officer and Senior Vice Presid
Jonathan D. lveste 55  Senior Vice President of Worldwide Operatic
Kurt W. Hoff 53 Vice President of Worldwide Sal:

Paul V. Walsh, Jr. 46 Chief Accounting Officer and Vice President of Hina
David R. Wellanc 55 Vice President and Direct

Harvey B. Casl 72 Director

R. Ted Enloe llI 72 Director

Kristen M. Onker 61 Director

Laurence G. Walke 62 Director

William P. Wood 55 Director

Navdeep S. Sooch co-founded Silicon Laloies in August 1996 and has served as ChairméredBoard since our inception.
Mr. Sooch served as our Chief Executive Officenfrour inception through the end of fiscal 2003 aan/ed as interim Chief Executive
Officer from April 2005 to September 2005. From ktad 985 until founding Silicon Laboratories, Mr.d8h held various positions at Crystal
Semiconductor/Cirrus Logic, a designer and manufactof integrated circuits, including Vice Presitlef Engineering, as well as Product
Planning Manager of Strategic Marketing and De&ggineer. From May 1982 to March 1985, Mr. Soock w@®esign Engineer with AT&T
Bell Labs. Mr. Sooch holds a B.S. in Electrical Exagring from the University of Michigan, Dearb@nd an M.S. in Electrical Engineering
from Stanford University. Mr. Sooch's prior expege as our Chief Executive Officer as well as aisenductor designer provides him with
extensive insight into our operations and qualifigs to serve as Chairman of our Board of Directors

Necip Sayiner has served as director, 8eesiand Chief Executive Officer of Silicon Laband¢s since September 2005. Prior to joining
Silicon Laboratories, Mr. Sayiner held various lessthip positions at Agere Systems Inc. From Aug08t to September 2005, Mr. Sayiner
served as Vice
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President and General Manager of Agere's EnterprideNetworking Division and from March 2002 to Aisg 2004 he served as Vice
President and General Manager of Agere's NetworkinQivision. Mr. Sayiner holds a B.S. in electliemgineering and physics from
Bosphorus University in Turkey, an M.S. in Electi€ngineering from Southern lllinois Universityndaa Ph.D. in Electrical Engineering frc
the University of Pennsylvania. Mr. Sayiner's eigeee and understanding of our business gainedghrhbis role as our President and Chief
Executive Officer qualifies him to serve as a mendfeour Board of Directors.

William G. Bock has served as Senior VicesRlent of Finance and Administration and Chiefaficial Officer since November 2006.
Mr. Bock joined Silicon Laboratories as a diredtoMarch 2000, and served as Chairman of the aoditmittee until November 2006 when
stepped down from the Board of Directors to asshimeurrent role. From April 2001 to November 2008, Bock participated in the venture
capital industry, principally as a partner with @¥Roint Ventures. From February 1997 to March 204r1 Bock led DAZEL Corporation, a
provider of electronic information delivery systermstially as its President and Chief Executivdi€Hr and subsequent to its acquisition by
Hewlett-Packard in June 1999 as an HP Vice PresatahGeneral Manager. Prior to 1997, Mr. Bock edras Chief Operating Officer of
Tivoli Systems, a client server software compamyu&red by IBM in March 1996, in senior sales anthficial management positions with
Convex Computer Corporation and began his cargérTexas Instruments. Mr. Bock holds a B.S. in CatepScience from lowa State
University and an M.S. in Industrial Administratimom Carnegie Mellon University.

Jonathan D. Ivester joined Silicon Laborig®in September 1997 as Vice President. He sexs&dce President of Worldwide Operati
since May 2005. Mr. Ivester was promoted to Se¥ioe President of Worldwide Operations in June 2088m May 1984 to September 19
Mr. Ivester was with Applied Materials, a supplerequipment and services to the semiconductorsimguand served as Director of
Manufacturing and Director of U.S. Procurementddiion to various engineering and manufacturinghaggement positions. Mr. Ivester was a
scientist at Bechtel Corporation, an engineeringy@nstruction company, from 1980 to 1982 and atohpinc., an ultrafiltration company and
subsidiary of Koch Industries, from 1978 to 1980. Mester holds a B.S. in Chemistry from the Mabsesetts Institute of Technology and an
M.B.A. from Stanford University.

Kurt W. Hoff has served as Vice PresiddntMorldwide Sales for Silicon Laboratories sincéy2007. From 2005 until July 2007, he
managed the company's European sales and oper&imamsto joining Silicon Laboratories in 2005, Mitoff served as president, chief
executive officer and director of Cognio. Mr. Halso managed the operations and sales of C-Popo@xion, a network processor company
acquired by Motorola in May 2000. Additionally, MHoff spent 10 years in various sales positionrSMD. Mr. Hoff holds a B.S. in Physics
from the University of Illinois and an M.B.A. frothe University of Chicago.

Paul V. Walsh joined Silicon Laboratoriaslanuary 2004 as Director of Finance, Worldwide@fions, and was appointed Corporate
Controller in March 2005. In November 2006, Mr. 8ralvas promoted to Vice President and Chief Acdogr®fficer. From January 2009
through September 2010, Mr. Walsh served on thedBofiDirectors of Rio Holdings, Inc. (previously@&de Communications, Inc.), a
provider of cable, internet and phone services revhe also served as the Chairman of the Audit Citlerand as a member of the Finance
Committee. Prior to joining Silicon Laboratoriesr.NMValsh was Site Controller from February 2003dauary 2004 with PerkinElmer, a
supplier to the health sciences and photonics nerkeom 1992 to 2003, Mr. Walsh held various openal, finance and management roles at
Analog Devices and Teradyne, in the Boston areaVWish received his B.S. in Mechanical Engineefing the University of Maine, and an
M.B.A from Boston University.
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David R. Welland co-founded Silicon Laborés in August 1996, has served as a Vice Pressatehdirector since our inception and was
appointed Fellow in March 2004. From November 106fil founding Silicon Laboratories, Mr. Wellandltiezarious positions at Crystal
Semiconductor/Cirrus Logic, a designer and manufactof integrated circuits, including Senior Deskngineer. Mr. Welland holds a B.S. in
Electrical Engineering from the Massachusetts tintiof Technology. Mr. Welland's years of expeteas a semiconductor designer provides
him with extensive insight into our operations apdlifies him to serve as a member of our BoarDicéctors.

Harvey B. Cash has served as a direct8ilmon Laboratories since June 1997. Mr. Cashsleaiged as general partner of InterWest
Partners, a venture capital firm, since 1986. MrslCcurrently serves on the Board of Directordieffbllowing public companies: Ciena
Corporation, a designer and manufacturer of dersselength division multiplexing systems for fibgatic networks; Argo Group International
Holdings, Ltd., a specialty insurance company; kinst Acceptance Corp, a provider of low-cost @agurance. Mr. Cash holds a B.S. in
Electrical Engineering from Texas A&M Universitydan M.B.A. from Western Michigan University. Mragh's independence and
experience as a director of various public comparas well as his prior operational experiencenasxacutive, qualifies him to serve as a
member of our Board of Directors.

R. Ted Enloe Il has served as a direcf@®ilicon Laboratories since April 2003. Mr. Enlgecurrently the Managing General Partner of
Balquita Partners, Ltd., a family investment fifareviously, Mr. Enloe served as President and (Ewxeftutive Officer of Optisoft, Inc., a
provider of intelligent traffic signal platforms.MEnloe formerly served as Vice Chairman and merobghe office of chief executive of
Compaqg Computer Corporation. He also served asderéof Lomas Financial Corporation and Liberteédstors for more than 15 years.

Mr. Enloe co-founded a number of other publiclychiéims, including Capstead Mortgage Corp., TylabGt Mortgage Securities Corp., and
Seaman's Corp. Mr. Enloe currently serves on therdBof Directors of Leggett & Platt, Inc. and LiMation, Inc. Mr. Enloe holds a B.S. in
Engineering from Louisiana Polytechnic Universihda J.D. from Southern Methodist University. Mnl&'s combination of independence,
qualification as an audit committee financial exard his experience, including past experienc@naesxecutive officer and current and past
experience as a director of various public comparjealifies him to serve as a member of our Bolirectors.

Kristen M. Onken has served as a direct@ilicon Laboratories since September 2007. Mkérretired from Logitech in May 2006, a
maker of electronics peripherals, where she semgeBenior Vice President, Finance, and Chief Fiaa@dfficer from February 1999 to May
2006. From September 1996 to February 1999, Mse®skrved as Vice President of Finance at FujiGCBrporation, the U.S. subsidiary of
the Japanese electronics manufacturer. From 198gptember 1996, Ms. Onken was employed by Sunoslstems initially as Controller of
the Southwest Area, and later as Director of FieaScin Professional Services. Ms. Onken holds afBa® Southern lllinois University, and
an M.B.A. in Finance from the University of Chicadws. Onken's independence and prior experientieea€hief Financial Officer of
Logitech and her finance roles with other technglogmpanies qualifies her to serve as a membeunoBoard of Directors.

Laurence G. Walker has served as a dir@ftSilicon Laboratories since June 2003. Previgudlr. Walker co-founded and served as
Chief Executive Officer of QRort Corporation, a pioneer in the network processtustry, which was acquired by Motorola in 20B806llowing
the acquisition, Mr. Walker served as Vice Presiaddrstrategy for Motorola's Network and ComputBygstems Group and then as Vice
President and General Manager of the Network amdgising Systems Group until 2002. From August 1@0Blay 1997, Mr. Walker served
as Chief Executive Officer of CertCo, a digitaltdfération supplier. Mr. Walker served as Vice Rdest and General Manager, Network
Products Business Unit, of Digital Equipment Cogimm, a computer hardware company, from Janua®g 1@ July 1996. From 1998 to 20(
he served on the Board of Directors of McData Cafion, a provider of storage networking solutiofisom 1981 to 1994, he held a variety of
other
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management positions at Digital Equipment CorporatMr. Walker holds a B.S. in Electrical Enginegrfrom Princeton University and an
M.S. and Ph.D. in Electrical Engineering from thagdachusetts Institute of Technology. Mr. Walkesmbination of independence and his
experience, including past experience as an execafficer, qualifies him to serve as a memberwfBoard of Directors.

William P. Wood has served as a directd®iti€on Laboratories since March 1997 and as LRiadctor since December 2005. Since
1996, Mr. Wood has also served as general parfnerimus funds associated with Silverton Partnangenture capital firm. From 1984 to
2003, Mr. Wood was a general partner, and for oeftands created since 1996, a special limitedngartof various funds associated with
Austin Ventures, a venture capital firm. Mr. Woaalds a B.A. in History from Brown University and &B.A. from Harvard University.
Mr. Wood's combination of independence and his B&pee, including past experience as an investaumerous semiconductor and
technology companies, qualifies him to serve agmber of our Board of Directors.

The remaining information required by the&m is incorporated by reference to the Proxye®tent under the sections captioned "Prof.
One: Election of Directors”, "Executive Compensaltjd'Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reportingn@liance” and "Code of Ethics."

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information under the caption "Execet@ompensation” and "Proposal One: Election of @ims" appearing in the Proxy Statement,
is incorporated herein by reference.

Iltem 12. Security Ownership of Certain BeneficibOwners and Management and Related Stockholder M&trs

The information under the caption "Ownepshii Securities" and "Equity Compensation Plan imfation" appearing in the Proxy
Statement is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Trarections, and Director Independence

The information under the caption "Certelationships and Related Transactions, and Dirdatiependence" appearing in the Proxy
Statement is incorporated herein by reference.

Iltem 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information under the caption "Propdsab: Ratification of Appointment of Independentd®aered Public Accounting Firm"
appearing in the Proxy Statement is incorporatedihdy reference.
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Part IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedes
(@ 1. Financial Statemen
Index
Page
Report of independent registered public accourfiing F-1
Report of independent registered public accourfiing F-2
Consolidated Balance Sheets at January 1, 201Jaandary 2, 201 F-3
Consolidated Statements of Income for the fiscatyended January 1, 2011, January 2, 2010
and January 3, 20( F-4
Consolidated Statements of Changes in StockholBersty for the fiscal years ended Januar
2011, January 2, 2010 and January 3, - F-5
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for thelfigears ended January 1, 2011, January 2,
2010 and January 3, 20 F-6
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem: F-7

2. Schedules

All schedules have been omitted sincetif@rination required by the schedule is not appleaty is not present in amounts
sufficient to require submission of the schedutdhacause the information required is includechn€onsolidated Financial Stateme
and notes thereto.

3. Exhibits

The exhibits listed on the accompanyingintb exhibits immediately following the ConsoliddtFinancial Statements are filed as
part of, or hereby incorporated by reference itiits Form 10-K.
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(b)

Exhibits

Exhibit

Number

2.1*

3.1*

3.z

4.1*

10.1*

10.2%+

10.7+

10.4*+

10.5+

10.6++

10.7+

10.&+

10.¢*

10.1¢*

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated January 221,284 and among Silicc
Laboratories Inc., Sophia Merger Sub, Inc., Spedtmaar, Inc. and Shareholder
Representative Services LLC (filed as Exhibit 2.tHe Form 8-K filed January 26,
2011).

Form of Fourth Amended and Restated Certificateodrporation of Silicor
Laboratories Inc. (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Regint's Registration Statement on
Form S-1 (Securities and Exchange Commission File383-94853) (the "IPO
Registration Statement")

Second Amended and Restated Bylaws of Silicon Latbdes Inc (filed as Exhibit 3.2
the Registrant's Annual Report on Forn-K for the fiscal year ended January 3, 20!

Specimen certificate for shares of common stod&dfas Exhibit 4.1 to the IP
Registration Statemen

Form of Indemnification Agreement between Silicabbratories Inc. and each of
directors and executive officers (filed as Exhilfit1 to the IPO Registration Stateme

Silicon Laboratories Inc. 2000 Stock Incentive Fffiled as Exhibit 99.1 to th
Registrant's Registration Statement on Form S-8ui@&s and Exchange Commission
File No. 33:-60794) filed on May 11, 2001

Form of Stock Option Agreement and Notice of GranStock Option under Registran
2000 Stock Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.3he Registrant's Annual Report on
Form 1(-K for the year ended January 1, 20(

Form of Addendum to Stock Option Agreement undegi®eant's 2000 Stock Incenti'
Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrant's AaihReport on Form 10-K for the year
ended January 1, 200!

Form of Stock Issuance Agreement under Registra@0 Stock Incentive Plan (filed
Exhibit 10.5 to the Registrant's Annual Report @nrfr 10-K for the year ended
January 1, 2005

Form of Addendum to Stock Issuance Agreementeufegistrant's 2000 Stock
Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.6 to the Regist's Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended January 1, 20(

Employment Agreement dated August 30, 2005 betv@igon Laboratories Inc. ar
Dr. Necip Sayiner (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the fof-K filed September 12, 200%

Employment Agreement dated November 3, 2006 betwSilicon Laboratories Inc. and
William Bock (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Forn-K filed November 8, 2006

Lease, Deed of Trust and Security Agreement ditecth 30, 2006 among Silicon
Laboratories Inc., BAL Investment & Advisory, Iremd Gary S. Farmer (filed as
Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant's Current Reporfomm ¢-K filed on April 5, 2006).

Participation Agreement dated March 30, 2006 anfitigon Laboratories Inc., BA
Investment & Advisory, Inc., Wells Fargo Bank Nosibst, National Association and
various other financial institutions named theriled as Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant's
Current Report on Formr-K filed on April 5, 2006).
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Exhibit
Number

10.1%

10.12

10.1%+

10.14

10.1%

10.16++

10.17%+

10.1&+

10.1%+

21

23.1

24

31.1

31.2

32.1

101.IN&*

101.SChH*

101.CAL**

101.LAB**

Sale and Purchase Agreement dated February g, 1290@nd between NXP B.V., NXP
Semiconductors France SAS, Silicon Laboratoriesand Silicon Laboratories
International Pte. Ltd. (filed as Exhibit 10.1 tetRegistrant's Current Report on
Form ¢-K filed on February 9, 2007

Intellectual Property License Agreement datedfaslarch 23, 2007, by and among
Silicon Laboratories Inc., Silicon Laboratoriesdmtational Pte. Ltd., NXP B.V. and
NXP Semiconductors France SAS (filed as Exhibil 16.the Registrant's Curre
Report on Form -K filed on March 29, 2007

Amendment to Stock Options Agreement between Sillcaboratories Inc. ar
William G. Bock dated July 19, 2007 (filed as Exhit0.1 to the Registrant's Current
Report on Form -K filed on July 20, 2007]

Lease, Deed of Trust and Security Agreement ditecth 14, 2008 among Silicon
Laboratories Inc., BA Leasing BSC, LLC and Gary&tmer (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to
the Registrant's Current Report on For-K filed on March 19, 2008

Participation Agreement dated March 14, 2008 anfitigon Laboratories Inc., B,
Leasing BSC, LLC, Wells Fargo Bank Northwest, Na#ibAssociation and various
other financial institutions named therein (filexiExhibit 10.2 to the Registrant's
Current Report on Formr-K filed on March 19, 2008

Silicon Laboratories Inc. 2009 Stock Incentive Fffiled as Exhibit 10.1 to th
Registrant's Current Report on For-K filed on April 27, 2009)

Silicon Laboratories Inc. 2009 Employee Stock PasehPlan (filed as Exhibit 10.2
the Registrant's Current Report on Foi-K filed on April 27, 2009)

Form of Restricted Stock Units Grant Notice andtReed Stock Units Awart
Agreement under Registrant's 2009 Stock Incentiaa filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the
Registrant's Current Report on For-K filed on April 27, 2009)

Form of Stock Option Grant Notice and Stock @ptAward Agreement under
Registrant's 2009 Stock Incentive Plan (filed akiBkix 10.4 to the Registrant's Current
Report on Form -K filed on April 27, 2009)

Subsidiaries of the Registral

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing.

Power of Attorney (included on signature page te Borm 1(-K).

Certification of the Principal Executive Officers eequired by Section 302 of t
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of the Principal Financial Officexs required by Section 302 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification as required by Section 906 of theb@ae-Oxley Act of 2002
XBRL Instance Documer

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docum

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docuntr

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Docum
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Exhibit
Number

101.PRP* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doent

101.DEF* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurh

* Incorporated herein by reference to the indicailethf
*x The information in these exhibits shall not be deéno be "filed" for purposes of Section 18 of Becurities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended, or otherwise subjectedi#ility of that section. The information comntad therein shall not

incorporated by reference into any filing with tHeS. Securities and Exchange Commission made mo8il
Laboratories, whether made before or after the ldateof, regardless of any general incorporatioguage in such filing

+ Management contract or compensatory plan or arraegt
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of SectioorlB5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, ribgistrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduolp authorized, in Austin, Texas, on February 2@, 1.

SILICON LABORATORIES INC.

By: /s NECIP SAYINER

Necip Sayiner
President and Chief Executive Offic

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, thatleperson whose signature appears below constangeappoints Necip Sayiner
and William G. Bock, and each of them, acting indiinally, as his or her attorney-fact, each with full power of substitution and restitution
for him or her and in his or her name, place apddtin any and all capacities, to sign any andrakktndments to this annual report on Form 10-
K and other documents in connection herewith aedethith, and to file the same, with all exhibitertto, with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact agents, and each of them, full power and authtwitlo and perform each and every act
and thing requisite and necessary to be done inezdion herewith and therewith and about the presnias fully to all intents and purposes as
he or she might or could do in person, herebyyiatf and confirming all that said attorneys-in-faotd agents, or any of them, or their or his
substitute or substitutes, may lawfully do or catessbe done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Seeariixchange Act of 1934, this report has beenesidgrelow by the following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities and ord#ites indicated:

Name Title Date

/sI NAVDEEP S. SOOCH

Chairman of the Board February 10, 2011
Navdeep S. Sooc

/s/ NECIP SAYINER President, Chief Executive Officer and

Director (Principal Executive Officer) February 10, 2011

Necip Sayine
/s WILLIAM G. BOCK Senior Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer (Principal Financial February 10, 2011
William G. Bock Officer)

/s/ PAUL V. WALSH, JR, Vice President and Chief Accounting
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm
The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Silicorh.aboratories Inc.

We have audited Silicon Laboratories Inatsrnal control over financial reporting as ofdary 1, 2011, based on criteria established in
Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued byGoenmittee of Sponsoring Organizations of the TweadCommission (the COSO
criteria). Silicon Laboratories Inc.'s managemsmesponsible for maintaining effective internahicol over financial reporting, and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal cootret financial reporting included in the accompagyManagement's Report on Internal
Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsipilg to express an opinion on the company's interoiatrol over financial reporting based on
our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance wWithdtandards of the Public Company Accounting Qgetr8oard (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet amdbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigianternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe®@tsr audit included obtaining an understanding tdrimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness etésting and evaluating the design and operatifeg®@feness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedsreg considered necessary in the circumstanceseliéve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over finanaigborting is a process designed to provide reddersssurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordanttegenerally accepted accounting princip
A company's internal control over financial repogtincludes those policies and procedures thai€ftpin to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reftbettransactions and dispositions of the assdtseofompany; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgegaparation of financial statements in accor@awith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureb®itbmpany are being made only in accordance withoaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasaabturance regarding prevention or timely deteafainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could hawaterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, inedroontrol over financial reporting may not preventetect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periodssabject to the risk that controls may becomdenaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policiepraicedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Silicon Laboratories Incamtained, in all material respects, effective iing control over financial reporting as of
January 1, 2011, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance wighstandards of the Public Company Accounting Ogbtdoard (United States), the
consolidated balance sheets of Silicon Laboratdniesas of January 1, 2011 and January 2, 20IDthenrelated consolidated statements of
income, changes in stockholders' equity and castsffor each of the three fiscal years in the peended January 1, 2011 and our report ¢
February 10, 2011 expressed an unqualified opitiiereon.

/sl ERNST & YOUNG LLF

Austin, Texas
February 10, 201
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm
The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Silicorh.aboratories Inc.

We have audited the accompanying conseliibalance sheets of Silicon Laboratories Incfdsiouary 1, 2011 and January 2, 2010, and
the related consolidated statements of income,gd®im stockholders' equity, and cash flows fohezdhe three fiscal years in the period
ended January 1, 2011. These financial statemeath@ responsibility of the Company's managent@ut.responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based omodits.

We conducted our audits in accordance thighstandards of the Public Company Accounting €igat Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &madbtain reasonable assurance about whethdinthecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tliasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digids in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting principged and significant estimates made by managenentelhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statementieneed to above present fairly, in all materialpests, the consolidated financial position of
Silicon Laboratories Inc. at January 1, 2011 amdidey 2, 2010, and the consolidated results afperations and its cash flows for each of the
three fiscal years in the period ended Januar$1] 2in conformity with U.S. generally accepted@aatting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance wighstandards of the Public Company Accounting OgatdBoard (United States), Silicon
Laboratories Inc.'s internal control over financighorting as of January 1, 2011, based on crigstablished in Internal Control—Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoringa@imations of the Treadway Commission and our ttegiied February 10, 2011
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/sl ERNST & YOUNG LLF

Austin, Texas
February 10, 2011
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Silicon Laboratories Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(in thousands, except per share data)

January 1, January 2,
2011 2010
Assets
Current assett
Cash and cash equivalel $ 138,56° $ 195,73
Shor-term investment 227,29: 214,48t
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubéfttounts of $772 i
January 1, 2011 and $567 at January 2, : 45,03( 56,12¢
Inventories 39,45( 31,51
Deferred income taxe 9,14( 7,62(
Prepaid expenses and other current a 34,447 18,51¢
Total current asse 493,92¢ 523,99¢
Long-term investment 17,50( 24,67¢
Property and equipment, r 29,94t 27,78¢
Goodwill 112,29¢ 105,10¢
Other intangible assets, r 53,24: 41,88¢
Other assets, n 20,74¢ 19,38¢
Total asset $ 727,65¢ $ 742,83¢
Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl $ 24,43: $ 28,75¢
Accrued expense 25,60« 25,39¢
Deferred income on shipments to distribut 26,125 28,47(
Income taxe: 3,692 6,011
Total current liabilities 79,85¢ 88,63¢
Long-term obligations and other liabiliti¢ 22,37: 24,40:
Total liabilities 102,22¢ 113,04:
Commitments and contingenci
Stockholders' equity
Preferred stock—$0.0001 par value; 10,000 sharé®mared; no shares
issued and outstandit — —
Common stoc—3$0.0001 par value; 250,000 shares authorized; 4:
and 45,772 shares issued and outstanding at Jahua@t 1 and
January 2, 2010, respective 4 5
Additional paic-in capital 49,94 128,26:
Retained earninc 579,12° 505,88
Accumulated other comprehensive i (3,64¢) (4,35€)
Total stockholders' equit 625,43( 629,79t
Total liabilities and stockholders' equ $ 727,65¢ $ 742,83

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktlEmsolidated Financial Statements.
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Silicon Laboratories Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Income
(in thousands, except per share data)

Year Ended
January 1, January 2, January 3,
2011 2010 2009

Revenue: $ 493,34: $ 441,02( $ 415,63(
Cost of revenue 169,09° 161,267 159,84!
Gross margit 324,24 279,75: 255,78!
Operating expense

Research and developmt 123,82: 104,39 101,20!

Selling, general and administrati 113,75: 108,84 100,67:

In-process research and developn — — 10,25(
Operating expenst 237,57 213,24 212,12¢
Operating incomi 86,67 66,51 43,65¢
Other income (expense

Interest incomt 2,31¢ 2,72¢ 10,44¢

Interest expens (77) (180) (439)

Other income (expense), r (1,259 (90) (55€)
Income before income tax 87,65¢ 68,96¢ 53,11¢
Provision (benefit) for income tax 14,41% (4,12¢) 20,18:
Net income $ 73,24. $ 73,09 $ 32,93t
Earnings per shar

Basic $ 1.6 $ 16z $ 0.6¢

Diluted $ 157 $ 157 $ 0.67
Weighte-average common shares outstand

Basic 44,84¢ 45,02: 48,10¢

Diluted 46,74 46,54: 48,98¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktlEmsolidated Financial Statements.
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Silicon Laboratories Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Changes in StockholderSquity
(in thousands)

Common Stock Accumulated
Additional Other Total
Number Par Paid-In Retained Comprehensive Stockholders'
of Shares Value Capital Earnings Loss Equity
Balance as c
December 29, 200 52,81( $ 5 $ 303,68. $399,85¢ $ — $ 703,54
Comprehensive
income:
Net income — — — 32,93t — 32,93t

Unrealized losses ¢

available-for-sale

securities, net of te

of $1,297 — — — — (2,406 (2,406
Unrealized losses ¢

cash flow hedges,

net of tax of $1,96 — — — — (3,642 (3,642
Total comprehensiv
income 26,881

Stock issuances und

employee plans, ne

of shares withheld

for taxes 972 — 4,26¢ — — 4,26¢
Income tax benefit

from employee

stock-based award — — 963 — — 963
Repurchases of

common stocl (9,37)) (1) (280,280 — — (280,28
Stoclk-basec

compensatiol — — 40,56¢ — — 40,56¢
Purchase acquisitic 202 — 6,521 — — 6,521

Balance as of January

2009 44,61 4 75,71, 432,79 (6,04¢) 502,46(
Comprehensivi

income:

Net income — — — 73,09: — 73,09:

Unrealized gains o

available-for-sale

securities, net of t

of $(522) — — — — 96¢ 96¢
Unrealized gains on

cash flow hedges,

net of tax of $(389 — — — — 722 728
Total comprehensive
income 74,78¢

Stock issuances und

employee plans, ne

of shares withheld

for taxes 1,66¢ 1 25,18¢ — — 25,18:
Income tax benefit

from employee

stock-based award — — 3,89( — — 3,89(
Repurchases of

common stocl (633) — (20,18)) — — (20,18))
Stock-based

compensatiol 12¢ — 43,65¢ — — 43,65¢

Balance as of January
2010 45,77 5 128,26 505,88! (4,35€) 629,79t
Comprehensiv:
income:
Net income — — — 73,24 — 73,24




Unrealized gains on

available-for-sale

securities, net of t

of $(143) — — — — 26€ 26€
Unrealized gains on

cash flow hedges,

net of tax of $(238 — — — — 44z 442
Total comprehensive
income 73,95(

Stock issuances unde

employee plans, ne

of shares withheld

for taxes 1,45: — 18,05¢ — — 18,05¢
Income tax benefi

from employee

stock-based award — — 3,271 — — 3,271
Repurchases (
common stocl (3,297) (1) (140,33) — — (140,33)
Stock-based
compensatiol — — 40,68¢ — — 40,68¢
Balance as of January .
2011 4393 $ 4 $ 49,947 $579,12° $ (3,648 $ 625,43(

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktlEssolidated Financial Statements.
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Silicon Laboratories Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(in thousands)

Year Ended
January 1, January 2, January 3,
2011 2010 2009

Operating Activities
Net income $ 7324. $ 73,09 $ 32,93t
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash pravioe

operating activities

Depreciation of property and equipmi 11,79: 11,88 10,76¢
Loss on disposal of property and equiprr 21 33 68t
Amortization of other intangible assets and otteset 7,494 7,84 7,85¢
Stoclk-based compensation expel 40,32« 43,97 40,66¢
Purchased -process research and developr — — 10,25(
Income tax benefit from employee st-based award 3,29¢ 2,42 832
Excess income tax benefit from employee stock-base:
awards (2,412 (1,862 (88¢)
Deferred income taxe (552) 1,89¢ 1,81¢
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Accounts receivabl 11,34: (19,65 19,61¢
Inventories (7,811 (3,216 3,72¢
Prepaid expenses and other as (5,32)) 3,36% 11,412
Accounts payabl (777) 8,03¢ (5,639
Accrued expense (2,590 (825) (6,202
Deferred income on shipments to distribut (2,349 6,871 (6,849
Income taxe: (7,774 (12,919 (2,31¢)
Net cash provided by operating activit 117,93 120,94: 119,68:
Investing Activities
Purchases of availat-for-sale investment (357,77°) (237,96 (151,470
Proceeds from sales and maturities of marketaloigrgies 352,77¢ 153,27! 304,92¢
Purchases of property and equipm (13,850 (8,947 (12,524
Proceeds from the sale of ass — — 14,26¢
Purchases of other ass (8,3772) (6,409 (7,557
Acquisitions of businesses, net of cash acqt (28,02 (4,300 (78,47°)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi (55,24) (104,349 69,17(

Financing Activities
Proceeds from issuance of common stock, net okshar

withheld for taxe: 18,05t 25,181 4,26¢
Excess income tax benefit from employee stock-based

awards 2,41z 1,86z 88¢
Repurchases of common stc (140,33) (20,18) (286,140
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi (119,869 6,86¢ (280,98%)
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equiv: (57,170 23,46" (92,13¢)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of p¢ 195,73 172,27 264,40¢
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe $ 138,56° $ 195,73 $ 172,27.
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information
Interest paic $ a0 $ 27¢ $ 44C
Income taxes pai $ 20,78 $ 450C $ 18,61:

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktlEmsolidated Financial Statements.
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Silicon Laboratories Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
January 1, 2011

1. Description of Business

Silicon Laboratories Inc. (the "Company)Delaware corporation, develops and markets méigaial analog intensive integrated circuits
(ICs) for a broad range of applications for glotmarkets. Within the semiconductor industry, the @any is known as a "fabless" company
meaning that the ICs are manufactured by thirdydadndry semiconductor companies.

2. Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation and Principles of Consolidia

The Company prepares financial statememis $2-53 week year that ends on the Saturdaystits®ecember 31. Fiscal 2010 and 2009
were 52-week years and ended on January 1, 201Jasmehry 2, 2010, respectively. Fiscal 2008 wad-aé&ek year with the extra week
occurring in the first quarter and ended on JanBaB009. The accompanying Consolidated FinandatkSients include the accounts of the
Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries. All #igant intercompany balances and transactions baea eliminated in consolidation.

Foreign Currency Transactior

The Company's foreign subsidiaries are idened to be extensions of the U.S. Company. Thetfonal currency of these subsidiaries is
the U.S. dollar. Accordingly, gains and losses ltegyifrom remeasuring transactions denominatecuimencies other than U.S. dollars are
included in other income (expense), net in the CGlidated Statements of Income.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statementsdnformity with accounting principles generally eapted in the United States requires
management to make estimates and assumptiondféattae amounts reported in the financial statet:iand accompanying notes. Among
the significant estimates affecting the financtatements are those related to inventories, staskedhcompensation, investments in auctate-
securities, acquired intangible assets, goodwiligHived assets and income taxes. Actual resaltfdadiffer from those estimates, and such
differences could be material to the financialesta¢nts.

Reclassification:
Certain reclassifications have been magwity year financial statements to conform to entryear presentation.
Fair Value of Financial Instrumen

The fair values of the Company's finangiatruments are recorded using a hierarchal disptoBamework based upon the level of
subjectivity of the inputs used in measuring asaetsliabilities. The three levels are describeldwe

Level 1—Inputs are unadjusted, quoted prices iivaeharkets for identical assets or liabilitieshs measurement date.

Level 2—Inputs are inputs other than quoted prinekided within Level 1 that are observable for &sset or liability, either directly or
indirectly.
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Silicon Laboratories Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
January 1, 2011 (Continued)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Level 3—Inputs are unobservable for the assetabilify and are developed based on the best infiomavailable in the
circumstances, which might include the Company's deta.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cephgits, money market funds and investments in skhirities with original maturities of nin
days or less when purchased.

Investment:

The Company's investments consist primafilgorporate bonds, variable-rate demand notesjaipal bonds, U.S. government agency
bonds and discount notes, international governibentls, U.S. Treasury bills, certificate of depgsittmmercial paper and auction-rate
securities. These securities typically have originaturities greater than ninety days as of the dapurchase and are classified as either
available-for-sale or trading securities. Investtaen available-forsale securities are reported at fair value, wittealized gains and losses,
of tax, recorded as a component of accumulated etiraprehensive loss in the Consolidated BalanezSinvestments in trading securities
are reported at fair value, with both realized antkalized gains and losses recorded in other ird@xpense), net in the Consolidated
Statement of Income. Investments in which the Comipeas the ability and intent, if necessary, tailigte in order to support its current
operations (including those with contractual maiesigreater than one year from the date of pugrea® classified as short-term. The
Company's long-term investments consist of auatéda-securities.

The Company reviews its available-for-saleestments as of the end of each reporting pddodther-than-temporary declines in fair
value based on the specific identification methidie Company considers various factors in deterrgimihether an impairment is other-than-
temporary, including the severity and durationhaf impairment, changes in underlying credit ratifigsecasted recovery, its intent to sell or
the likelihood that it would be required to sektimvestment before its anticipated recovery inkeavalue and the probability that the
scheduled cash payments will continue to be madenithe Company concludes that an other-than-teampanpairment has occurred, the
Company assesses whether it intends to sell thaiseor if it is more likely than not that it wilbe required to sell the security before recovery.
If either of these two conditions is met, the Compeecognizes a charge in earnings equal to theedtifference between the security's
amortized cost basis and its fair value. If the @any does not intend to sell a security or it ismore likely than not that it will be required to
sell the security before recovery, the unrealizess is separated into an amount representing #uét éwss, which is recognized in earnings,
the amount related to all other factors, whicleisorded in accumulated other comprehensive loss.

In addition, the Company has made equigg$tments in non-publicly traded companies thatdounts for under the cost method. The
Company periodically reviews these investmentsfber-than-temporary declines in fair value basethe specific identification method and
writes down investments to their fair values whetetermines that an other-than-temporary declasedtcurred.

Derivative Financial Instrument

The Company uses derivative financial unsignts to manage exposures to the variability tef @st rates used to calculate base rents for
its corporate headquarters leases. The Company's
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Silicon Laboratories Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
January 1, 2011 (Continued)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

objective is to offset increases and decreasespareses resulting from changes in interest ratdslagses and gains on the derivative
contracts, thereby reducing volatility of earninfee Company does not use derivative contractsgeculative purposes. The effective portion
of the gain or loss on interest rate swaps is tEbin accumulated other comprehensive loss agaaate component of stockholders' equity
and is subsequently recognized in earnings wheheallged exposure affects earnings. Cash flows flerivatives are classified as cash flows
from operating activities in the Consolidated Stetet of Cash Flows.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of abstermined using the first-in, firsat method, or market. The Company writes dowrctreying
value of inventory to net realizable value for estied obsolescence or unmarketable inventory hgsed assumptions about the age of
inventory, future demand and market conditionsehiery impairment charges establish a new cossliasinventory and charges are not
subsequently reversed to income even if circumsttater suggest that increased carrying amouatseaoverable.

Property and Equipmet

Property and equipment are stated at nesipf accumulated depreciation. Depreciation immated using the straight-line method over
the useful lives of the assets ranging from thoefeve years. Leasehold improvements are depretiater the contractual lease period or their
useful life, whichever is shorter.

Long-Lived Assets

Purchased intangible assets are statembgtret of accumulated amortization, and are drsattusing the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives, ranging from two to tweyears. Fair values are determined primarily usirgibhcome approach, in which the Comg
projects future expected cash flows and appliespgmopriate discount rate.

Long-lived assets "held and used" by thenany are reviewed for impairment whenever eventhanges in circumstances indicate that
their net book value may not be recoverable. Wheh $actors and circumstances exist, the Compampaces the projected undiscounted
future cash flows associated with the related asmsgtoup of assets over their estimated usefakliagainst their respective carrying amounts.
Impairment, if any, is based on the excess of #reying amount over the fair value of those asantkis recorded in the period in which the
determination was made.

The carrying value of goodwill is reviewatleast annually by the Company for possible immpant. The goodwill impairment test is a
two-step process. The first step of the impairnagralysis compares the fair value of the compangporting unit to the net book value of the
company or reporting unit. In determining fair v@|iseveral valuation methodologies are allowetipaljh quoted market prices are the best
evidence of fair value. If the results of the fisg¢p demonstrate that the net book value is grésa the fair value, the Company must proceed
to step two of the analysis. Step two of the anslgsmpares the implied fair value of goodwill t® ¢arrying amount. If the carrying amount of
goodwill exceeds its implied fair value, an impaémh loss is recognized equal to that excess. Timep@oy tests goodwill for impairment
annually as of the first day of its fourth
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Silicon Laboratories Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
January 1, 2011 (Continued)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

fiscal quarter and in interim periods if eventsurahat would indicate that the carrying value obdwill may be impaired.
Revenue Recognitic

Revenues are generated almost exclusiyedales of the Company's ICs. The Company recogmeaeenue when all of the following
criteria are met: 1) there is persuasive evidehatdn arrangement exists, 2) delivery of goodsobaarred, 3) the sales price is fixed or
determinable, and 4) collectibility is reasonaldguared. Generally, revenue from product salesreztdtustomers and contract manufacture
recognized upon shipment.

A portion of the Company's sales are madtidtributors under agreements allowing certaghts of return and price protection related to
the final selling price to the end customers. Adaagly, the Company defers revenue and cost ofmee®n such sales until the distributors
the product to the end customers. The net balahdeferred revenue less deferred cost of revensecaged with inventory shipped to a
distributor but not yet sold to an end customeerded in the "deferred income on shipmentsatidutors” liability on the Consolidated
Balance Sheet. Such net deferred income balaneetethe Company's estimate of the impact of sigifitreturn and price protection.

Shipping and Handling
Shipping and handling costs are classéi®@ component of cost of revenues in the Condetidatatements of Income.
Stock-Based Compensation

The Company has stock-based compensatims plvhich are more fully described in Note 3fyck-Based Compensatiomhe Company
accounts for those plans using a fair-value metiratirecognizes the expense in its Consolidate@rtait of Income.

Research and Developme

Research and development costs are expassadurred. Research and development expensisisopsmarily of personnel-related
expenses, including stock compensation, new pradask, wafer, packaging and test costs, extermauiing and services costs, equipment
tooling, equipment depreciation, amortization af@iced intangible assets, as well as an allocatetion of our occupancy costs for such
operations. Assets purchased to support the Corgpangoing research and development activitiesapéalized when related to products
which have achieved technological feasibility atthave alternative future uses, and are amortizedtheir estimated useful lives.

Advertising

Advertising costs are expensed as incuikdgertising expenses were $1.4 million, $1.5 roilliand $1.7 million in fiscal 2010, 2009 and
2008, respectively.

Income Taxe

The Company accounts for income taxes usiagisset and liability method whereby deferradatset and liability account balances are
determined based on differences between finanejearting
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Silicon Laboratories Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
January 1, 2011 (Continued)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

and the tax bases of assets and liabilities anthagsured using the enacted tax laws and relaties! thaat will be in effect when the differences
are expected to reverse. These differences resd#ferred tax assets and liabilities, which acduited in the Company's Consolidated Balance
Sheet. The Company then assesses the likelihobththdeferred tax assets will be recovered fromréutaxable income. A valuation
allowance is established against deferred tax sitséie extent the Company believes that recogangt likely based on the level of historical
taxable income and projections for future taxabt®me over the periods in which the temporary diffiees are deductible.

Uncertain tax positions must meet a mdeelji-than-not threshold to be recognized in thaffitial statements and the tax benefits
recognized are measured based on the largest bvafhas a greater than 50% likelihood of beerjized upon final settlement. See further
discussion in Note 13ncome Taxes

Recent Accounting Pronounceme

In December 2010, the Financial Accountitgndards Board (FASB) issued FASB Accounting StedglUpdate (ASU) No. 2010-29,
Business Combinations (Topic 8—Disclosure of Supplementary Pro Forma InformafienBusiness Combinationdhis ASU addresses
diversity in practice about the interpretation lué fpro forma revenue and earnings disclosure requints for business combinations. The ASU
clarifies that when presenting comparative finahsfatements, an entity should disclose revenuesamings of the combined entity as though
the business combination(s) that occurred duriegctivrent year had occurred as of the beginnirtbeotomparable prior annual reporting
period only. The ASU also expands the supplemegmtaforma disclosures under Topic 805 to includkescription of the nature and amoun
material, nonrecurring pro forma adjustments diyeattributable to the business combination inctlidethe reported pro forma revenue and
earnings. ASU 201Q9 is effective prospectively for business comhorat for which the acquisition date is on or after beginning of the fir:
annual reporting period beginning on or after Delseni5, 2010. The adoption of this ASU is not expedo have a material impact on the
Company's financial statements.

In January 2010, the FASB issued FASB ASLU 2010-06Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (Topic 82@)proving
Disclosures about Fair Value Measureme. This ASU requires new disclosures about signifi¢eansfers in and out of Levels 1 and 2 fair
value measurements and separate disclosures aliohbpes, sales, issuances and settlements rdlatieyel 3 fair value measurements. The
ASU also clarifies existing disclosure requiremeastgarding inputs and valuation techniques, as agethe level of disaggregation for each
class of assets and liabilities for which sepafatevalue measurements should be disclosed. Timep@ny adopted ASU 2010-06 at the
beginning of fiscal 2010, except for the separadeldsures about purchases, sales, issuances tdedsats relating to Level 3 measurements,
which is effective for the Company at the beginniridiscal 2011. The adoption of this ASU did naive a material impact, and the deferred
provisions of this ASU are not expected to haveagenial impact, on the Company's financial statemmen
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Silicon Laboratories Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
January 1, 2011 (Continued)

3. Earnings Per Share

The following table sets forth the compiagtatof basic and diluted earnings per share (inshods, except per share data):

Year Ended
January 1, January 2, January 3,
2011 2010 2009

Net income $ 73,24. $ 73,090 $ 32,93t
Shares used in computing basic earnings per: 44,84: 45,02: 48,10¢
Effect of dilutive securities

Stock options and other stc-based award 1,89i 1,51¢ 88C
Shares used in computing diluted earnings per ¢ 46,74 46,54 48,98¢
Earnings per shar

Basic $ 1.6: $ 16z $ 0.6¢

Diluted $ 157 $ 157 $ 0.67

Approximately 0.6 million, 2.1 million anti2 million weighted-average dilutive potential igof common stock have been excluded
from the diluted earnings per share calculatiorfitmal years ended January 1, 2011, January 2 @0d January 3, 2009, respectively, as they
were anti-dilutive.

4. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments

The Company's cash equivalents and shomtitevestments as of January 1, 2011 consistedgpilijmof corporate bonds, U.S. Treasury
bills, money market funds, variable-rate demanesatnunicipal bonds, U.S. government agency bondsiscount notes, international
government bonds, certificates of deposit and coroiaegpaper. The Company's long-term investmentsisd of auction-rate securities. Early
in fiscal 2008, auctions for many of the Comparayistion-rate securities failed because sell ordecgeded buy orders. As of January 1, 2011,
the Company held $19.7 million par value auctior-ecurities, all of which have experienced fadedtions. The underlying assets of the
securities consisted of student loans and munitipatls, of which $17.7 million were guaranteedh®y t.S. government and the remaining
$2.0 million were privately insured. As of Januan2011, $17.7 million of the auction-rate secasthad credit ratings of AAA and
$2.0 million had a credit rating of A. These settesi had contractual maturity dates ranging frol2®® 2046 and with current yields of 0.6%
to 3.3% per year at January 1, 2011. The Compareceiving the underlying cash flows on all ofatsction-rate securities. The principal
amounts associated with failed auctions are notetel to be accessible until a successful auctioars, the issuer redeems the securities, a
buyer is found outside of the auction process eruhderlying securities mature. The Company is lenabpredict if these funds will become
available before their maturity dates.

The Company does not expect to need atodhs capital represented by any of its auctide-sacurities prior to their maturities. The
Company does not intend to sell, and believesribtamore likely than not that it will be requiremisell, its auction-rate securities before their
anticipated recovery in market value or final sstient at the underlying par value. The Companyebeti that the credit ratings and credit
support of the security issuers indicate that theye the ability to settle
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4. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (Contindg

the securities at par value. As such, the Compasydetermined that no other-than-temporary impaitriusses existed as of January 1, 2011.
The Company's cash, cash equivalents args$timents consist of the following (in thousands):

January 1, 2011

Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Losses Gains Fair Value
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash on han $ 40,64« $ 40,64«
Available-for-sale securities
U.S. Treasury bill: 50,09¢ $ — $ 1 50,09°
Money market fund 45,16 — — 45,167
Commercial pape 2,65¢ — — 2,65¢
Total availabl-for-sale securitie 97,92: — 1 97,92:
Total cash and cash equivale $ 138,56t $ — $ 1 $ 138,56
Short-term Investments:
Available-for-sale securities
Corporate bond $ 88,18: % (46) $ 381 $ 88,51¢
Variable-rate demand note 39,42t — — 39,42¢
Municipal bonds 38,40¢ (18) 24 38,41
U.S. government agent 34,63t (5) 50 34,68(
International government bon 10,79: — 38 10,83(
U.S. Treasury bill: 6,99¢ — 1 6,99¢
Certificates of depos 5,74¢ 2 — 5,742
Commercial pape 2,681 — — 2,68
Total shor-term investment $ 226,87 $ (71) $ 494 $ 227,29!
Long-term Investments:
Available-for-sale securities
Auction rate securitie $ 19,72t $ (2,22%) $ — $ 17,50(
Total lon¢-term investment $ 19,72t $ (2,22%) $ — $ 17,50(
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Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash on han
Available-for-sale securities

Money market fund
U.S. Treasury hill:
U.S. government agent

Total availabl-for-sale securitie
Total cash and cash equivale

Short-term Investments:
Available-for-sale securities

Corporate bond
U.S. government agent
Municipal bonds
U.S. Treasury bill:
International government bon
Commercial pape

Total availabl-for-sale securitie
Trading securities

Auction rate securities and put opti

Total shor-term investment

Long-term Investments:
Available-for-sale securities
Auction rate securitie

Total lon¢-term investment

Silicon Laboratories Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
January 1, 2011 (Continued)

January 2, 2010

Gross Gross

Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Losses Gains Fair Value
$ 21,62 $ 21,62
167,13¢ $ — 8 — 167,13¢
5,00( — — 5,00(
2,00( (24) — 1,97¢
174,13¢ (24) — 17411
$ 195,76: $ (24) $ — $ 195,73
$ 7443 $ (139 $ 18¢ $ 74,48
41,79 (1) 32 41,82:
37,401 3 132 37,53(
21,48¢ — 7 21,49¢
12,46 (10 6 12,46:
2,69¢ — — 2,69¢
$ 190,27¢ $ (147 $ 36E 190,49
23,99:
$ 214,48t¢
$ 27,328 $ (2,649 $ — $ 24,67¢
$ 27,328 $ (2,649 $ — $ 24,67¢
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4. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (Contindg

The available-for-sale investments thatenara continuous unrealized loss position, agdesghy length of time that individual securities
have been in a continuous loss position, were [&safe (in thousands):

Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or Greater Total
Gross Gross Gross

Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
As of January 1, 2011 Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
Municipal bonds $ 22,27. $ (18) $ — 3 — $ 2227. % (18)
Corporate bond 17,53¢ (44) 1,29¢ 2 18,83¢ (46)
Auction rate securitie — — 17,50( (2,225  17,50( (2,225
U.S. government agent 17,00° (5) — — 17,007 5)
Certificates of depos 1,56¢ 2 — — 1,56¢ 2

$ 58,38 $ (69 $ 18,79¢ $ (2227) $ 77,18 $ (2,296

Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or Greater Total
Gross Gross Gross
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
As of January 2, 2010 Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
Corporate bond $ 39,51 $ (133 $ — 3 — $ 39,51% % (139)

Auction rate securitie

— 24,67¢ (2,649 24,67¢ (2,649
International government

bonds 5,21 (10) — — 5,21 (10)
U.S. government agent 4,97¢ (25) — — 4,97¢ (25)
Municipal bonds 1,64: 3 — — 1,64: 3

$ 51,34 $ (171) $ 2467¢ $ (2649 $ 76,02: $ (2,820

The gross unrealized losses as of Jany&911l and January 2, 2010 were due primarily ¢dltiguidity of the Company's auction-rate
securities and, to a lesser extent, to changesikehinterest rates.

The following summarizes the contractualentying maturities of the Company's available-$ate investments at January 1, 2011 (in
thousands):

Fair

Cost Value
Due in one year or le: $ 187,40: $ 187,57:
Due after one year through three ye 97,96 98,22(
Due after ten yeal 59,15( 56,92¢

$ 344,51¢ $ 342,71
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5. Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company is exposed to interest ratetfhtions in the normal course of its businesduding through its corporate headquarters
leases. The base rents for these leases are ¢attuking a variable interest rate based on tkethmonth LIBOR. The Company has entered
into interest rate swap agreements with notionkiesof $44.3 million and $50.1 million and, efigety, fixed the rent payment amounts on
these leases through March 2011 and March 2013ectsely. The interest rate swap agreements agigmigted and qualify as cash flow
hedges.

The Company estimates the fair values df’dgéves based on quoted prices and market obkkrekata of similar instruments. If the lease
agreements or the interest rate swap agreementsrari@ated prior to maturity, the fair value oétimterest rate swaps recorded in accumu
other comprehensive loss may be recognized in tmsdlidated Statement of Income based on an assessfithe agreements at the time of
termination. The Company did not discontinue arshdéow hedges in any of the periods presented.

The Company measures the effectiveneds ofsh flow hedges by comparing the change irvédire of the hedged item with the change
in fair value of the interest rate swap. The Conypa@tognizes ineffective portions of the hedgewalt as amounts not included in the
assessment of effectiveness, in the Consolidaersent of Income. As of January 1, 2011, no postiof the gains or losses from the hed
instruments were excluded from the assessmenfeaxftefeness. There was no hedge ineffectivenesarfpiof the periods presented.

The Company's derivative financial instrumseconsisted of the following (in thousands):

January 1, 2011

Fair
Balance Sheet Locatior Value
Interest rate swap Accrued expense $ 344
Long-term obligations and other
liabilities 3,467
Total $ 3,811

The before-tax effect of derivative instemts in cash flow hedging relationships was ag¥l (in thousands):

Location of Loss Reclassified
Loss Recognized in Loss from Accumulated
OCI on Derivatives Reclassified OCl into Income

(Effective Portion) into (Effective Portion)
during the Year Ended Income during the Year Ended
January 1, January 2, January 1, January 2,

2011 2010 2011 2010

Interes
rate Rent

sway $ (2,640 $ (1,68]) expense $ (3,32) $ (2,792

The Company expects to reclassify $2.2iomlbf its interest rate swap losses included tuawlated other comprehensive loss as of
January 1, 2011 into earnings in the next 12 monthgch is offset by lower rent payments.

The Company's interest rate swap agreencentsin provisions that require it to maintain mcembered cash and highly-rated short-term
investments of at least $150 million. If the Comyan
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5. Derivative Financial Instruments (Continued)

unencumbered cash and highly-rated short-term imesgs are less than $150 million, it would be fegflto post collateral with the
counterparty in the amount of the fair value of ititerest rate swap agreements in net liabilityitpss. Both of the Company's interest rate
swaps were in a net liability position at Januargdl1. No collateral has been posted with the woparties as of January 1, 2011.

6. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The following summarizes the valuationte Company's financial instruments (in thousaritlsg. tables do not include either cash on
hand or assets and liabilities that are measurbistatrical cost or any basis other than fair value

Fair Value Measurements
at January 1, 2011 Using

Quoted Prices in Significant Other Significant
Active Markets for Observable Unobservable
Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
Description (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
Assets:
Cash Equivalents:

U.S. Treasury bill: $ 50,097 $ — $ — $ 50,097

Money market fund 45,167 — — 45,167

Commercial pape 2,65¢ — — 2,65¢
Total cash equivalen $ 97,92: $ — $ — $ 97,92¢
Short-term Investments:

Corporate bond $ 88,51¢ $ — $ — $ 88,51¢

Variable-rate demand notse 39,42¢ — — 39,42t

Municipal bonds 38,41« — — 38,41«

U.S. government agent 34,68( — — 34,68(

International governmel

bonds 10,83( — — 10,83(

U.S. Treasury bill: 6,99¢ — — 6,99¢

Certificates of depos 5,74 — — 5,74z

Commercial pape 2,68 — — 2,68
Total shor-term investment $ 227,29 $ — $ — $ 227,29
Long-term Investments:

Auction rate securitie $ — $ — 3 17,50C $ 17,50(
Total lon¢-term investment $ — $ — 3 17,50C $ 17,50(
Total $ 325,21¢ $ — $ 17,50C $ 342,71¢
Liabilities:

Derivative instrument $ — $ 3,811 $ — $ 3,811
Contingent consideratic — — 1,78(C 1,78(
Total $ — 3 3,811 $ 1,78C $ 5,591
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6. Fair Value of Financial Instruments (Continued)

Fair Value Measurements
at January 2, 2010 Using
Quoted Prices in Significant Other Significant

Active Markets for Observable Unobservable
Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
Description (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
Assets:
Cash Equivalents:

Money market fund $ 167,13¢ $ — — $ 167,13¢

U.S. Treasury bill: 5,00 — — 5,00(¢

U.S. government agent 1,97¢ — — 1,97¢
Total cash equivalen $ 174,11 $ — % — $ 174,11
Short-term Investments:

Corporate bond $ 74,48¢ $ — $ — $ 74,48¢

U.S. government agent 41,82 — — 41,82

Municipal bonds 37,53( — — 37,53(

U.S. Treasury bill: 21,49¢ — — 21,49t

International government

bonds 12,46: — — 12,46:
Commercial pape 2,69¢ — — 2,69¢
Auction rate securities and pi

option — — 23,99: 23,99:

Total shor-term investment $ 190,49: $ — $ 23,99: $ 214,48t
Long-term Investments:

Auction rate securitie $ — 3 — $ 24,67¢ $ 24,67¢
Total lon¢-term investment $ — $ — 24,67¢ $ 24,67¢
Total $ 364,60¢ $ — $ 48,66¢ $ 413,27
Liabilities:

Derivative instrument $ — $ 4,491 $ — $ 4491
Total $ — $ 4,491 $ — $ 4,49

The Company's cash equivalents and shortditevestments (other than its auction-rate seiesrdand put option) are valued using quoted
prices and other relevant information generatechbyket transactions involving identical assets. Thenpany's auction-rate securities and put
option are valued using a discounted cash flow mddes assumptions used in preparing the discourdst flow model include estimates for
interest rates, amount of cash flows, expectedihglderiods of the securities, a discount to reftee Company's inability to liquidate the
securities and counterparty risk. The Company'wative instruments are valued using a discoungeth ¢low model. The assumptions used in
preparing the discounted cash flow model includeted interest swap rates and market observableoflatailar instruments. The Company's
contingent consideration is valued using a prolitshileighted discounted cash flow model. The asdionp used in preparing the discounted
cash flow model include estimates for possible aues if certain milestone goals are achieved, tbhbability of achieving each outcome and
discount rates.
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6. Fair Value of Financial Instruments (Continued)

The following summarizes the activity inve¢ 3 financial instruments for the years endedidan1, 2011 and January 2, 2010 (in
thousands):

Auction Rate Put
Assets Securities Option Total

Balance at January 2,20 $  4557¢ $ 3,09: $ 48,66¢
Net purchases, sale
issuances and

settlements (1 (31,149 (2,22€) (33,369
Unrealized gain 17¢ — 17¢
Net recognized gair

(losses, 2,88¢ (867) 2,021
Balance at January 1,20 $  17,50( $ — $ 17,50(

Auction Rate Put
Securities Option Total

Balance at January 3,20 $  46,85¢ $ 4,962 $ 51,82:
Net purchases, sale

issuances and settleme (4,579 (301) (4,875
Unrealized gains (losse 1,85¢ — 1,85¢
Net recognized gair

(losses 1,43¢ (1,56¢) (133)

Balance at January 2,20 $  4557¢ $ 3,09¢ $ 48,66¢

Gain (loss) for period
included in earnings
attributable to the Level
financial instruments stil
held at January 2, 2010

related to

Trading securitie $ 143t $ — $ 1,43t

Fair value of the pL
option — (1,56¢) (1,56¢)
$ 1,43t $ (1,56¢) $ (139

Contingent

Liabilities _Consideration
Balance at January 2, 20 $ —
Net purchases, sales, issuances and settlemel 1,84(
Recognized gai (60)
Balance at January 1, 20 $ 1,78(

Gain for period included in earnings attributala
contingent consideration still held at January
2011: $ 60

(1)  The Company previously held $23.5 million par vadwetion-rate securities purchased through UBS AG.
During fiscal 2010, the Company sold these seeasritb UBS at par value under an agreement which
provided the Company with certain rights to selUBS the auction-rate securities that were purahase
through them.

2 In connection with the acquisition of ChipSensdting, Company recorded contingent consideration based

upon the achievement of certain milestone goalanges to the fair value of contingent consideratioe
to changes in assumptions used in preparin
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6. Fair Value of Financial Instruments (Continued)

discounted cash flow model are recorded in selljgmeral and administrative expenses in the Cateteli
Statement of Income. Changes resulting from foreigmency remeasurement adjustments to the comii
consideration liability are recorded in other in@(expense), ne

The Company's other financial instrumeimtsiuding cash, accounts receivable and accounyahpa, are recorded at amounts that
approximate their fair values due to their shorturities.

7. Balance Sheet Details

Balance sheet details consist of the falhgw(in thousands):

Inventories
January 1, January 2,
2011 2010
Work in progres! $ 32,970 $ 24,64.
Finished good 6,47: 6,87(

$ 39,45( $ 31,51

Property and Equipmet

January 1, January 2,

2011 2010
Equipment $ 40,52( $ 36,230
Computers and purchased softw 29,501 39,29¢
Furniture and fixture 3,051 3,17¢
Leasehold improvemen 21,04: 19,02¢

94,11« 97,73
Accumulated depreciatic (64,169 (69,946

$ 29,94 § 27,78t

Accrued Expense

January 1, January 2,

2011 2010
Accrued compensation and bene $ 15,11t $ 15,75}
Other 10,48¢ 9,64:

$ 25,60¢ $ 25,39¢
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7. Balance Sheet Details (Continued)

Longterm Obligations and Other Liabilities

January 1, January 2,
2011 2010
Unrecognized tax benefits (including
interest) $ 10,187 $ 12,02t
Other 12,18t 12,37¢

$ 2237: $ 24,40!

8. Risks and Uncertainties

Financial Instrument:

Financial instruments that potentially ®dbjthe Company to significant concentrations eflitrrisk consist primarily of cash equivalents,
investments, accounts receivable and derivativies.Jompany places its cash equivalents and invaessrpeimarily in corporate bonds, U.S.
Treasury bills, money market funds, variable-ramend notes, municipal bonds, U.S. government ggaoreds and discount notes,
international government bonds, certificates ofad#p commercial paper and auction-rate securi@escentrations of credit risk with respect

to accounts receivable are primarily due to custsméth large outstanding balances. The Compamgmers that accounted for greater than
10% of accounts receivable consist of the following

January 1, January 2,
2011 2010
Avnet 18% 14%
Macnica 14% *x
Edom Technolog' 11% 33%

*%

Less than 10% of accounts receive

The Company performs periodic credit evédues of its customers' financial condition and gratly requires no collateral from its

customers. The Company provides an allowance faanpial credit losses based upon the expectedatibliéty of such receivables. Losses
have not been significant for any of the periodsspnted.

Suppliers

A significant portion of the Company's pucts are fabricated by Taiwan Semiconductor Manufawy Co. (TSMC) or its affiliates. The
inability of TSMC to deliver wafers to the Compaaiy a timely basis could impact the production @ @ompany's products for a substantial
period of time, which could have a material advef$ect on the Company's business, financial camiaind results of operations.

Customers

The Company sells directly to end customdisgributors and contract manufacturers. AlthotlghCompany actually sells the products
and is paid by, distributors and contract manufacty the
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8. Risks and Uncertainties (Continued)
Company refers to the end customer as its custdduere of the Company's contract manufacturers ateduor greater than 10% of revenue

during fiscal 2010, 2009 or 2008. The Company'sarsomers and distributors that accounted fortgréhan 10% of revenue consists of the
following:

Year Ended
January 1, January 2, January 3,
2011 2010 2009

End Customer
Samsun *x 16% *x
Distributors
Edom Technolog' 28% 27% 31%
Avnet 14% 10% xk

xk Less than 10% of reveni
9. Acquisitions
Silicon Clocks

In April 2010, the Company acquired Silid@locks, Inc., a privately held company that des@jand developed microelectromechanical
system (MEMS) technology to enable the manufaatfislicon resonators and sensors directly on gteh@€MOS wafers. The Company
acquired Silicon Clocks for approximately $21.0lioil in cash. Of such consideration, $2.0 millioasadeposited in escrow as security for
breaches of representations and warranties anaircether expressly enumerated matters.

The Company recorded the purchase of Sil€lmcks using the acquisition method of accounéind accordingly, recognized the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed at their fair ealas of the date of the acquisition. The restil&liwon Clocks' operations are included in the
Company's consolidated results of operations béagiwith the date of the acquisition. Revenues @auhings of Silicon Clocks and pro forma
financial information have not been presented bgeealoe results of Silicon Clocks' operations wexenmaterial. Acquisition-related costs were
not significant.

The Company believes that the acquisitidhemable the Company to accelerate its entry thilow end timing market while further
scaling the Company's engineering team. Theserfactmtributed to a purchase price that was in &xoéthe fair value of the net assets
acquired and, as a result, the Company recordedvgthoThe goodwill was allocated to the Compary® operating segment and
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9. Acquisitions (Continued)

is not expected to be deductible for tax purposhs.purchase price was allocated as follows (inshads):

Weighted-Average
Amortization Period

Amount (Years)
Intangible asset:
In-process research a
developmen $ 9,47( 9.8
Developed technolog 23C 3.C
Customer relationshiy 30 2.C
9,73(
Cash and cash equivalel 514
Other current asse 473
Deferred tax asse—nor-current 10,617
Other nor-current assetl 322
Goodwill 4,113
Current liabilities (1,339
Deferred tax liabilitie—nor-
current (3,40¢6)
Total purchase pric $ 21,02¢

In-process research and development (IPR&pPjesents acquired technology that had not aetii,achnological feasibility as of the
acquisition closing date and had no alternativerkiise. These costs were recorded as indefimid-Intangible assets. The assets are tested
for impairment through their completion and theroatized to research and development expense ogirubeful lives. The fair value of each
project was determined using the income approaleé.discount rate applicable to the cash flows v@a8%. This rate reflects the weighted-
average cost of capital and the risks inhererfiéndevelopment process. The IPR&D recorded in adiorewith the acquisition consisted of
the following (in thousands):

Project Fair Value

Resonato $ 5,20C

Clocks 4,27(
$ 9,47(C

The Company is developing the IPR&D praggagsing MEMS technology. The remaining researchdeveélopment efforts include
additional design, integration and testing. Ashaf &cquisition date, the Company projected thesdostomplete the projects to be $8.1 milli
Such costs have been consistent with the Compasgtsmptions at the time of the acquisition.

ChipSensors

In October 2010, the Company acquired Canssrs Ltd, a privately held company for approxeha$11.7 million, including contingent
consideration with an estimated fair value of $hiBion at the date of acquisition. ChipSensorsated innovative single-chip CMOS sensors
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9. Acquisitions (Continued)

designed to detect temperature, humidity and gd$esCompany recorded the purchase of Silicon Glarding the acquisition method of
accounting and accordingly, recognized the assepsied and liabilities assumed at their fair valas of the date of the acquisition. The
purchase price was allocated as follows: intangilskets—$9.1 million; goodwill—$3.1 million; andtriangible assets—$(0.5) million.
Revenues and earnings of ChipSensors and pro fiimaracial information have not been presented beedoe results of ChipSensors'
operations were not material. The purchase prioeation is preliminary and subject to revisiomasre detailed analysis is completed and
additional information about the fair value of assand liabilities becomes available. Adjustmentthe fair value of the net assets acquired
may affect the calculation of goodwill.

Integration Associate

In July 2008, the Company completed itsuggition of Integration Associates, a privatelychebmpany that designed and developed
silicon solutions for wireless, wireline and povegstem management applications. The Company achuntegration Associates for
approximately $87.1 million, including $80.6 miltion cash and approximately 202,000 shares of tmapany's common stock valued at
$6.5 million on the closing date. Of such consitierg $9.0 million in cash was deposited in escemasecurity for breaches of representations
and warranties and certain other expressly enusttrattters.

The acquisition was recorded using the lpase method of accounting and accordingly, thdteesfiintegration Associates' operations
included in the Company's consolidated resultspefations beginning with the date of the acquisit®ro forma financial information has not
been presented since the effect of the acquisitesnot material. The Company believes that theiaitipn enables the Company to address
new product vectors, accelerates its entry inttademarkets and further scales the Company's erging team. These factors contributed to a
purchase price that was in excess of the fair vafube net assets acquired and, as a result,ahg@&ny recorded goodwill. The

F-24




Table of Contents

Silicon Laboratories Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
January 1, 2011 (Continued)

9. Acquisitions (Continued)

goodwill was allocated to the Company's one opegadegment and is not deductible for tax purpoBes.purchase price was allocated as
follows (in thousands):

Weighted-Average
Amortization Period

Amount (Years)
Intangible asset:
Core and developed technolc $ 36,27( 9.7
Customer relationshiy 1,08( 10.C
In-process research and
developmen 10,25(
47,60(
Cash and cash equivalel 2,64<
Accounts receivabl 4,87¢
Inventories 5,92t
Other current asse 3,60¢
Goodwill 32,01
Other nor-current assel 4,68¢
Accounts payabl (2,839
Other current liabilitie: (4,477
Deferred tax liabilitie: (6,90¢)
Total purchase pric $ 87,14:

In-process research and development (IPR&pPesents acquired technology that had not aetiitachnological feasibility as of the
acquisition closing date and that had no altereditiNure use. These costs were expensed on thefdatguisition. The fair value of each
project was determined using the income approalé.discount rate applicable to the cash flows vi#6.2This rate reflects the weighted-
average cost of capital and the risks inhererténdevelopment process. The IPR&D recorded in attiorewith the acquisition consisted of
the following (in thousands):

Projects Fair Value
Radio transmitters and transceiv $ 7,74
Optoelectronic 2,02(
Power 49C

$ 1025

The radio transmitters and transceivergepts enable the delivery of data over proprietahgrt range wireless links. The optoelectronic
projects are used for infrared data communicat&rsproximity sensing. The power projects enableDXCconversion in power supply
systems.
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10. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets
Goodwill

The following summarizes the activity inoglwill for the years ended January 1, 2011 andalgn2, 2010 (in thousands):

Year Ended
January 1, January 2,
2011 2010
Beginning balanc $ 105,10¢ $ 105,51!
Additions due to business combinatic 7,187 —
Adjustments — (40€)
Ending balanci $ 112,29¢ $ 105,10¢

Other Intangible Assets

The gross carrying amount and accumulateattization of other intangible assets are as ¥aildin thousands):

Weighted-Average January 1, 2011 January 2, 2010
Amortization
Period Gross Accumulated Gross Accumulated
(Years) Amount Amortization Amount Amortization
Intangible asset:
Subject to amortizatior
Core and developed
technology 9.4 $ 64,27C $ (22,38 $ 54,92( $ (16,029
Customer relationshiy 6.6 3,41(C (1,766 3,38( (1,18¢)
Patent: 7.0 2,89¢ (2,657) 4,63¢ (3,927
Internal use softwar — — — 60C (519
9.1 70,57¢ (26,80¢)  63,53¢ (21,657)
Not subject to amortizatio!
In-process research and
developmen Not amortizec 9,47( — — —
Total intangible asse $ 80,04¢ $ (26,80¢) $ 63,53t $ (21,65)

The increase in intangible assets in fig€dI0 was from the acquisition of Silicon Clocksl&@hipSensors. Amortization expense related
to intangible assets for fiscal 2010, 2009 and 2088 $7.5 million, $7.8 million and $5.7 millioregpectively. Fully amortized assets are
written off against
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10. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets (Continuef

accumulated amortization. The estimated aggregatetazation expense for intangible assets subgeantortization for each of the five
succeeding fiscal years is as follows (in thousands

Fiscal Year

2011 $ 7,892
2012 7,421
2013 5,98(
2014 5,171
2015 4,77¢

11. Stockholders' Equity
Common Stock

The Company issued 1.5 million shares ofitmn stock during fiscal 2010, net of 0.2 millidrases withheld to satisfy employee tax
obligations for the vesting of certain stock gramede under the Company's stock incentive plans.

Share Repurchase Programs

In July 2010, the Board of Directors addpgéeshare repurchase program to repurchase ugb@riillion of the Company's common stock
through 2011. The new program became effective idiately and terminated the remaining share repselaathorization of the prior
program. The most recent prior program, which wasanced in October 2009, authorized the repurchpde $150 million of the Company's
common stock through 2010. The Company's repurgh@sgam announced in October 2008 authorizedaperchase of up to $100 million
the Company's common stock over ami@nth period, and was completed in November 208@s& programs allow for repurchases to be r
in the open market or in private transactions,udiig structured or accelerated transactions, stitgeapplicable legal requirements and me
conditions. The Company repurchased 3.3 milliorrestiD.6 million shares and 9.4 million sharesotommon stock for $140.3 million,
$20.2 million and $280.3 million during fiscal 2012009 and 2008, respectively.
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11. Stockholders' Equity (Continued)
Accumulated Other Comprehensive L

The components of accumulated other congm&ikie loss, net of taxes, were as follows (in Hamals):

Unrealized Net Unrealized Losse:
Losses on Cash on Available-
Flow Hedges For-Sale Securities Total

Balance at

January 2,

2010 $ (2,919 $ (1,437 $ (4,356
Change

associated

with current

period

transactions

net of tax (1,71¢€) 18E (1,53))
Amount

reclassified

into

earnings, ne

of tax 2,15¢ 81 2,23¢
Balance at

January 1,
2011 $ (2,477 $ (1,177 $ (3,649

12. Stock-Based Compensation

In fiscal 2009, the stockholders of the @amy approved the 2009 Stock Incentive Plan (t8©9Z2Plan") and the 2009 Employee Stock
Purchase Plan (the "2009 Purchase Plan"). The R&00is currently effective, and no further granit be issued under the Company's 2000
Stock Incentive Plan (the "2000 Plan") as of tHfeaive date of the 2009 Plan. The 2009 Plan hasna of 10 years from the shareholders'
approval date. The 2009 Purchase Plan becameieffeion the termination of the previous Employ&eck Purchase Plan (the "Purchase
Plan"), on April 30, 2010.

The amount of shares reserved for the RgeelPlan increased by 230 thousand shares onghstéick market trading day of 2010. There
is no provision for an automatic share reserveciase in either the 2009 Plan or the 2009 Purchase P

2009 Stock Incentive Plan

Under the 2009 Plan, the following may benged: stock options, stock appreciation righésfgrmance shares, performance stock units,
restricted stock units (RSUSs), restricted stockrawgdRSAS), performance-based awards and otherdaveollectively, all such grants are
referred to as "awards"). Awards of stock optiond stock appreciation rights each deduct one dhamethe 2009 Plan shares available for
issuance for each share granted, and full valuedsyawards other than for which the participameuired to pay at least the fair market
value of the underlying shares on the date of gi@deduct 1.55 shares from the 2009 Plan sharelbieafor issuance for each share granted.
Awards granted under the 2009 Plan generally comasting provisions ranging from three to fourrged@he exercise price of stock options
granted under the 2009 Plan may not be less thd%b 1 the fair market value of a share of our comrstock on the date of grant. To the
extent awards granted under the 2009 Plan termiegpére or lapse for any reason, or are settlezhgh, shares subject to such awards will
again be available for grant.
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12. Stock-Based Compensation (Continued)
2000 Stock Incentive Plan

In fiscal 2000, the Company's Board of Dioes and stockholders approved the 2000 Plan2008 Plan contains programs for (i) the
discretionary granting of stock options to empla/gen-employee board members and consultantbdgurchase of shares of the Company's
common stock, (ii) the discretionary issuance ehown stock directly (as granted under direct issaahares in RSAs and RSUSs), (iii) the
granting of special below-market stock optionsxeaitive officers and other highly compensated eygxs of the Company for which the
exercise price can be paid using payroll deductintk(iv) the automatic issuance of stock optiensan-employee board members. The
discretionary issuance of common stock, RSUs aseksiptions generally contain vesting provisionsgiag from three to eight years. If
permitted by the Company, stock options can beotsed immediately and, similar to the direct isaigashares, are subject to repurchase rights
which generally lapse in accordance with the vegssithedule. The repurchase rights provide that gpaiain defined events, the Company can
repurchase unvested shares at the price paid peg.shhe term of each stock option is no more tearyears from the date of grant.

Stock Grants and Modifications

The Company granted to its employees OlBomiand 0.2 million shares of full value awardsrh the 2009 Plan during fiscal 2010 and
2009, respectively. The Company granted to its eyg@s zero, zero and 0.3 million stock options, zerd, 0.8 million and 1.0 million of full
value awards from the 2000 Plan during fiscal 2@DM9 and 2008, respectively. There were no sicaniti modifications made to any stock
grants during these periods.

2009 Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The rights to purchase common stock granteter the 2009 Purchase Plan are intended teehgett as either (i) purchase rights granted
under an "employee stock purchase plan," as thatitedefined in Section 423(b) of the Internal Bewe Code (the "423(b) Plan"), or
(ii) purchase rights granted under an employeekgtacchase plan that is not subject to the terndscamditions of Section 423(b) of the
Internal Revenue Code (the "Non-423(b) Plan"). Teepany will retain the discretion to grant purahaghts under either the 423(b) Plan or
the Non-423(b) Plan. Eligible employees may purelamited number of shares of the Company's comstack at no less than 85% of the
fair market value of a share of common stock asgibed purchase intervals during an offering perieach offering period will be comprised
of a series of one or more successive and/or qyairig purchase intervals and has a maximum ter24 ehonths. During fiscal 2010, the
Company issued 75 thousand shares under the 2008&2e Plan to its employees. The weighted-avdeagealue for purchase rights granted
under the 2009 Purchase Plan for fiscal 2010 wasB&1per share.

Employee Stock Purchase P!

The Purchase Plan was adopted by the CoytgpBoard of Directors in fiscal 2000. Eligible eloyees could purchase a limited numbe
shares of the Company's common stock at 85% ahtimiet value during a series of offering periodscheoffering period is divided into semi-
annual purchase intervals and has a maximum te@4 afonths. During fiscal 2010, 2009 and 2008, the
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12. Stock-Based Compensation (Continued)

Company issued 79 thousand, 148 thousand and ®28ahd shares, respectively, under the Purchanddiis employees. There were no
purchase rights granted under the Purchase Pldis¢af 2010.

Accounting for Stoc-Based Compensation

Stock-based compensation costs are geyé@sked on the fair values on the date of grangtimock options and on the date of enrollment
for the employee stock purchase plans, estimatagsing the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. Téie values of full value awards
generally equal their intrinsic value on the ddtgrant.

The Black-Scholes valuation calculationuiegs the Company to estimate key assumptions asi¢titure stock price volatility, expected
terms, risk-free rates and dividend yield. Expedtiedtk price volatility is based upon a combinatidéioth historical volatility and implied
volatility derived from traded options on the Compa stock in the marketplace. Expected term iszvddrfrom an analysis of historical
exercises and remaining contractual life of optidriee risk-free rate is based on the U.S. Treagialgd curve in effect at the time of grant. The
Company has never paid cash dividends and doesineintly intend to pay cash dividends, thus it &ssumed a 0% dividend yield.

The Company must estimate potential fanfes of stock grants and adjust compensation eostded accordingly. The estimate of
forfeitures will be adjusted over the requisitevéms period to the extent that actual forfeituréfed, or are expected to differ, from such
estimates. Changes in estimated forfeitures armgrézed through a cumulative catap-adjustment in the period of change and will &spac
the amount of stock compensation expense to bgmnéed in future periods.

The fair values of stock options and RSkésaanortized as compensation expense on a sti@ightasis over the vesting period of the
grants. The fair values of RSAs are fully expenisetthe period of grant, when shares are immediasslyed with no vesting restrictions.
Compensation expense recognized is shown in thextpg activities section of the Consolidated Stegats of Cash Flows.
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The fair values estimated from the Black@es option-pricing model were calculated usirgftillowing assumptions:

Year Ended
January 1, January 2, January 3,
2011 2010 2009

2009 Stock Incentive Pla

Expected volatility — n/e n/e

Risk-free interest rate ¢ — n/e n/e

Expected term (in year — n/e n/e

Dividend yield — n/e n/e
2000 Stock Incentive Pla

Expected volatility n/e — 44%

Risk-free interest rate ¢ n/e — 2.€%

Expected term (in year n/e — 5.C

Dividend yield n/e — —
2009 Employee Stock Purchase PI

Expected volatility 32% n/e n/e

Risk-free interest rate ¢ 0.4% n/e n/e

Expected term (in month 15 n/e n/e

Dividend yield — n/e n/e
Employee Stock Purchase Pl:

Expected volatility n/e 44% 41%

Risk-free interest rate ¢ n/e 0.2% 1.3%

Expected term (in month n/e 8 12

Dividend yield n/e — _

n/e—Napplicable
There were no stock options granted dufisgal 2010 or 2009.
A summary of stock-based compensation igtivith respect to fiscal 2010 follows:

Weighted- Weighted-Average Aggregate

Average Remaining Intrinsic
Shares Exercise Contractual Term Value
Stock Options (000s) Price (In Years) ($000s)
Outstanding at January 2, 20 4,04¢ $ 33.8¢
Granted — $ —
Exercisec (75¢) $ 29.6(
Cancelled or expire (288) $ 51.3:
Outstanding at January 1, 2C 3,00 $ 33.2¢ 4.C $ 40,08¢
Vested at January 1, 2011 and expected to 2,99¢ $ 33.2¢ 4.C $ 40,06(
Exercisable at January 1, 20 2,77¢ $ 33.2% 38 $ 37,38
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Weighted- Weighted-Average Aggregate

Average Remaining Intrinsic
Shares Purchase Vesting Term Value
RSAs and RSUs (000s) Price (In Years) ($000s)
Outstanding at January 2, 20 223: $ 0.0C
Granted 82: $ 0.0C
Issuec (74€) $ 0.0C
Cancelled or expire (109 ¢ o.0c
Outstanding at January 1, 20 2,206 $ 0.0C 1.1 $ 101,51:
Outstanding at January 1, 2011 and expect:
vest 2,07¢ $ 0.0C 1.1 $ 95,51°

The following summarizes the Company's Wwiid average fair value at the date of grant:

Year Ended
January 1, January 2, January 3,
2011 2010 2009
Per grant of stock optior $ — $ — $ 129

Pergrantof RSAsorRSL ¢ 448t $ 27.4% $§ 31.7i

The following summarizes the Company'sistoased payment and stock option values (in thalgan

Year Ended
January 1, January 2, January 3,
2011 2010 2009

Intrinsic value of stocl

options exercise $ 14,080 $ 1454¢ $ 5,45¢
Intrinsic value of RSAs an

RSUs that veste $ 32,10¢ $ 23,98 $ 19,46¢
Grant date fair value of

RSAs and RSUs that

vested $ 2539 $ 22,76« $ 22,42

The Company had approximately $44.8 milliériotal unrecognized compensation costs relateddck options and RSUs at January 1,
2011 that are expected to be recognized over anezepverage period of 1.4 years. There were mofigignt stock compensation costs
capitalized into assets in any of the periods preese

The Company received cash of $18.1 milfmrthe issuance of common stock, net of shardsheltl for taxes during fiscal 2010. The
Company issues shares from the shares reserveditsid®ck plans upon the exercise of stock ogtiggsuance of RSAs, and vesting of
RSUs. The Company does not currently expect torobyase shares from any source to satisfy suchaildiy
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12. Stock-Based Compensation (Continued)

The following table presents details ofcktbased compensation costs recognized in the Gdata Statements of Income (in
thousands):

Year Ended
January 1, January 2, January 3,
2011 2010 2009
Cost of revenue $ 143t $ 1,457 $ 1,437
Research and developmt 17,01% 13,86¢ 14,90¢
Selling, general an
administrative 21,87: 28,651 24,32¢
40,32« 43,97 40,66¢
Income tax benefi 5,462 6,221 5,647

$ 34,86 $ 37,75¢ $ 35,02

As of January 1, 2011, the Company hadveskeshares of common stock for future issuandellsvs (in thousands):

2000 Stock Incentive Ple 4,38¢
2009 Stock Incentive Ple 6,512
2009 Employee Stock Purchase F 1,17¢
Total shares reserve 12,07:

13. Employee Benefit Plan

The Company maintains a defined contributio 401(k) Plan for its qualified U.S. employeRarticipants may contribute a percentage of
their compensation on a pre-tax basis, subjectni@@mum annual contribution imposed by the InteRevenue Code. The Company may
make discretionary matching contributions as weldiscretionary profit-sharing contributions to #@l (k) Plan. The Company contributed
$2.6 million, $2.2 million and $2.2 million to tF®1(k) Plan during fiscal 2010, 2009 and 2008, eetpely.

14. Commitments and Contingencies
Operating Leases

The Company leases its facilities underaiieg lease agreements that expire at variousdateugh 2019. Some of these arrangements
contain renewal options and require the Comparpatotaxes, insurance and maintenance costs.

Rent expense under operating leases wasdilion, $5.1 million and $3.8 million for fisc&010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
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14. Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

The minimum annual future rentals undertérens of these leases as of January 1, 2011 dodass (in thousands):

Fiscal Year

2011 $ 7,67¢
2012 7,54
2013 3,42:
2014 1,522
2015 1,47¢
Thereaftel 4,48¢
Total minimum lease paymer 26,12:
Minimum sublease rental incon (6,259
Total net minimum lease paymel $ 19,86

Headquarters Leases

In March 2006, the Company entered intoperating lease agreement and a related participatireement for a facility at 400 W. Cesar
Chavez ("400 WCC") in Austin, Texas for its corperaeadquarters. The lease has a term of seves yider base rent for the term of the lease
is an amount equal to the interest accruing on3pddllion at 110 basis points over the three-mdrdBOR (which would be approximately
$1.4 million over the remaining term assuming LIB@®erages 0.30% during such term).

In March 2008, the Company entered intoperating lease agreement and a related participaireement for a facility at 200 W. Cesar
Chavez ("200 WCC") in Austin, Texas for the expansif its corporate headquarters. The lease hexsradf five years. The base rent for the
term of the lease is an amount equal to the intaesuing on $50.1 million at 155 basis pointsrahe three-month LIBOR (which would be
approximately $2.1 million over the remaining teassuming LIBOR averages 0.30% during such term).

The Company has granted certain rightsrangedies to the lessors in the event of certaiaudtsf, including the right to terminate the
leases, to bring suit to collect damages, and mapeb the Company to purchase the facilities. Thsde contain other customary
representations, warranties, obligations, condii@mlemnification provisions and termination psgins, including covenants that the
Company shall maintain unencumbered cash and higitdyl short-term investments of at least $75 anillif the Company's unencumbered
cash and highly-rated short-term investments a®tlean $150 million, it must also maintain a rafidunded debt to earnings before interest
expense, income taxes, depreciation, amortizaéase expense and other nzash charges (EBITDAR) over the four prior fiscahders of n
greater than 2 to 1. As of January 1, 2011, the gizom believes it was in compliance with all coveraf the leases.

During the terms of the leases, the Compasyon-going options to purchase the buildingpfochase prices of approximately
$44.3 million for 400 WCC and $50.1 million for 200CC. Alternatively, the Company can cause each puoperty to be sold to third parties
provided it is not in default under that propertgase. The Company is contingently liable on st fiollar loss basis for

F-34




Table of Contents

Silicon Laboratories Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
January 1, 2011 (Continued)

14. Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

up to $35.3 million to the extent that the 400 W&xAIe proceeds are less than the $44.3 million pecloption and up to $40.0 million to the
extent that the 200 WCC sale proceeds are lessliea$60.1 million purchase option.

The Company determined that the fair valssociated with the guaranteed residual valuespiv@smillion for 400 WCC and $1.2 million
for 200 WCC, as of the inception of the leases s€remounts were recorded in "Other assets, net"Lanmd)-term obligations and other
liabilities" in the Consolidated Balance Sheets arelbeing amortized over the term of the leases.

The Company is required to periodicallylaase the expected fair value of each facilitytet €nd of the lease terms. If the Company
determines that it is estimable and probable tiaekpected fair values will be less than $44.8aniffor 400 WCC and $50.1 million for 200
WCC, it will ratably accrue the loss up to a maximaf approximately $35.3 million and $40.0 millimespectively, over the remaining lease
terms as additional rent expense. As of Janua2@11, the Company does not believe that a lossrgmricy accrual is required for either
property. However, a prolonged economic downtumndincrease the likelihood of such a loss accrual.

Interest Rate Swap Agreements

In connection with its headquarters leadasing fiscal 2008 the Company entered into irderate swap agreements as a hedge agair
variable rent under the leases. Under the terniseo§wap agreements, the Company has effectivelyected the variable rents to fixed rents
through March 2011 for 400 WCC and March 2013 fa@ 2VCC. See Note Rerivative Financial Instrumentsfor additional information.

Litigation
Securities Litigation

On December 6, 2001, a class action comiplar violations of U.S. federal securities lawasifiled in the United States District Court
the Southern District of New York against the Compdour officers individually and the three invesnt banking firms who served as
representatives of the underwriters in connectidh the Company's initial public offering of commetock. The Consolidated Amended
Complaint alleges that the registration statemadtg@ospectus for the Company's initial public offg did not disclose that (1) the
underwriters solicited and received additional,emsive and undisclosed commissions from certaiesitors, and (2) the underwriters had
agreed to allocate shares of the offering in exghdar a commitment from the customers to purclaasktional shares in the aftermarket at
pre-determined higher prices. The Complaint allegelations of the Securities Act of 1933 and tlee&ities Exchange Act of 1934. The
action seeks damages in an unspecified amountsadrelng coordinated with approximately 300 otherlyeidentical actions filed against otl
companies. A court order dated October 9, 2002 idied without prejudice the four officers of thengany who had been named
individually. On December 5, 2006, the Second Gircacated a decision by the District Court gragtitass certification in six of the
coordinated cases, which are intended to servestsar "focus" cases. The plaintiffs selectedetsis cases, which do not include the
Company. On April 6, 2007, the Second Circuit dérdepetition for rehearing filed by the plaintiffayt noted that the plaintiffs could ask the
District Court to certify more narrow classes thhose that were rejected.
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The parties in the approximately 300 cowatid cases, including the parties in the casasigie Company, reached a settlement. The
insurers for the issuer defendants in the coordthatises will make the settlement payment on beh#ie issuers, including the Company. On
October 5, 2009, the Court granted final appro¥ahe settlement. Judgment was entered on Jan@a3010. Six notices of appeal and one
petition seeking permission to appeal were filefibleethe United States Court of Appeals for thed®ecCircuit. Two appeals are proceeding
on behalf of objectors to the settlement. Plaistifave moved to dismiss both appeals. The motien&ildy briefed. The remaining objectors
withdrew their appeals with prejudice.

As the litigation process is inherently ertain, the Company is unable to predict the outcofithe above described matter if the
settlement does not survive appeal. While the Complaes maintain liability insurance, it could indosses that are not covered by its liab
insurance or that exceed the limits of its liapiltsurance. Such losses could have a materialdhgrathe Company's business and its results
of operations or financial position.

Other

The Company is involved in various otheyaleproceedings that have arisen in the normalseoaf business. While the ultimate results of
these matters cannot be predicted with certaihtyQompany does not expect them to have a maselvarse effect on its consolidated
financial position or results of operations.

Discontinued Operations Indemnificati

In fiscal 2007, the Company sold its Aeansceiver, AeroFONE™ single-chip phone and powssléier product lines (the "Aero
product lines") to NXP B.V. and NXP SemiconductBrance SAS (collectively "NXP"). In connection withe sale of the Aero product lines,
the Company agreed to indemnify NXP with respediatailities for certain tax matters. There is ramtractual limit on exposure with respec
such matters. As of January 1, 2011, the Compadynbanaterial liabilities recorded with respecthis indemnification obligation.
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Significant components of the provisionr(efit) for income taxes are as follows (in thousgnd

Year Ended
January 1, January 2, January 3,
2011 2010 2009

Current:

Domestic $ 10,82« $ (11,56() $ 14,55

International 4,14¢ 5,53¢ 3,80¢

Total Current 14,96¢ (6,027) 18,36
Deferred:

Domestic (192) 2,23¢ 2,261

International (360) (33¢) (44%)

Total Deferrec (552) 1,89¢ 1,81¢

$ 14417 $ (4,120 $ 20,18:

The Company's provision (benefit) for inataxes differs from the expected tax expense atremmputed by applying the statutory
federal income tax rate to income before incomegass a result of the following:

Year Ended
January 1, January 2, January 3,
2011 2010 2009

Federal statutory ra 35.(% 35.(% 35.(%
Foreign tax rate benel (15.¢) (16.7) (14.9
Research and developme

tax credits (6.2) (3.2 (2.2
In-process research a

developmen — — 6.8
Release of prior ye:

unrecognized tax

benefits (3.6) (23.9) (12.5)
Intercompany technolog

license 4.4 — 22.1
Excess officer

compensatiol 2.C 1.8 i1z
Stock-based compensati 0.2 0.3 3.C
Tax-exempt interest incon (0.2) (0.6) (3.0
Other 0.2 0.7 1.€

16.2% 6.0%  38.(%

The effective tax rate for fiscal 2010 imased from fiscal 2009, primarily due to the reoluof uncertain tax positions as a result of
entering into an Advance Pricing Agreement withth8. Internal Revenue Service during the fourtartgr of fiscal 2009. In addition, the
effective tax rate for fiscal 2010 increased frdra prior period due to the intercompany licenseesfain technology obtained in the acquisi
of Silicon Clocks during the second quarter ofdis2010. The increase in the effective tax rate pasially offset by an increase in the federal
research and development credit in fiscal 2010.&ffective tax rate for fiscal 2009 decreased ffoal 2008, primarily due to the resolution
of uncertain tax positions as a result of enteiirig a unilateral Advance Pricing Agreement witk th.S. Internal Revenue Service during the
fourth quarter of fiscal 2009. In addition, the
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effective tax rate for fiscal 2009 decreased frisodl 2008 due to the intercompany license of @etechnology and the non-deductible write-
off of in-process research and development cosiagltiscal 2008, both of which were related to Huguisition of Integration Associates
during fiscal 2008.

Income before income taxes included appnaxely $40.1 million, $39.5 million and $22.6 nolti related to foreign operations in fiscal
2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

At the end of fiscal 2010, undistributedréiags of the Company's foreign subsidiaries ofrapimately $261.9 million are considered
permanently reinvested. Accordingly, no provision{.S. federal and state income taxes has beep.radermination of the amount of the
unrecognized deferred tax liability on these unt&diearnings is not practicable.

Significant components of the Company'defl taxes as of January 1, 2011 and JanuarylD, & as follows (in thousands):

January 1, January 2,
2011 2010
Deferred tax asset

Net operating loss carryforwar $ 10927 $ 2,24¢
Research and development tax cr

carryforwards 4,88( 3,92¢
Stock compensatic 10,20¢ 9,85:
Depreciable asse 31,48¢ 33,40"
Reserves and allowanc 13€ 33t
Unrealized losses on availa-for-sale

securities 631 774
Unrealized losses on cash flow hed 1,33¢ 1,572
Deferred income on shipments

distributors 3,29¢ 1,77¢
Accrued liabilities and othe 4,55¢ 4,62¢

67,45¢ 58,52(
Less: Valuation allowanc — —

67,45¢ 58,52(

Deferred tax liabilities

Acquired intangible: 15,53¢ 13,88:
Long term obligations for tax purpos 33,02: 33,02:
Prepaid expenses and otl 1,23¢ 857

49,79: 47,76:
Net deferred tax asse $ 17,66¢ $ 10,75¢

As of January 1, 2011, the Company hadréddet operating loss and research and developanedit carryforwards of approximately
$25.0 million and $0.3 million, respectively, aseault of the Cygnal Integrated Products and Sili€tocks acquisitions. These carryforwards
expire in fiscal years 2019 through 2030. Recognitif these loss and credit carryforwards is suligean annual limit, which may cause them
to expire before they are used. The Company hadgiomet operating loss carryforwards of approxetya$4.8 million as a result of the
ChipSensors acquisition which do not expire.
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The Company also had state loss and rdseact development credit carryforwards of approxétyab44.6 million and $7.1 million,
respectively. A portion of these loss and creditydfarwards was generated by the Company and d@opontas acquired through the Integration
Associates and Silicon Clocks acquisitions. Certdithese carryforwards expire in fiscal years 2028ugh 2029 and others do not expire.
Recognition of some of these loss and credit carwdirds is subject to an annual limit, which mayssthem to expire before they are used.

Deferred income taxes reflect the net féects of temporary differences between the cagyialue of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the values used for incameurposes. The Company recorded net deferreaistsets of approximately $7.2 million
related to the acquisition of Silicon Clocks in Af2010 and net deferred tax liabilities of approately $0.5 million related to the acquisition
of ChipSensors in October 2010 due to differenedwéen book and tax bases of acquired assets anhed liabilities. Management believes
that the Company's results of future operationsgeiherate sufficient taxable income such that fimore likely than not" that the deferred tax
assets will be realized.

The Company's operations in Singapore @ogest to reduced tax rates through 2019, as lsrmgegain conditions are met. The income
benefit reflected in earnings was approximatelyd $6illion (representing $0.13 per diluted sharefisnal 2010 and approximately $6.3 milli
(representing $0.13 per diluted share) in fisc@20

The following table reflects changes in timeecognized tax benefits (in thousands):

Year Ended
January 1, January 2, January 3,
2011 2010 2009
Beginning balanc $ 12,16( $ 32,69t $ 27,30:

Additions based on tax

positions related to

current yea 1,74z — 8,127
Additions based on tax

positions related to priot

years — 4,127 3,90¢
Reductions for tax positior
related to prior yeat (3,119 (14,959 —

Reductions for tax positior
as a result of a lapse of
the applicable statute of

limitations — (1,197 (6,639
Reductions for settlemen

with taxing authoritie: — (8,51)) —
Ending balanci $ 10,78 $ 12,16( $ 32,69¢

At January 1, 2011, the Company had grassangnized tax benefits of $10.8 million, all dfiieh would affect the effective tax rate if
recognized. The Company recognizes interest andlfiesrelated to unrecognized tax benefits ingtevision for income taxes. The Compe
did not recognize any interest in the provisionifmome taxes in fiscal 2010. During fiscal 2009 2008, the Company recognized
$0.8 million and $0.9 million of interest, respeely, net of tax, in the provision for income taxgsaddition, the Company had decreases of
interest, net of tax, of $0.1 million in fiscal 2D1of $1.8 million in fiscal 2009 and of $1.2 ndlfi in fiscal 2008. The Company has not mad
accrual for the payment of interest related to cogaized tax positions at the end of fiscal 201e Tompany
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15. Income Taxes (Continued)

had accrued $0.1 million for the payment of interefated to unrecognized tax positions at theddrfiscal 2009.

The tax years 2004 through 2010 remain @pexxamination by the major taxing jurisdictionsathich the Company is subject. During
third quarter of 2010, the examination of the Comp®2005 through 2008 federal income tax retugnthb U.S. Internal Revenue Service \
completed. The Company is not currently under andiiny major taxing jurisdiction.

16. Segment Information

The Company has one operating segment,dygignal analog intensive ICs, consisting of numerproduct areas. The Company's chief
operating decision maker is considered to be iiefExecutive Officer. The chief operating decisimaker allocates resources and assesses
performance of the business and other activitigseabperating segment level.

Revenue is attributed to a geographic bessd on the end customer's shipped-to locatioafdllowing summarizes the Company's
revenue by geographic area (in thousands):

Year Ended
January 1, January 2, January 3,
2011 2010 2009
United State! $ 69,75: $ 54,06t $ 51,82¢
China 137,70: 105,50¢ 94,77¢
Taiwan 76,99 68,32( 79,35:!
South Kores 65,40¢ 91,97« 56,36¢
Rest of worlc 143,48! 121,15: 133,30°
Total $ 493,34, $ 441,02( $ 415,63(

The following summarizes the Company's prgpand equipment, net by geographic area (ingaods):

January 1, January 2,
2011 2010
United State: $ 20,55¢ $ 22,52¢
Singapore 8,017 3,73¢
Rest of worlo 1,36¢ 1,51¢
Total $ 29,94t $ 27,78t

17. Subsequent Event

On January 25, 2011, the Company acquipsttt®a Linear, Inc., a privately held company,dpproximately $40 million in cash, subject
to certain working capital adjustments, plus pagmtdditional consideration of up to $10 millidad to the revenue of the acquired products
exceeding $16 million during 2011. Spectra Linasaa late-stage private company offering integréitathg solutions.
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17. Subsequent Event (Continued)

One of the Company's directors, Harvey BslC is a General Partner with InterWest PartnaildreterWest Partners was one of the
principal stockholders of Spectra Linear. Mr. Cablstained from the decision-making process witheesto the acquisition.

The Company will record the purchase ofcBpelinear using the acquisition method of accimgnand will recognize the assets acquired
and liabilities assumed at their fair values athefdate of the acquisition. The results of Spddmeaar's operations will be included in the
Company's consolidated results of operations bagjwith the date of the acquisition. The Companglrrently evaluating the fair values of
the consideration transferred, assets acquirediaitities assumed and will commence its purchasee allocation in the first quarter of fiscal
2011.
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Quarterly financial information for fiscaD10 and 2009 is as follows. All quarterly perioeported here had 13 weeks (in thousands,
except per share amounts):

Fiscal 201G

Fourth Third Second First

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Revenue: $ 111,89: $ 120,15¢ $ 134,57 $ 126,71
Gross margit 71,091 78,67( 90,89t 83,59(
Operating incomi 11,01+ 19,34t 30,641 25,66¢
Net income $ 12,88: $ 18,23: $ 21,047 $ 21,07¢

Earnings per shar
Basic $ 0.2¢ $ 041 $ 0.4¢ $ 0.4¢
Diluted $ 0.2¢ $ 0.4C $ 044 $ 0.44
Fiscal 2009

Fourth Third Second First

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Revenue: $ 127,19( $ 125917 $ 104,21¢ $ 83,70
Gross margit 83,26( 81,03t 64,78: 50,67¢
Operating incom 26,07¢ 26,53¢ 12,72¢ 1,16
Net income $ 40,25(1) $ 2243¢ $ 973 $ 671

Earnings per shar

Basic $ 0.8¢ $ 05C $ 0.2z $ 0.0z
Diluted $ 0.84 $ 047 $ 021 $ 0.01

1) Includes a benefit related to the resolution obipyiear uncertain tax benefi
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Subsidiaries of the Registrant

Shenzhen Silicon Laboratories Technology Co. |
Silicon Laboratories France S/

Silicon Laboratories Gmb

Silicon Laboratories Asia Pacific, Limite

Silicon Laboratories Hungary Korlatolt Felelésségiisasay
Silicon Labs Technology India Private Limit
ChipSensors Limite

Silicon Laboratories Ireland Limite

Silicon Laboratories Italy, S.r.|

Silicon Laboratories Y.K.

SL—Silicon Laboratories, Unipessoal L

Silicon Laboratories International Pte. Lt

Silicon Laboratories UK Limite:

Silicon Labs Integration, Inc

Silicon Laboratories Technology, LL

Silicon Labs CP, Inc

Silicon Labs HV, Inc.

Organized
Under Law Of

China

France

Germany

Hong Kong
Hungary

India

Ireland

Ireland

Italy

Japar

Portugal
Singapore
United Kingdom
State of Californic
State of Delawar
State of Delawar
State of Texa
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Exhibit 23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We consent to the incorporation by refeeeincthe Registration Statements (Form S-8 Nos-32528, 333-45682, 333-60794, 383844
333-104771, 333-112324, 333-122845, 333-131700,1288B62, 333-149104 and 333-158938) pertainingé¢cstock incentive and employee
stock purchase plans of Silicon Laboratories Ifi@us reports dated February 10, 2011, with respettie consolidated financial statements of
Silicon Laboratories Inc. and the effectivenesmtdrnal control over financial reporting of Silicdaboratories Inc., included in this Annual
Report (Form 10-K) for the year ended January 1120

/sl ERNST & YOUNG LLF

Austin, Texas
February 10, 2011
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Exhibit 31.1
Certification to the Securities and Exchange Commgon
by Registrant's Chief Executive Officer, as requiré by Section 302
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
I, Necip Sayiner, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Silidaaboratories Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omététde a material fact necessary to

make the statements made, in light of the circunt&s under which such statements were made, nigtagisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statement$,oéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdth@ periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant's other certifying officers andé aesponsible for establishing and maintainingld&ae controls and procedures
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirg @efined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd ave have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and proceduiies ttesigned under o
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtbsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pneszh

b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finaha@gaorting to be designe
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataoee with generally accepted accounting principles

C) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant'slaisire controls and procedures and presentedsimetport our conclusior
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conaants procedures as of the end of the period cougyrelis report based on such
evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regitsanternal control over financial reporting tloacurred during the registran
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fofigital quarter in the case of an annual repod) lttas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regisit's internal control over financial reportingpan

5. The registrant's other certifying officers and Véalisclosed, based on our most recent evaluafioriaynal control over financit
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thatauommittee of registrant's board of directorsgersons fulfilling the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contralerdinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the itegig's ability to record, process, summarize aprt financial information; ar

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvearmagement or other employees who have a signifrodain the registrant
internal controls over financial reporting.

Date: February 10, 201

/s NECIP SAYINER

Necip Sayine
President and Chief Executive Offic
(Principal Executive Officer
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Exhibit 31.2
Certification to the Securities and Exchange Commgon
by Registrant's Chief Financial Officer, as requirel by Section 302
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
[, William G. Bock, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Silidaaboratories Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omététde a material fact necessary to

make the statements made, in light of the circunt&s under which such statements were made, nigtagisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statement$,oéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdth@ periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant's other certifying officers andé aesponsible for establishing and maintainingld&ae controls and procedures
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirg @efined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd ave have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and proceduiies ttesigned under o
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtbsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pneszh

b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finaha@gaorting to be designe
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataoee with generally accepted accounting principles

C) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant'slaisire controls and procedures and presentedsimetport our conclusior
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conaants procedures as of the end of the period cougyrelis report based on such
evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regitsanternal control over financial reporting tloacurred during the registran
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fofigital quarter in the case of an annual repod) lttas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regisit's internal control over financial reportingpan

5. The registrant's other certifying officers and Véalisclosed, based on our most recent evaluafioriaynal control over financit
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thatauommittee of registrant's board of directorsgersons fulfilling the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contralerdinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the itegig's ability to record, process, summarize aprt financial information; ar

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvearmagement or other employees who have a signifrodain the registrant
internal controls over financial reporting.

Date: February 10, 201

/sl WILLIAM G. BOCK

William G. Bock
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)
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Exhibit 32.1
Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as create8dayion 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002herche undersigned officers of Silicon
Laboratories Inc. (the "Company") hereby certifgtth

(i) the accompanying Annual Report omrd0-K of the Company for the fiscal year endemuday 1, 2011 as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission (the "Repautly €omplies with the requirements of Section }3(@Section 15(d), as
applicable, of the Securities Exchange Act of 1984

(i) the information contained in the Repfairly presents, in all material respects, financial condition and results of operations
of the Company.

A signed original of this written statemeadjuired by Section 906 has been provided to tiragany and will be retained by the Company
and furnished to the Securities Exchange Commissiars staff upon request.

Date: February 10, 2011

/s NECIP SAYINER

Necip Sayine
President and Chief Executive Offic

/s/ WILLIAM G. BOCK

William G. Bock
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi
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